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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

THIS REPORT INCLUDES "FORWARD-LOOKING STATEENTS" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACTOF 1934, AS AMENDED. ALL STATEMENTS OTHER THAN
STATEMENTS OF HISTORICAL FACTS INCLUDED IN THIS REPRT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, STATEMENTS
REGARDING THE REGISTRANT'S FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITID, BUSINESS STRATEGY, BUDGETS, PROJECTED COSTS AND
PLANS AND OBJECTIVES OF MANAGEMENT FOR FUTURE OPERFONS, ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. IN
ADDITION, FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS GENERALLY CANBE IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF FORWARD-LOOKING
TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS "MAY", "WILL", "EXPECT", "INTEND", "ESTIMATE", "ANTICIPATE", "BELIEVE", OR "CONTINUE" OR
THE NEGATIVE THEREOF OR SIMILAR TERMINOLOGY. ALTHOWH THE REGISTRANT BELIEVES THAT THE EXPECTATION
REFLECTED IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE FRESONABLE, IT CAN GIVE NO ASSURANCE THAT SUCH
EXPECTATIONS WILL PROVE TO BE CORRECT. IMPORTANT AN ORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER
MATERIALLY FROM THE REGISTRANT'S EXPECTATIONS ARE [3CLOSED IN THIS REPORT UNDER THE CAPTION "RISK
FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 5, AS WELL AS IN MANAGEHENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ON, AND INCORPORATED BYHRERENCE TO, PAGES 6 THROUGH 42 OF THE COMPANY'S
ANNUAL REPORT (EXHIBIT 13 TO THIS FORM 10-K). ALL BBSEQUENT WRITTEN AND ORAL FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE REGISTRANT, OR PER3C5 ACTING ON ITS BEHALF, ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED Ii
THEIR ENTIRETY BY SUCH CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS. THE RGISTRANT ASSUMES NO DUTY TO UPDATE OR REVISE ITS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS BASED ON CHANGES IN INTRNAL ESTIMATES OR EXPECTATIONS OR OTHERWISE.
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

PART I
Item 1. BUSINESS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company"),swacorporated under the laws of the State of Datawn February 3, 1940, and is successor
to a business originally organized in 1920. The @any is primarily engaged in contract drilling df and gas wells for others and this
business accounts for almost all of the Compamgésaiing revenues.

The Company's contract drilling businessosiposed of three reportable business segmer&sidhd drilling, offshore drilling and
international land drilling. The Company's U.S.datrilling is conducted primarily in Oklahoma, Galinia, Texas, Wyoming, Colorado,
Louisiana, Mississippi, Alabama, Utah, ArkansaswNMexico, and North Dakota. Offshore drilling opoas are conducted in the Gulf of
Mexico, and offshore of California, Trinidad andu&dprial Guinea. The Company's international laeghsent operated in five international
locations during fiscal 2008: Venezuela, Ecuadalp@bia, Argentina and Tunisia.

The Company is also engaged in the owngrsleivelopment and operation of commercial reatesind, as a result of the recent
acquisition discussed below, the research and dewednt of rotary steerable technology. Both busiee®perate independently of the other
through wholly-owned subsidiaries. This operatiegehtralization though is balanced by a centralfzehce division, which handles all
accounting, information technology, budgeting, nasice, cash management and related activities.

The Company's real estate investmentsoaegdd exclusively within Tulsa, Oklahoma, whichlide a shopping center containing
approximately 441,000 leasable square feet, meti@t industrial warehouse properties containimpg@pmately 990,000 leasable square feet
and approximately 210 acres of undeveloped reate=st

In May 2008, the Company acquired Terra¥idlling Solutions, Inc. ("TerraVici") for $12.2 ifion. The terms of the transaction prov
for future contingency payments up to $11 milliaséd on specific commerciality milestones and oegarn-out provisions based on future
earnings being met.

TerraVici is developing patented rotaryesédle technology to enhance horizontal and deatidrilling operations. The Company
acquired TerraVici to complement technology cursensed with the FlexRig. The process of drillingstbecome increasingly challenging as
preferred well types deviate from simple verticallidg. By combining this new technology with ti@mpany's existing capabilities, the
Company expects to improve drilling productivitydareduce total well cost to the customer.

CONTRACT DRILLING
General

The Company believes that it is one ofrttegor land and offshore drilling contractors in thestern hemisphere. Operating principally in
North and South America, the Company specializeshaillow to deep drilling in oil and gas produclregsins of the United States anc
drilling for oil and gas in international locatiaria the United States, the Company draws its easts primarily from the major oil companies
and the larger independent oil companies. In Séutlerica, the Company's current customers includé/tnezuelan state petroleum company
and major international oil companies.

In fiscal 2008, the Company received apjnaxely 59 percent of its consolidated operatingreies from the Company's ten largest
contract drilling customers. Devon Energy Produtt@o. LP, BP plc and Petroleos de Venezuela Se&péctively, "Devon”, "BP" and
"PDVSA"), including their affiliates, are the Compes three largest contract drilling customers. Toepany performs drilling services for
Devon in U.S. land operations, BP on a world-widsib and PDVSA in Venezuela. Revenues from driliegvices performed for Devon, BP
and PDVSA in fiscal 2008 accounted for approximafi€l percent, 8 percent and 8 percent, respectivéine Company's consolidated
operating revenues for the same period.
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Rigs, Equipment and Facilities

The Company provides drilling rigs, equipmg@ersonnel and camps on a contract basis. Heggiees are provided so that the
Company's customers may explore for and develograilgas from onshore areas and from fixed plagptension-leg platforms and spars in
offshore areas. Each of the drilling rigs considtengines, drawworks, a mast, pumps, blowout prers, a drillstring and related equipment.
The intended well depth and the drilling site cdiodis are the principal factors that determinedize and type of rig most suitable for a
particular drilling job. A land drilling rig may beoved from location to location without modificati to the rig. A platform rig is specifically
designed to perform drilling operations upon aipatar platform. While a platform rig may be moviedm its original platform, significant
expense is incurred to modify a platform rig foeagtion on each subsequent platform. In additiamatitional platform rigs, the Company
operates self-moving platform drilling rigs andllitig rigs to be used on tension-leg platforms apdrs. The self-moving rig is designed to be
moved without the use of expensive derrick bargls.tension-leg platforms and spars allow drillopgerations to be conducted in much
deeper water than traditional fixed platforms.

In 1998, the Company put to work a new gati@n of six highly mobile/depth flexible land Hing rigs (individually the "FlexRig®").
The FlexRig has been able to significantly reduesrage rig move and drilling times compared to Eimidepth-rated traditional land rigs. In
addition, the FlexRig allows a greater depth fldikipof between 8,000 to 18,000 feet and provigesater operating efficiency. The original
rigs were designated as FlexRig1l rigs. SubsequahtyCompany built and completed 12 new FlexRig&.1n 2001, the Company announced
that it would build an additional 25 new FlexRigfiese new rigs, known as "FlexRig3 rigs", wererthgt generation of FlexRigs which
incorporated new drilling technology and new enmimental and safety design. This new design incluaedjrated top drive, AC electric dri
hydraulic BOP handling system, hydraulic tubulaketap and break-out system, split crown and tragetilocks and an enlarged drill floor
that enables simultaneous crew activities. All 2these FlexRig3s were completed by June of 200Bs&quently, the Company constructed
seven more FlexRig3s at an approximate cost of2hillion each. Construction of these rigs was clatgal by March of 2004.

Since fiscal 2005, the Company has entertedseparate drilling contracts with 25 exploratemd production companies to build and
operate a total of 127 new FlexRigs. Of the 12&Rigs, 49 are FlexRig3s and 78 are FlexRig4s (ilesdbelow). Each of the drilling
contracts provides for a minimum fixed contractrtesf at least three years, with drilling servicede performed on a daywork contract basis.
At September 30, 2008, the Company had complet2dbithe 127 FlexRigs with the remaining 25 expedtebe completed by the end of
calendar 2009. The total construction cost forlthé-rig project is expected to approximate $2.0dmi) or approximately $15 million per
FlexRig.

While the new FlexRig3s are similar to @empany's existing FlexRig3s, the FlexRig4s arégaes! to efficiently drill more shallow
depth wells of between 4,000 and 14,000 feet. TerRtg4 design includes a trailerized version arsttidding version, which incorporate new
environmental and safety design. This new desigluites a pipe handling system which allows theaigotentially be operated by a reduced
crew and eliminates the need for a casing stalobvei mast.

While the trailerized version provides foore efficient well site to well site rig movesethkidding version allows for drilling of up to 22
wells from a single pad which results in reduced@mmental impact. The effective use of technolaynportant to the maintenance of the
Company's competitive position within the drillimglustry. As a result of the importance of techgglto the Company's business, we expe
continue to develop technology internally.

The Company assembles new FlexRigs atifscgast facility near Houston, Texas, and alsthatCompany's 123,000 square foot
fabrication facility located on approximately 1Irex near Tulsa, Oklahoma.

The Company's Houston rig assembly facditg the facilities of its primary rig fabricatarstained minor damage and loss of power due
to Hurricane Ike. However, there has been no natadverse effect upon the Company's businesdgtigeries, operations or financial
condition due to Hurricane lke.

Drilling Contracts

The Company's drilling contracts are oledithrough competitive bidding or as a result @fatations with customers, and often cover
multi-well and multi-year projects. Each drillinigyroperates
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under a separate drilling contract. During fisda0@, all drilling services were performed on a "\dayk" contract basis, under which the
Company charges a fixed rate per day, with theeptetermined by the location, depth and compleithe well to be drilled, operating
conditions, the duration of the contract, and thegetitive forces of the market. The Company hasipusly performed contracts on a
combination "footage" and "daywork" basis, undefchithe Company charged a fixed rate per foot & kloilled to a stated depth, usually no
deeper than 15,000 feet, and a fixed rate per alathé remainder of the hole. Contracts performed tfootage" basis involve a greater
element of risk to the contractor than do contraet$ormed on a "daywork" basis. Also, the Complaag previously accepted "turnkey"
contracts under which the Company charges a fiwedts deliver a hole to a stated depth and ageeksnish services such as testing, coring
and casing the hole which are not normally dona tiootage" basis. "Turnkey" contracts entail vagydegrees of risk greater than the usual
"footage" contract. The Company has not acceptgdfantage" or "turnkey" contracts for at least thst ten years. The Company believes
under current market conditions, "footage" andrikery" contract rates do not adequately compensatigactors for the added risks. The
duration of the Company's drilling contracts areslivio-well" or for a fixed term. "Well-to-well" cotracts are cancelable at the option of either
party upon the completion of drilling at any oni sFixed-term contracts customarily provide fontmation at the election of the customer,
with an "early termination payment" to be paidhe Company if a contract is terminated prior togkpiration of the fixed term. However,
under certain limited circumstances such as destruof a drilling rig, bankruptcy of the Comparsystained unacceptable performance by the
Company or delivery of a rig beyond certain gracé/ar liquidated damage periods, no early termimaiayment would be paid to the
Company.

Excluding the fixed-term contracts coverthg 102 new-build FlexRigs completed as of Sep&rr3b, 2008, the Company had 16 rigs
under fixed-term contracts as of the end of fi@8. While the original duration for these curréix¢d-term contracts are for twelve-month to
three-year periods, some fixed-term and well-tohaghtracts are expected to be extended for lopggods than the original terms. However,
the contracting parties have no legal obligatioextend the contracts. Contracts generally comtaiewal or extension provisions exercisable
at the option of the customer at prices mutualleagble to the Company and the customer. In mettrines contracts provide for additional
payments for mobilization and demobilization.

Backlog

The Company's contract drilling backloginigethe expected future revenue from executed aotgwith original terms in excess of one
year, as of October 31, 2008 and 2007 was $3,3llibmand $1,969 million, respectively. The increas the Company's backlog from 200°
2008 is primarily due to the execution of additibloag-term contracts for the operation of new Res. Approximately 66.0 percent of the
total October 2008 backlog is not reasonably exquktd be filled in fiscal 2009. Term contracts oasarily provide for termination at the
election of the customer with an "early terminatp@yment” to be paid to the Company if a contrateiminated prior to the expiration of the
fixed term. However, under certain limited circuarstes, such as destruction of a drilling rig, baptay of the Company, sustained
unacceptable performance by the Company or deliokayrig beyond certain grace and/or liquidatechdge periods, no early termination
payment would be paid to the Company. In additioportion of the backlog represents term contriaetaew rigs that will be constructed in
the future. The Company obtains certain key rig ponents from a single or limited number of vendmr&abricators. Certain of these vendors
or fabricators are thinly capitalized independanhpanies located on the Texas gulf coast. Thergfiiseuptions in rig component deliveries
may occur. Accordingly, the actual amount of reverarned may vary from the backlog reported. Seen"lLA. Risk Factors."

3
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The following table sets forth the totatkig by reportable segment as of October 31, 20@B2007, and the percentage of the
October 31, 2008 backlog not reasonably expectée filled in fiscal 2009:

Total Backlog Revenue

Reportable Percentage Not Reasonabl

Segment 10/31/200i  10/31/200° Expected to be Filled in Fiscal 20C
(in millions)

U.S. Land $ 2,87¢ $ 1,69¢ 64.1%

Offshore 19¢ 234 75.1%

International 29¢ 39 78.4%

$ 3,374 $ 1,96¢

U.S. LAND DRILLING

At the end of September 2008, 2007 and 20@6Company had 185, 157 and 113 respectivelys ¢dnd rigs available for work in the
United States. The total number of rigs at the @friiscal 2008 increased by a net of 28 rigs frava ¢énd of fiscal 2007, resulting from new
FlexRigs placed into service. The Company's U.& laperations contributed approximately 76 per¢@hi542.0 million) of the Company's
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 2868 pared with approximately 72 percent ($1,174iliam) of consolidated operating
revenues during fiscal 2007 and approximately G8qre ($829.1 million) of consolidated operatingerues during fiscal 2006. Rig utilizati
in fiscal 2008 was approximately 96 percent, dovamfapproximately 97 percent in fiscal 2007 ang88:ent in 2006. The Company's flee
FlexRigs and highly mobile rigs maintained an ageratilization of approximately 98 percent duriigcél 2008 while the Company's
conventional rigs had an average utilization rdtepproximately 80 percent. A rig is consideredbéoutilized when it is operated or being
moved, assembled or dismantled under contraché\tlose of fiscal 2008, 182 land rigs were working of 185 available rigs.

OFFSHORE DRILLING

The Company's offshore operations conteb@pproximately 8 percent ($154.5 million in fis2808 and $123.1 million in fiscal 2007)
the Company's consolidated operating revenuesglboth fiscal years, compared to approximately di2@nt ($154.5 million) of the
Company's consolidated operating revenues duriinglf2006. Rig utilization in fiscal 2008 was appnaately 75 percent, up from
approximately 65 percent in fiscal 2007 and 69 @etrn 2006. At the end of fiscal 2008, the Comphag eight of its nine offshore platform
rigs under contract and continued to work underagament contracts for three customer-owned rigs.riéinagement contract for one rig
located offshore Equatorial Guinea terminated iyeéscal 2008 but the Company has continued urdstandby contract. The Company is
currently negotiating a new long-term contract quitorial Guinea, and the Company anticipatesmetgrto a full dayrate in fiscal 2010.
Revenues from drilling services performed for tlmmpany's largest offshore drilling customer totaegroximately 40 percent of offshore
revenues during fiscal 2008.

INTERNATIONAL LAND DRILLING
General

The Company's international land operatimorgributed approximately 16 percent ($328.2 wnil)iof the Company's consolidated
operating revenues during fiscal 2008, comparel agpiproximately 20 percent ($320.3 million) of colidated operating revenues during
fiscal 2007 and 19 percent ($230.8 million) in &#s2006. Rig utilization in fiscal 2008 was 82 pamtand 90 percent in fiscal 2007 and 2006.

Venezuela

Venezuelan operations continue to be affignt part of the Company's operations. The Camypsorked exclusively for the Venezuelan
state petroleum company, PDVSA and a PDVSA-ownélibéé, during fiscal 2008 and revenues from thvierk accounted for approximately
51 percent of international operating revenues.eRags generated from Venezuelan drilling operatioméributed approximately

4
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8 percent ($167.2 million in fiscal 2008 and $12mi8iion in fiscal 2007) of the Company's consotilh operating revenues for both fiscal
years compared to approximately 7 percent ($84lgom)i of consolidated operating revenues durirsgdi 2006. The Company had 11 1
working in Venezuela at the end of fiscal 2008.

The Company's rig utilization rate in Veuela increased from approximately 92 percent duiswl 2007 to approximately 97 percent in
fiscal 2008. Rig utilization in 2006 was 83 percent

Ecuador

At the end of fiscal 2008, the Company fad rigs in Ecuador. During fiscal 2008, the Comp#ransferred two rigs from Ecuador to
Colombia and sold two rigs that had been idle. Thenpany's utilization rate was 59 percent durisgdi 2008, down from 89 percent in fiscal
2007 and 100 percent in fiscal 2006. Revenues g&teby Ecuadorian drilling operations contribuapgroximately 3 percent ($55.1 million)
of the Company's consolidated operating revenugaglfiscal 2008, as compared with approximatefyeécent ($93.9 million) of consolidated
operating revenues during fiscal 2007 and approwatp& percent ($88.7 million) of consolidated agtérg revenues during fiscal 2006.
Revenues from drilling services performed for tt@any's largest customer in Ecuador totaled ajpetely 1 percent of consolidated
operating revenues and approximately 6 percemnttefriational operating revenues during fiscal 200 Ecuadorian drilling contracts are
primarily with large international or national @bmpanies.

Other Locations

In addition to its operations in Venezugha Ecuador, at the end of fiscal 2008, the Combaclfive rigs in Argentina, five rigs in
Colombia and one rig in Tunisia. Additionally, fooew FlexRigs were completed and ready for deliarg$eptember 30, 2008.

At the end of October 2008, all rigs in Angina, Colombia and Tunisia were fully contractBao FlexRigs were mobilized to Colombia
and commenced operations. Five FlexRigs, incluthiegthree rigs completed as of September 30, 20@8cheduled to be mobilized to
Argentina during fiscal 2009.

FINANCIAL

Information relating to revenues, totalessind operating income by reportable operatiggheats may be found on, and is incorporated
by reference to, pages 77 through 81 of the Conipamnual Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

EMPLOYEES

The Company had 6,198 employees withinthiged States (14 of which were part-time employees 1,172 employees in international
operations as of September 30, 2008.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Information relating to the Company's intraddress and the Company's SEC filings may ur&dfon, and is incorporated by reference
to, page 83 of the Company's Annual Report (ExHiBito this Form 10-K).

ltem 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the risk factors discussewhere in this Report, the Company cautionstti@following "Risk Factors” could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's busiffi@ss\cial condition and results of operations.

A deteriorating global economy may affect the Compay's business.

As a result of recent volatility in oil amétural gas prices and substantial uncertaintigercapital markets due to the deteriorating global
economic environment, the Company is unable tordete whether its customers will reduce spendingxploration and development drilli
or whether customers
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and/or vendors and suppliers will be able to acfinascing necessary to sustain their current lefelperations, fulfill their commitments
and/or fund future operations and obligations. d@iéteriorating global economic environment may impadustry fundamentals, and the
potential resulting decrease in demand for drilligg could cause the drilling industry to cycléoilm downturn. These conditions could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business.

The contract drilling business is highly competitie.

Competition in contract drilling involveaah factors as price, rig availability, efficien@gndition and type of equipment, reputation,
operating safety, and customer relations. Compatis primarily on a regional basis and may vagnsicantly by region at any particular tin
Land drilling rigs can be readily moved from ongiom to another in response to changes in levedstfity, and an oversupply of rigs in any
region may result, leading to increased price cditipe.

Although many contracts for drilling seregcare awarded based solely on price, the Compaspden successful in establishing loergr
relationships with certain customers which havevedid the Company to secure drilling work even thotige Company may not have been the
lowest bidder for such work. The Company has caetihto attempt to differentiate its services bagmsh its FlexRigs and its engineering
design expertise, operational efficiency, safety anvironmental awareness. This strategy is Idestefe when lower demand for drilling
services intensifies price competition and makesadte difficult or impossible to compete on anyibagher than price. Also, future
improvements in operational efficiency and safstytie Company's competitors could negatively affieetCompany's ability to differentiate
its services.

The Company's operations are subject to a number adperational risks, including weather.

The drilling operations of the Company subject to the many hazards inherent in the busjmesluding inclement weather, blowouts .
well fires. These hazards could cause personalyinfuspend drilling operations, seriously damagéestroy the equipment involved and ce
substantial damage to producing formations andgtneunding areas. The Company's offshore drillipgrations are also subject to potenti
greater environmental liability, adverse sea cdaost and platform damage or destruction due tasiof with aircraft or marine vessels.
Specifically, the Company operates several platfogs in the Gulf of Mexico. The Gulf of Mexico egpences hurricanes and other extreme
weather conditions on a frequent basis. Damagesdawg high winds and turbulent seas could potdptiairtail operations on such platform
rigs for significant periods of time until the dageacan be repaired. Moreover, even if the Compauigtéorm rigs are not directly damaged by
such storms, the Company may experience disruptioogerations due to damage to customer platf@mnasother related facilities in the area.

The Company has a new-build rig assemidiitialocated near the Houston, Texas ship chanilsb, the Company's principal fabricator
and other vendors are located in the gulf coasbredue to their location, these facilities argpesed to potentially greater hurricane damage.

Fixed-term contracts may in certain instances be teninated without an early termination payment.

Fixed-term drilling contracts customarilopide for termination at the election of the cuséw, with an "early termination payment” to be
paid to the Company if a contract is terminatedmto the expiration of the fixed term. Howeverdencertain limited circumstances, such as
destruction of a drilling rig, bankruptcy of the i@pany, sustained unacceptable performance by thgp&ay or delivery of a rig beyond
certain grace and/or liquidated damage periodganly termination payment would be paid to the Canyp Even if an early termination
payment is owed to the Company, the recent detgiigy global economy may affect the customer'stglid pay the early termination
payment.

The Company's operations present risks of loss thaif not insured or indemnified against, could advesely affect our results of
operations.

The Company insures its rigs and equipraeestimated replacement cost at the inceptiohepblicy. The Company self-insures a
$1 million per occurrence deductible, as well apéfent of the estimated replacement cost of ofeshigs and 30 percent of the estimated
replacement cost of its land
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rigs and equipment. Damage from named wind stosrfimited to $100 million in the aggregate and plee occurrence deductible increases to
$3.5 million. Rig property insurance coverage eapin May 2009. No insurance is carried against édarnings or business interruption.
Company is unable to obtain significant amountssfirance to cover risks of underground resernvamalge; however, the Company is
generally indemnified under its drilling contraétsm this risk.

The Company has insurance coverage for oeimepsive general liability, automobile liabilityprker's compensation and employer's
liability. Generally, casualty deductibles are $illion or $2 million per occurrence, depending ohether a claim occurs inside or outside of
the United States. The Company maintains certdiardhsurance coverages with deductibles as higtb asillion. Insurance is purchased over
deductibles to reduce the Company's exposure &straphic events. The Company retains a signifipartion of its expected losses under its
worker's compensation, general liability and autbitediability programs. The Company records estesdor incurred outstanding liabilities
for unresolved worker's compensation, generalllis@nd for claims that are incurred but not répdr Estimates are based on adjuster
estimates, historical experience or statisticalhoés$ that the Company believes are reliable. N@heth, insurance estimates include certain
assumptions and management judgments regardirfgetiigency and severity of claims, claim developngamd settlement practices.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may prothaterially different amounts of expense that wdaddeported under these programs.

No assurance can be given that all or eigyoof the Company's coverage will not be cancetlaring fiscal 2009 or that insurance
coverage will continue to be available at ratessttered reasonable. No assurance can be givethth@ompany's insurance and
indemnification arrangements will adequately proteagainst all liabilities that could result frotine hazards of its drilling operations.
Incurring a liability for which the Company is rfoilly insured or indemnified could materially aftdbe Company's results of operations.

Shortages of drilling equipment and supplies coulédversely affect our operations.

The contract drilling business is highllgal. During periods of increased demand for caettdrilling services, delays in delivery and
shortages of drilling equipment and supplies caruncThese risks are intensified during periodsmte industry experiences significant new
drilling rig construction or refurbishment. Any sudelays or shortages could have a material adesiset on the Company's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company depends on a limited number of thinly @pitalized vendors, the loss of any of which couldisrupt the Company's
operations.

Certain key rig components are either pasel from or fabricated by a single or limited nemaf vendors, and the Company has no
long-term contracts with many of these vendors.r@lges could occur in these essential componemtsadan interruption of supply or
increased demands in the industry. If the Compaay wnable to procure certain of such rig componé&nisuld be required to reduce its rig
construction or other operations, which could haveaterial adverse effect on the Company's busifiaasicial condition and results of
operations.

If the Company's principal fabricator, lted on the Texas gulf coast, was unable or unwilincontinue fabricating rig components, then
the Company would have to transfer this work teoticceptable fabricators. This transfer couldltéssignificant delay in the completion of
new FlexRigs. Any significant interruption in thebfication of rig components could have a matexiierse impact on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of openat

Certain key rig components are obtainethfu@ndors that are, in some cases, thinly capidjimdependent companies that generate
significant portions of their business from the Qamy or from a small group of companies in the gnérdustry. These vendors may be
disproportionately affected by any loss of busindssvnturn in the energy industry or reduction navailability of credit. Therefore,
disruptions in rig component delivery may occurd aach disruptions and terminations could have tnah adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of openat
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Oil and natural gas prices are volatile, and low pices could negatively affect our financial resultin the future.

The Company's operations can be materdlbcted by low oil and gas prices. The Companjebek that any significant reduction in oil
and gas prices could depress the level of exptorathd production activity and result in a corresping decline in demand for the Company's
services. Worldwide military, political and econ@neivents, including initiatives by the OrganizatafrPetroleum Exporting Countries, may
affect both the demand for, and the supply ofand gas. Fluctuations during the last few yeatheénrdemand and supply of oil and gas have
contributed to, and are likely to continue to cimtte to, price volatility. Any prolonged reductiomdemand for the Company's services could
have a material adverse effect on the Companyigdss financial condition and results of operation

International uncertainties and local laws could adersely affect the Company's business.

International operations are subject teadempolitical, economic and other uncertainties erecountered in U.S. operations, including
increased risks of terrorism, kidnapping of empésjeexpropriation of equipment as well as expraiprzof a particular oil company operatc
property and drilling rights, taxation policiesyéign exchange restrictions, currency rate fluetustand general hazards associated with
foreign sovereignty over certain areas in whichrapiens are conducted. There can be no assuraatcthére will not be changes in local laws,
regulations and administrative requirements otiniterpretation thereof which could have a mateathlerse effect on the profitability of the
Company's operations or on the ability of the Comypta continue operations in certain areas.

Because of the impact of local laws, thenBany's future operations in certain areas mayhbducted through entities in which local
citizens own interests and through entities (inciggoint ventures) in which the Company holds oalgninority interest or pursuant to
arrangements under which the Company conducts tipesainder contract to local entities. While thentpany believes that neither operating
through such entities nor pursuant to such arraegémwould have a material adverse effect on thapgamy's operations or revenues, there
be no assurance that the Company will in all chseable to structure or restructure its operattorconform to local law (or the administration
thereof) on terms acceptable to the Company.

Venezuela continues to experience signifigmlitical, economic and social instability. lmetevent that extended labor strikes occur or
turmoil increases, the Company could experiencetapes in labor and/or materials and supplies macg$o operate some or all of its
Venezuelan drilling rigs, which could have a mateaidverse effect on the Company's business, fiaboandition and results of operations.

During the mid-1970s, the Venezuelan gowemt nationalized the exploration and productiosifiess. At the present time it appears the
Venezuelan government will not nationalize the caettdrilling business. Any such nationalizatiomicbresult in the Company's loss of all ¢
portion of its assets and business in Venezuela.

Although the Company attempts to minimize potential impact of such risks by operating orenthan one geographical area, during
fiscal 2008, approximately 16 percent of the Conyfsmoonsolidated operating revenues were genefiatedthe international contract drilling
business. During fiscal 2008, approximately 95 petof the international operating revenues wesmfoperations in South America and
approximately 71 percent of South American opegatévenues were from Venezuela and Ecuador.

The Company's business and results of operations m&e adversely affected by foreign currency devalden.
General

Contracts for work in foreign countries geadly provide for payment in United States dollascept for amounts required to meet local
expenses. However, government-owned petroleum coiegpare more frequently requesting that a gregatgyortion of these payments be
made in local currencies. Based upon current inddion, the Company believes that exposure to piaddosses from currency devaluation is
immaterial in Colombia, Equatorial Guinea, Trinidatd Tunisia. In those countries, all receivables @ayments are currently in U.S. dollars.
Cash balances are kept at an insignificant levéthvassists in reducing exposure.
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Argentina

In 2002, Argentina suffered a 60 perceniatleation of the peso. The Company invoices in (Y8allars and is paid in pesos equivaler
the dollar invoice. The Company remits the doltarghe parent by exchanging pesos through the @leBénk. The exchange rate between the
U.S. dollar and the Argentine peso has stayed mahiarrow range for the past seven years anddalf2008, the Company experienced an
immaterial currency loss.

In order to establish a source of locatency to meet current obligations in Argentine gesbe Company borrowed in the form of an
unsecured short-term note from a local bank in Atiga at the market interest rate designated byp#m. The outstanding balance of
approximately $1.7 million along with interest wzed in full subsequent to September 30, 2008.

Venezuela

On January 1, 2008, the Venezuelan govenhofenged the official Venezuelan currency fromtiolivar to the bolivar fuerte
(2150 bolivars equals 2.15 bolivar fuerte).

The Company is exposed to risks of curradeyaluation in Venezuela primarily as a resubaivar fuerte receivable balances and
bolivar fuerte cash balances. In Venezuela, apprataly 60 percent of the Company's billings argi8. dollars and 40 percent in bolivar
fuerte. The significance of this arrangement is &ven though the dollar-based invoices may be ipdidlivar fuerte, the Company,
historically, has usually been able to convertliblvar fuerte into U.S. dollars in a timely manmed thus avoid, in large measure, devaluation
losses pertaining to the dollar-based invoices paimblivar fuerte. However, this arrangement feetive only in the absence of exchange
controls. In January 2003, the Venezuelan goverhmetinto effect exchange controls that fixed éixehange rate and also prohibited the
Company, as well as other companies, from comgehaiivars into U.S. dollars through the CentrahBa

As part of the exchange controls regulattba Venezuelan government provided a mechanismhigh companies could request
conversion of bolivar balances into U.S. dollanscobmpliance with such regulations, the Compandtober of 2003, submitted a request to
the Venezuelan government seeking permission idetid earnings, which would convert 14 billion lalis into U.S. dollars. In January 20
the Venezuelan government approved the Compargteseto convert bolivar cash balances to U.Sadolind allowed the remittance of
$8.8 million U.S. dollars as dividends to the Un&sed parent. This was the first dividend remitteder the new regulation. On January 16,
2006, a dividend of $6.5 million U.S. dollars wasnitted to the U.Sbased parent. On August 18, 2006, the Companyeapfair a $9.3 milliol
dividend. The Venezuelan government subsequenflyoapd $7.2 million of this dividend and on March?2607, the $7.2 million was paid to
the U.S.-based parent. As a consequence, the Cetagaposure to currency devaluation was reducatidse amounts.

On July 22, 2008, the Company made apjdicatwith the Venezuelan government requestingpproval to convert bolivar fuerte cash
balances to U.S. dollars. When and if the Compangives approval from the Venezuelan governmeetCitmpany's Venezuelan subsidiary
will remit approximately $28.4 million as a dividegto its U.S.-based parent, thus reducing the Cogip@&xposure to currency devaluation.

While the Company has been successful failming government approval for conversion of batifuerte cash balances to U.S. dollars,
there is no guarantee that future conversion to dboBars will be permitted. In the event that cersion to U.S. dollars would be prohibited,
then bolivar fuerte cash balances would increadecapose the Company to increased risk of devaluati

As stated above, the Company is exposedis of currency devaluation in Venezuela prinyaais a result of bolivar fuerte receivable
cash balances. As a result of a 12 percent devatuat the bolivar during fiscal 2005, the Compaxperienced total devaluation losses of
$0.6 million during that same period.

Past devaluation losses may not be refledf the actual potential for future devaluatiosdes. Even though Venezuela continues to
operate under the exchange controls in place an¥¢inezuelan bolivar fuerte exchange rate is fede2l 15 bolivar fuerte to one U.S. dollar,
the exact amount and timing of devaluation is urater At September 30, 2008, the Company had a4$#8lion cash balance
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denominated in bolivar fuerte included in the bakeheet and exposed to the risk of currency datiatu While the Company is unable to
predict future devaluation in Venezuela, if fis2@D9 balance sheet components are similar to @8, and if a 10 percent to 30 percent
devaluation were to occur, the Company could egpee potential currency devaluation losses ranyorg approximately $7 million to
$18 million.

The Company derives its revenue in Venezfrem PDVSA, the Venezuelan state-owned petroleampany. At the end of fiscal 2008,
the Company had a net receivable from PDVSA of exiprately $65.5 million, of which approximately 85million was 90 days old or older.
At November 1, 2008, such receivable balance hatkdsed to approximately $63.9 million, of whiclpegximately $13.5 million was 90 de
old or older. The Company continues to communicate PDVSA regarding the settlement of the outsiagdeceivables.

The Company's Venezuelan subsidiary hasved notification from PDVSA that reimbursementb. dollar invoices previously paid
bolivar fuerte will be made only when supportingdmentation has been approved. The approval arstgubnt payment would result in
reducing the foreign currency exposure by approtetgab46.3 million. The Company is unable to detieerthe timing of when payment will
be received.

While the collection of the receivablegifficult and time consuming due to PDVSA policesd procedures, the Company, at this time,
has no reason to believe the amounts will not lie: phistorically, PDVSA payments on accounts reaéie have, by traditional business
measurements, been slower than those of othegforeistomers of the Company. However, the faildife@VSA to make payments on
outstanding receivables, or a continued increads itelay in making payments could have a matadakrse effect on the Company's busir
financial condition and results of operations.

Government regulations and environmental laws coulddversely affect the Company's business.

Many aspects of the Company's operatioasalject to government regulation, including thedating to drilling practices and methods
and the level of taxation. In addition, the Unittshtes and various other countries have enviroraheggulations which affect drilling
operations. Drilling contractors may be liable fimmages resulting from pollution. Under United &atgulations, drilling contractors must
establish financial responsibility to cover potahtiability for pollution of offshore waters. Geradly, the Company is indemnified under
drilling contracts from liability arising from paltion, except in certain cases of surface pollutidowever, the enforceability of
indemnification provisions in foreign countries nag questionable.

The Company believes that it is in subsaigbmpliance with all legislation and regulaticaféecting its operations in the drilling of oil
and gas wells and in controlling the discharge a$tes. To date, compliance has not materially gftethe capital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position of the Company, although thesasures may add to the costs of drilling openatiddditional legislation or regulation
may reasonably be anticipated, and the effect tiiem@ operations cannot be predicted.

Variable rate indebtedness subjects the Company taterest rate risk, which could cause our debt selige obligations to increase
significantly.

At September 30, 2008, the Company hadanding, $175 million intermediate-term unsecurebtdvith staged maturities from
August 2009 to August 2014, with varying fixed iretst rates for each maturity series. The averageest rate during the next four years on
this debt is 6.5 percent, after which it increase8.6 percent. The fair value of this debt at 8eyiter 30, 2008, was approximately
$198 million.

The Company has in place a $400 millioric@aimsecured credit facility which expires in Dedger of 2011. The Company had
$325 million borrowed and three letters of crediating $25.9 million outstanding against the fiygiat September 30, 2008. As of
November 20, 2008, borrowings under the facilitgd baclined to $290 million. The interest rate om lforrowings is based on a spread ¢
LIBOR and the Company pays a commitment fee bargti@unused balance of the facility. The spreat tiIBOR as well as the
commitment fee is determined according to a scaseth on a ratio of the Company's total debt td tatpitalization. The Company also has
option to borrow at the prime rate for maturitiéddess than 30 days.
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At November 26, 2008, the Company was $tualsions with the syndicate leader of the cutvank facility about securing another
separate bank facility for $100 to $150 million. Mgtthere is no certainty that such a facility abbk placed, the Company expects that one
could be completed and funded by late December 00&nuary 2009. Should the Company be unabledciors additional financing, there i
risk that it would be forced to liquidate a portiohits investment portfolio at depressed markétgs in order to fund its capital expenditures
planned for 2009.

The Company also has an agreement withgdesbank for an unsecured line of credit for $8iam. The interest rate on borrowings is
equal to the prime rate minus 1.75%. At SeptemBeB08, the Company had no outstanding borronéggénst the credit line.

Interest rates could rise for various re@asa the future and increase the Company's totatést expense, depending upon the amount
borrowed against the credit lines.

The Company's securities portfolio may lose signifiant value due to a decline in equity prices and bér market-related risks, thus
impacting the Company's debt ratio and financial stength.

At September 30, 2008, the Company hadtigio of securities with a total market value$884 million. These securities are subject to
a wide variety of market-related risks that cowldstantially reduce or increase the market valub®Company's holdings. Except for the
Company's holdings in Atwood Oceanics, Inc. ang#tments in limited partnerships carried at cost portfolio is recorded at fair value on
balance sheet with changes in unrealized aftevdtue reflected in the equity section of its baksbeet. Any reduction in market value would
have an impact on the Company's debt ratio andidiahstrength. At November 20, 2008, the markétevaf the portfolio had dropped to
approximately $175 million.

The loss of one or a number of our large customerould have a material adverse effect on our busingsfinancial condition and results
of operations.

In fiscal 2008, the Company received apjnaxely 59 percent of its consolidated operatingreies from the Company's ten largest
contract drilling customers and approximately 2icpat of its consolidated operating revenues freaenGompany's three largest customers
(including their affiliates). The Company believhat its relationship with all of these customergdod; however, the loss of one or more ¢
larger customers would have a material adversetaffethe Company's business, financial conditiwh r@sults of operations.

Competition for experienced technical personnel mapegatively impact our operations or financial reslts.

The Company utilizes highly skilled persehim operating and supporting its businessesmeg of high utilization, it can be difficult to
find qualified individuals. Although to date the @pany's operations have not been materially affiloyecompetition for personnel, an
inability to obtain a sufficient number of qualifigersonnel could materially impact the Company&iress, financial condition and results of
operations.

New technologies may cause the Company's drilling ethods and equipment to become less competitive stdting in an adverse effect
on the Company's financial condition and results obperations.

Although the Company takes measures torerthat it uses advanced oil and natural gasmygiiechnology, changes in technology or
improvements in competitors' equipment could makeGompany's equipment less competitive or recigr@ficant capital investments to
keep its equipment competitive.
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ltem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has received no written comsegarding its periodic or current reports from staff of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that were issued 180 days or more pregeide end of its 2008 fiscal year and that remiresolved.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
CONTRACT DRILLING

The following table sets forth certain infation concerning the Company's U.S. drilling ragsof September 30, 2008:

Location Rig Optimum Depth (Feet Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
FLEXRIGS
TEXAS 164 18,000 SCR (FlexRigl 1,500
TEXAS 16t 18,000 SCR (FlexRig1 1,500
TEXAS 16€ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig1 1,500
TEXAS 167 18,000 SCR (FlexRig1 1,500
TEXAS 16¢€ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig1 1,500
MISSISSIPPI 16¢ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig1 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 17¢ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig?2 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 18C 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 181 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 182 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 187 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 184 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 18t 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 18€ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 187 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
TEXAS 18¢€ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,500
OKLAHOMA 18¢ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig?2 1,500
TEXAS 21C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 211 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 212 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 217 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 214 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
COLORADO 21 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 21€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
OKLAHOMA 217 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 21¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 21¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 22C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
LOUISIANA 221 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 222 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 22% 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 224 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
OKLAHOMA 22°F 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 22€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 227 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 22¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 22¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 23C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 231 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 232 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
TEXAS 23% 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500

TEXAS 234 18,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,500
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Location Rig Optimum Depth (Feet Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
TEXAS 23E 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
CALIFORNIA 23€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 237 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 23¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
COLORADO 23¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
CALIFORNIA 24C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 241 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 24% 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 244 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 24E 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 24¢€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 247 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 24¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 24¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 25C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 251 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 252 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 25% 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 254 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 25E 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 25€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 257 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 25¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
NORTH DAKOTA 25¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 26C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
CALIFORNIA 261 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
CALIFORNIA 262 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 262 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 264 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 265 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 26€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 267 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 26¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 26¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
COLORADO 271 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 272 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 275 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 274 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 27t 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 27€ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 271 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 27¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 27¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 28C 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
NEW MEXICO 281 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
NEW MEXICO 282 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
NEW MEXICO 28:% 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
WYOMING 284 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 28¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 28¢€ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 287 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 28¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 28¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 29C 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 291 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
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Location Rig Optimum Depth (Feet Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
COLORADO 292 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
TEXAS 29: 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 294 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 29t 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 29¢€ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 297 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
UTAH 29¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 29¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 30C 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 301 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
TEXAS 30z 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
TEXAS 30z 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
TEXAS 304 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
TEXAS 30¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
NEW MEXICO 30€ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
WYOMING 307 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 30¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 30¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 31¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 311 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 31z 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 31¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 314 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
WYOMING 31¢% 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 31€ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 317 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 31¢€ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 31¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 32¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 321 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 322 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 327 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 324 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 32t 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
COLORADO 32¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 321 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 32¢ 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 331 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 33: 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 34( 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
TEXAS 341 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
TEXAS 34z 14,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,500
NEW MEXICO 37C 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 371 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 372 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 37: 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 374 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
TEXAS 37E 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
OKLAHOMA 37¢€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500

HIGHLY MOBILE RIGS

ARKANSAS 14C 10,000 Mechanical 900
OKLAHOMA 15¢ 10,000 SCR 900
TEXAS 15€ 12,000 Mechanical 1,200
WYOMING 15¢ 12,000 Mechanical 1,200
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Location Rig Optimum Depth (Feet Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
OKLAHOMA 141 14,000 Mechanical 1,200
TEXAS 142 14,000 Mechanical 1,200
OKLAHOMA 145 14,000 Mechanical 1,200
TEXAS 14t 14,000 Mechanical 1,200
TEXAS 15¢ 14,000 SCR 1,200
TEXAS 14¢ 16,000 SCR 1,200
TEXAS 147 16,000 SCR 1,200
COLORADO 154 16,000 SCR 1,500

CONVENTIONAL RIGS

OKLAHOMA 11C 12,000 SCR 700
OKLAHOMA 96 16,000 SCR 1,000
OKLAHOMA 11¢ 16,000 SCR 1,200
OKLAHOMA 11¢ 16,000 SCR 1,200
TEXAS 12C 16,000 SCR 1,200
TEXAS 171 16,000 SCR 1,000
NORTH DAKOTA 172 16,000 Mechanical 1,000
LOUISIANA 122 16,000 SCR 1,700
OKLAHOMA 162 18,000 SCR 1,500
LOUISIANA 79 20,000 SCR 2,000
OKLAHOMA 8C 20,000 SCR 1,500
OKLAHOMA 89 20,000 SCR 1,500
OKLAHOMA 92 20,000 SCR 1,500
OKLAHOMA 94 20,000 SCR 1,500
OKLAHOMA 98 20,000 SCR 1,500
TEXAS 97 26,000 SCR 2,000
TEXAS 99 26,000 SCR 2,000
LOUISIANA 137 26,000 SCR 2,000
TEXAS 14¢ 26,000 SCR 2,000
LOUISIANA 72 30,000 SCR 3,000
OKLAHOMA 73 30,000 SCR 3,000
TEXAS 12k 30,000 SCR 3,000
LOUISIANA 134 30,000 SCR 3,000
TEXAS 13€ 30,000 SCR 3,000
TEXAS 157 30,000 SCR 3,000
LOUISIANA 161 30,000 SCR 3,000
LOUISIANA 162 30,000 SCR 3,000

OFFSHORE PLATFORM RIGS

TRINIDAD 20< 20,000 Self-Erecting 2,500
TEXAS 20t 20,000 Self-Erecting 2,000
GULF OF MEXICO 20¢€ 20,000 Self-Erecting 1,500
GULF OF MEXICO 10C 30,000 Conventione 3,000
GULF OF MEXICO 10¢& 30,000 Conventione 3,000
GULF OF MEXICO 107 30,000 Conventione 3,000
GULF OF MEXICO 201 30,000 Tensior-leg 3,000
GULF OF MEXICO 20z 30,000 Tensior-leg 3,000

GULF OF MEXICO 204 30,000 Tensior-leg 3,000
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The following table sets forth informatiaiith respect to the utilization of the Company'§land and offshore drilling rigs for the
periods indicated:

Years ended September 3(
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

U.S. Land Rigs
Number of rigs at end of peric 87 91 11% 157 18t
Average rig utilization rate during period ( 87% 94% 9% 97% 96%
U.S. Offshore Platform Ric
Number of rigs at end of peric 11 11 9 9 9
Average rig utilization rate during period ( 48% 53% 69% 65% 75%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled or dismantled urafgract.
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The following table sets forth certain infation concerning the Company's internationalidglrigs as of September 30, 2008:

Drawworks:
Location Rig Optimum Depth (Feet Rig Type Horsepower
Argentina 122 26,000 SCR 2,100
Argentina 13¢ 30,000+ SCR 3,000
Argentina 151 30,000+ SCR 3,000
Argentina 17t 30,000 SCR 3,000
Argentina 177 30,000 SCR 3,000
Argentina 33t 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
Argentina 33€ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
Argentina 337 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
Colombia 133 30,000 SCR 3,000
Colombia 152 30,000+ SCR 3,000
Colombia 33z 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
Colombia 334 8,000 AC (FlexRig4 1,150
Colombia 17€ 18,000 SCR 1,500
Colombia 19C 26,000 SCR 2,000
Ecuadot 132 18,000 SCR 1,500
Ecuadot 121 20,000 SCR 1,700
Ecuadot 117 26,000 SCR 2,500
Ecuadot 13¢ 26,000 SCR 2,500
Tunisia 242 18,000 AC (FlexRig3 1,500
Venezuele 16C 26,000 SCR 2,000
Venezuele 113 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 11t 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 11€ 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 127 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 12¢ 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 12¢ 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 13E 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 15C 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 174 30,000 SCR 3,000
Venezuele 153 30,000+ SCR 3,000

The following table sets forth informatiaiith respect to the utilization of the Company*inational drilling rigs for the periods
indicated:

Years ended September 30,
2004 200¢  200¢ 2007  200€
Number of rigs at end of peric 32 26 27 27 30
Average rig utilization rate during period (1) 54% 77% 90% 90% 82%

(1) A rig is considered to be utilized when it is ogedhor being moved, assembled or dismantled uratgract.

2) Does not include rigs returned to the United Stidesajor modifications and upgrad:
STOCK PORTFOLIO

Information required by this item regardihg stock portfolio held by the Company may benfbon, and is incorporated by reference to,
page 26 of the Company's Annual Report (Exhibitdlthis Form 10-K) under the caption, "Managemebi&ussion & Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations."
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In connection with the Company's ForeigmrQpt Practices Act training, questions were rasledut the legality of certain past payments
by one of the Company's subsidiaries in connedctiitin the passage of materials through customs timlAmerica. In consultation with the
Audit and Governance Committees of the Board oé&iors, the Company engaged outside counsel asiflewtccountants to review these
payments, other transactions of the subsidiary team$actions at certain of the Company's otheratipes in Latin America. Although the
review is ongoing, outside counsel has substaytiainpleted a review of such subsidiary as wetlaxtain of the Company's other operations
in Latin America and, based on such review, the @amy believes the amount of such questionable paimie not material, and the Company
does not expect any material impact to the Compauritg financial statements. The Company has ctedabe Securities and Exchange
Commission and the U.S. Department of Justiceftwrim them of this matter, and intend to cooperatly fwith these governmental authorities.

In addition, the Company is subject to @asi claims that arise in the ordinary course dbitsiness. In the opinion of management, the
amount of ultimate liability with respect to thesations will not materially affect the financialgiton, results of operations or liquidity of the
Company. The Company is not a party to, and nories pfoperty is subject to, any material pendieggl proceedings.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The following table sets forth the named ages of the Company's executive officers, togetfith all positions and offices held with the
Company by such executive officers. Officers aeetedd to serve until the meeting of the Board a&Etors following the next Annual Meetil
of Stockholders and until their successors have blegy elected and have qualified or until theiriearesignation or removal.

W. H. Helmerich, lll, 8¢ Chairman of the Board since 1960; Director sinc491
Hans Helmerich, 5 President and Chief Executive Officer since 198®efor since 198

Douglas E. Fears, 59  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offiseice June 2008; Vice President and Chief Firsui@ificer
sincel98¢

Steven R. Mackey, 57 Executive Vice President, Secretary and Generah€alsince June 2008; Secretary since 1990; ViesidRent and
General Counsel since 19

John W. Lindsay, 47  Executive Vice President, U.S. and Internationaé@pions of Helmerich & Payne International Drigico. since
2006; Vice President of U.S. Land Operations ofnitgich & Payne International Drilling Co. since I¢

M. Alan Orr, 57 Executive Vice President, Engineering and DevelagméHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Csince 200¢
Vice President and Chief Engineer of Helmerich &tralnternational Drilling Co. since 19!

Gordon K. Helm, 5! Vice President and Controller. Vice President si2@@8; Controller since 19¢
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PART I

Item 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUIT Y, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The principal market on which the Compamrgsimon stock is traded is the New York Stock Exgjeaunder the symbol "HP". The high
and low sale prices per share for the common dtorckach quarterly period during the past two figears as reported in the NYSEemposite

Transaction quotations follow:

2007

2008

Quarter High Low High Low

First $27.6" $21.2¢ $40.6( $29.4¢
Seconc 31.0C 22.7:2 47.8¢ 32.8¢
Third 36.57 30.0¢ 77.2¢ 45.57
Fourth 36.7¢ 27.6¢ 75.3¢ 39.3¢

The Company paid quarterly cash dividenging the past two years as shown in the followadge:

Paid per Share

Total Payment

Fiscal Fiscal
Quarter 2007 2008 2007 2008
First $.04¢ $.04t $4,654,29 $4,678,51
Seconc .04k .04t 4,656,46! 4,685,57!
Third .04k .04t 4,660,36; 4,706,05:
Fourth .04k .05C 4,667,30! 5,272,65

Payment of future dividends will dependeamnings and other factors.
As of November 21, 2008, there were 679mdolders of the Company's common stock as lisyetthe transfer agent's records.
Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes selectedrfitial information and should be read in conjunctigth the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes thereto and the relateddéaent's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Ctodiand Results of Operations
contained on pages 6 through 82 of the CompanysidirReport (Exhibit 13 to this Form X)- All per share amounts have been adjusted
result of a two-for-one stock split effective Jutte 2006.
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Five-year Summary of Selected Financial Data

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Operating revenue $ 589,05¢ $ 800,72t $1,224,81: $1,629,65 $2,036,54
Asset Impairmen 51,51¢ — — — —
Income from continuing operatiol 4,35¢ 127,60¢ 293,85¢ 449,26 461,73t
Income from continuing operations per common sl

Basic 0.04 1.2t 2.81 4.3t 4.4:

Diluted 0.04 1.2¢ 2.71 4.2 4.34
Total asset 1,406,84. 1,663,35 2,134,71: 2,885,36! 3,588,04!
Long-term debt 200,00( 200,00( 175,00( 445,00( 475,00(
Cash dividends declared per common sl 0.1612! 0.16¢ 0.172¢ 0.1¢ 0.18¢

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, paghasough 42 of the Company's Annual
Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) under the tiap "Management's Discussion & Analysis of Finah&@ondition and Results of
Operations."

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information required by this item may berfid under the caption "Risk Factors" beginning agep5 of this Report and on, and is
incorporated by reference to, the following pagethe Company's Annual Report (Exhibit 13 to thess 10-K) under Management's
Discussion & Analysis of Financial Condition andsiRks of Operations and in Notes to Consolidatedkéial Statements:

Market Risk Page
* Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R 37-39
» Credit Risk 39-40
e Commodity Price Risl 40-41
* Interest Rate Ris 41-42
» Equity Price Risl 42

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, pddahrough 82 of the Company's Annual
Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls &rdcedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this AnriR@port on Form 10-K, the Company's management,ruhdesupervision and
with the participation of the Company's Chief Ext@ci Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluatién effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company's disclosun&rais and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a} 15 (25d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) 8gptember 30, 2008. Based on that evaluation, tinep@ny's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer condéd that:

. the Company's disclosure controls and procedueesféective at ensuring that information requiredbé disclosed by tl
Company in the reports it files or submits under 8ecurities
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Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, suirethand reported within the time periods specifiethe SEC's
rules and forms; and

. the Company's disclosure controls and proceduresatgpsuch that important information flows to aympiate collectior
and disclosure points in a timely manner and dectfe to ensure that such information is accutealand
communicated to the Company's management, and kmaden to the Company's Chief Executive Officer &fdef
Financial Officer, particularly during the periodhen this Annual Report on Form 10-K was prepars@ppropriate to
allow timely decision regarding the required discice.

b) Management's Report on Internal Gdmver Financial Reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbfj and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) or 18d5(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Tompany's internal control over finan
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting principlée Company's internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that:

0] pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoeaisle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trensactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactionme@veded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of theg2my are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and the Board of Directors of the Compang; a

(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, eselisposition o
the Company's assets that could have a materedtefh the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degfreempliance with the policies or procedures rdateriorate.

Management, with the participation of the Compa@igef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeonducted its
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contreér financial reporting based on the frameworkniernal Control-tegratec
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission. This evauancluded reviev
of the documentation of controls, evaluation of diesign effectiveness of controls, testing of therating effectiveness of
controls and a conclusion on this evaluation. Alifio there are inherent limitations in the effeatiegs of any system of internal
control over financial reporting, based on the Camys evaluation, management has concluded th&dhgpany's internal
control over financial reporting was effective dSeptember 30, 2008.

The Company's independent registered public acoaufitm that audited the Company's financial sta¢ats, Ernst &
Young LLP, has issued an attestation report orCini@pany's internal control over financial reportifigis report appears below
at the end of this Item 9A of Form 10-K.

c) Changes in Internal Control Overdficial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internataawer financial reporting during the Comparfgarth fiscal quarter of
2008 that have materially affected, or are reasigriddely to materially affect, the Company's imet control over financial
reporting.

* k%
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited Helmerich & Payne, Inatsrnal control over financial reporting as of Sepber 30, 2008, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtrsy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission (the COSO
criteria). Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s managememegponsible for maintaining effective internal cohover financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal coaotret financial reporting included in the accompgagyManagement's Report of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express an opinion on the company's interoiatrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Helmerich & Payne, Inc. mained, in all material respects, effective ingrrontrol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets as of September 38,821D2007 and the related consolidated stateméimsome, shareholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodegh8eptember 30, 2008 of Helmerich & Payne, Ind.aur report dated November 25, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/S/ Ernst & Young LLF

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 25, 200
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This information (under the captions "Pregldl—Election of Directors," "Committees," "Corpter Governance" and "Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance") is immmarated by reference from the Company's definilvexy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held March 4, 200%e filed with the Commission not later than 12@<slafter September 30, 2008.
Information required under this item with respecekecutive officers under Item 401 of Regulatie Sppears under "Executive Officers of
the Company" in Part | of this Form 10-K.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethigscaple to its CEO, CFO and Senior Financial Qffic The text of such Code is located on
the Company's website under "Corporate Governaidt®"Company's Internet address is www.hpinc.cdme. Company intends to disclose
any amendments to or waivers from its Code of Ethitits website.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information regarding executive comgegtion (beginning with the caption "Executive Comgegion, Discussion and Analysis" and
ending with the caption "Potential Payments Upormiieation"), as well as director compensation aoichgensation committee interlocks and
insider participation (under the captions "DiredBmmpensation in Fiscal 2008" and "Compensation @itee Interlocks and Insider
Participation™) is incorporated by reference frdra Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the daiiMeeting of Stockholders to be held
March 4, 2009, to be filed with the Commission latér than 120 days after September 30, 2008.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

This information (under the captions "Surmyrnaf All Existing Equity Compensation Plans,” "Seity Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners" and "Security Ownership of Managementifié®rporated by reference from the Company's d@faiProxy Statement for the Annt
Meeting of Stockholders to be held March 4, 200%e filed with the Commission not later than 12@<slafter September 30, 2008.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

This information (under the captions "Tractions With Related Persons, Promoters and Cetaitrol Persons” and "Corporate
Governance") is incorporated by reference fromQbepany's definitive Proxy Statement for the Anrdeakting of Stockholders to be held
March 4, 2009, to be filed with the Commission labér than 120 days after September 30, 2008.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

This information (under the caption "AuBes") is incorporated by reference from the Comigatefinitive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held MarcR@09, to be filed with the Commission not latemtti20 days after September 30, 2008.

24




Table of Contents

PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

a)

1. Financial Statemeni: The following appear in the Company's AnnuapBrt to Stockholders (Exhibit 13 to this Form 1Peg the

pages indicated below and are incorporated hesemeference

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm 43
Consolidated Statements of Income for the YeareB&eptember 30, 2008, 2007 and 2 44
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@D30D7 45-46
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquitthioiYears Ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 47
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEEeaded September 30, 2008, 2007 and : 48
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 48-82

Financial Statement Schedu: All schedules are omitted as inapplicable egause the required information is contained in the
financial statements or included in the notes tioe

Exhibits. The following documents are included as exhitn this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Exhibitsdngorated by reference
are duly noted as suc

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hereinrbference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Annual Report on FArK to the Securities & Exchange Commission fecdil 2006, SEC
File No. 00-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company ampocated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of@rmanmpany's
Form ¢-K filed on October 11, 2007, SEC File No. -04221.

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leetwee Company and The Liberty National Bank angsT€ompany
of Oklahoma City, N.A. is incorporated herein bjerence to the Company's Form 8-A, dated Januarg9%, SEC File
No. 002-04221.

4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December & ,288tween the Company and UMB Bank, N.A. is inoccaped
herein by reference to Exhibit 4 of the Companymi-¢-K filed on December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.1 Consulting Services Agreement between W. H. Helohetil, and the Company dated March 30, 199 dsiporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Compswyinual Report on Form 10-K to the Securities Brdhange
Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC File No. (-04221.

*10.2 Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement betw&ehl. Helmerich, 11l and the Company dated Decen#r1990,
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1df.the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K toSeeurities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2006, SEC File Niil-04221.

*10.3 Second Amendment to Consulting Services Agreememtden W. H. Helmerich, 1ll, and the Company dated
September 11, 20086, is incorporated herein by eafar to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kdifgeptember 13,
2006, SEC File No. 0(-04221.
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*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.1C

*10.11

*10.12

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SaldEegbloyees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorpodaterein by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Annual Report anrfr 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commiskiofiscal 1996,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeétetrherich and Payne, Inc. is incorporated hergirelference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Annual Report on F&G¥K to the Securities and Exchange Commissioffisoal 1999, SEC
File No. 00-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Pimcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 98.the Company's
Registration Statement No. -34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for thelmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Rtamcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's RedisimeStatement No. 3--34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Helrmte&cPayne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan is incogped by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's Annual ReporfFonm 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commisiipbfiscal 1997,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Pimtorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 38.the Company's
Registration Statement No. 63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@26ck Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted StockalvAgreement,
(i) Incentive Stock Option Agreement and (iii) Nojpralified Stock Option Agreement are incorporatgddference to
Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's Registration Staterhen 33:-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeréor the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Stock Incemlan is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q todSeurities and
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2@®X2, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendextabit 10.3 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission for the quarter érddee 30, 2002,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2002, antdslgnerich & Payne International Drilling Co., Helreh & Payne, Inc.,
the several lenders from time to time party theratm Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated hetsimeference to
Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Quarterly Report @nnfr 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter
ended June 30, 2002, SEC File No.-04221.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2®3, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &ialnternational
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorpted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of tleen@any's Annual
Report on Form 1-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission faafi2005, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Mayp@42among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich & iay
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhil@itl5 of the Company's
Annual Report on Form -K to the Securities and Exchange Commission f@afi005, SEC File No. 0-04221.
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10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

10.2:

10.2¢

*10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2l®4, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., HelmericR&ne
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhiffit16 of the Company's
Annual Report on Form -K to the Securities and Exchange Commission faafi005, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July20B5, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &y e
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhilitl of the Company's
Form &K filed on July 13, 2005, SEC File No. (-04221.

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2006, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &fralnternatione
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorpted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of thenpany's Form 8« filed
on July 11, 2006, SEC File No. (-04221.

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dagsDber 18, 2006, among Helmerich & Payne Inteynati
Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Bank okl@homa, National Association is incorporated heksi reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Forr-K filed on December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

First Amendment to First Amended and Restated CAgtieement dated December 17, 2007, among Helmé&ric
Payne, Inc., Helmerich & Payne International DmijiCo., and Bank of Oklahoma, National Associatiimcorporated here
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Forn-K filed by the Company on December 18, 2C

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15, 200@ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.Cdelmerich &
Payne, Inc. and various insurance companies igpocated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 ef@ompany's Annual
Report on Form 1-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission faafi2002, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Credit Agreement dated December 18, 2006, amongéteth & Payne International Drilling Co., Helmdri& Payne, Inc.
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is iparated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of@wenpany's Form 8-K
filed on December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fihdrd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hetsy reference to
Exhibit 10.18 of the Company's Annual Report onnrdi0-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissiofigoal 2003,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

First Amendment to Lease between ASP, Inc. and Eetin & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by reffiee to Exhibit 10.1
of Form &K filed by the Company on May 29, 20(

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiwsaPlan is incorporated herein by reference toilkh0.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on September 9, 2004, SEC File No.-04221.

Shareholders Agreement and Registration Rightsexgent dated July 19, 2004 between Helmerich & Payteenational
Drilling Co. and Atwood Oceanics, Inc. is incorpie herein by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the ConymAmended
Schedule 13D filed on July 21, 20(

Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 2004, betwHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Codararious
underwriters is incorporated herein by referencéxbibit 1.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed on Ger 14, 2004, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

27




Table of Contents

*10.28 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for &xéve Officers is incorporated herein by referet@w&xhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on December 6, 2007, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.2¢ Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to Appetdixto the
Company's Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filedatgn26, 2006

*10.3C Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 200Bg-Term Incentive Plan: (i) Nonqualified Stockti®dn Agreement,
(i) Incentive Stock Option Agreement, and (iii) fected Stock Award Agreement are incorporateeineoy reference to
Exhibit 10.27 of the Company's Annual Report onnrdi0-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissiofigoal 2006,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

10.31 Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynerhgonal Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Indestrinc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on December 7, 2@HC File No. 001-
04221.

10.3Z Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmericragne International Drilling Co. and Southeast Telxalsistrial
Services, Inc. is incorporated herein by referandbe Company's Forr-K filed July 7, 2007, SEC File No. 0-04221.

10.3: Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwsmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andugheast Texas
Industries, Inc

10.3¢  Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwsmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andugheast Texas
Industrial Services, In¢

13. The Company's Annual Report to Shareholders foafi2008.
21, List of Subsidiaries of the Compar
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13at4(a) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAt934, a
amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 &dtEane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.Zz Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securiteh&nge Act of 1934, as
amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 &dtEane-Oxley Act of 2002

32. Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(, 3% adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, @ompany has duly caused this Report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

By /s/ HANS HELMERICH

Hans Helmerich, President and Chief Executive ®i
Date: November 26, 20(

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this Report has beeresigrelow by the following persons on behalf

of the Company and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated:

By /s/ WILLIAM L. ARMSTRONG

By

/sl GLENN A. COX

William L. Armstrong, Director
Date: November 26, 20(

By /s/ RANDY A. FOUTCH

By

Glenn A. Cox, Director
Date: November 26, 20(

/sl HANS HELMERICH

Randy A. Foutch, Director
Date: November 26, 20(

By /s/W.H.HELMERICH, III

By

Hans Helmerich, Director and CEO
Date: November 26, 20(

/sl PAULA MARSHALL

W. H. Helmerich, Ill, Director
Date: November 26, 20(

By /s/ FRANCIS ROONEY

By

Paula Marshall, Director
Date: November 26, 20(

/sl EDWARD B. RUST, JR.

Francis Rooney, Director
Date: November 26, 20(

By /s/ JOHN D. ZEGLIS

By

Edward B. Rust, Jr., Director
Date: November 26, 20(

/s/ DOUGLAS E. FEARS

John D. Zeglis, Director
Date: November 26, 2008

By /s/ GORDON K. HELM

Gordon K. Helm
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: November 26, 20(
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Douglas E. Fears
(Principal Financial Officer)
Date: November 26, 20(
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Exhibit Index

The following documents are included asilgighto this Annual Report on Form 3Q-Exhibits incorporated herein are duly noted @shs

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioHeimerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated by refere to Exhibit 3.1 of th
Company's Annual Report on Form-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission f@afi2006, SEC File No. 0-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company apocated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of@lmenpany's Form 8-K
filed on October 11, 2007, SEC File No. -04221.

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leetiree Company and The Liberty National Bank angsfT€ompany of
Oklahoma City, N.A. is incorporated herein by refere to the Company's Form 8-A, dated January99%,ISEC File No. 001-
04221.

4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December & ,2tween the Company and UMB Bank, N.A. is inooaged herein by
reference to Exhibit 4 of the Company's Fol-K filed on December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.1 Consulting Services Agreement between W. H. Helohetlil, and the Company dated March 30, 199 éeiporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Annugph&t on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchangm@ission for fiscal
1996, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

*10.2 Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement betweehl. Helmerich, Ill and the Company dated Decen#gr1990, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2hef Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to theuiges and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 2006, SEC File No. (-04221.

*10.3 Second Amendment to Consulting Services Agreememtden W. H. Helmerich, Ill, and the Company da&egtember 11, 20C
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1df.the Company's Forir-K filed September 13, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.4 Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieglByees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporatedein by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Annual Report on FA0K to the Securities and Exchange Commissioffifoal 1996, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

*10.5 Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeétetrherich and Payne, Inc. is incorporated hergirelference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Annual Report on F&G¥K to the Securities and Exchange Commissiofisoal 1999, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

*10.6 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Pimtorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 38.the Company's
Registration Statement No. &-34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

*10.7 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for thelmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Rtamcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's RedisimeStatement No. 3:-34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

*10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Helnted&cPayne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan is inocogted by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's Annual Report omir@0K to the Securities and Exchange Commission f@afi§ 997, SEC Fil
No. 001-04221.

*10.9 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plimtorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 98.the Company's
Registration Statement No. --63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

*10.1C Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@0ck Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted StockadvAgreement,

(i) Incentive Stock Option Agreement and (iii) Nojpralified Stock Option Agreement are incorporatgddference to Exhibit 99
to the Company's Registration Statement No-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C
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Exhibit No

Description

*10.11

*10.12

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeméar the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Stock IncemPlan is incorporate
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Compa@uiarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities Bxchange Commission
for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File Rt-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendeduibit 10.3 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission for the quarter éddee 30, 2002, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2002, antdeigherich & Payne International Drilling Co., Helreh & Payne, Inc., the
several lenders from time to time party thereta Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated hereinréference to Exhibit 10.5 of
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q tcSkeurities and Exchange Commission for the quartded June 30, 2002,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2®3, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &ialnternational
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorpted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of tleen@any's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission fa@afi2005, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Map@42among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich & Raynternational
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorpted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of tlwen@any's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission fa@afi2005, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2l®)4, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &malnternational
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorpted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of tleen@any's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission fa@afi2005, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July20®5, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich&yie International
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thenpany's Form 8-K filed on
July 13, 2005, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2006, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &tralnternational
Drilling Co., and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of thenpany's Form 8-K filed on
July 11, 2006, SEC File No. 0-04221.

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement datsg:@ber 18, 2006, among Helmerich & Payne InteynatiDrilling Co.,
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Bank of Oklahoma, NaioAssociation is incorporated herein by refereiocExhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Form-K filed on December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Chggtieement dated December 17, 2007, among Hellmé&rigayne, Inc.,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., andiik of Oklahoma, National Association is incorpedaherein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of Form -K filed by the Company on December 18, 2C

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15, 200@ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.Cdelmerich &
Payne, Inc. and various insurance companies ispocated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 ef @ompany's Annual Report
on Form 1K to the Securities and Exchange Commission f@afi2002, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Credit Agreement dated December 18, 2006, amongéteth & Payne International Drilling Co., Helméri& Payne, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is incorgedaherein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Camyps Form 8-K filed on
December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.
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Exhibit No. Description
10.2: Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B H¥hdnd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporateddiey reference to
Exhibit 10.18 of the Company's Annual Report onfrd0-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissiofigoal 2003, SEC
File No. 00-04221.
10.2¢ First Amendment to Lease between ASP, Inc. and Eietin & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by reffiee to Exhibit 10.1 of
Form &K filed by the Company on May 29, 20(
*10.25 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeimsaPlan is incorporated herein by reference toiltika0.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on September 9, 2004, SEC File No.-04221.
10.2¢ Shareholders Agreement and Registration Rights égeant dated July 19, 2004 between Helmerich & Payeenational
Drilling Co. and Atwood Oceanics, Inc. is incorpae herein by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Conyy®Amended
Schedule 13D filed on July 21, 20(
10.27 Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 2004, betwHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Codararious underwriters
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitdf.the Company's Forn-K filed on October 14, 2004, SEC File No. -04221.
*10.28 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for Exe@iOfficers is incorporated herein by referene&xkhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on December 6, 2007, SEC File No. -04221.
*10.28 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to Appehdlixto the Company's
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed January Q662
*10.3C Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20@5g-Term Incentive Plan: (i) Nonqualified Stockt®n Agreement,
(i) Incentive Stock Option Agreement, and (iii) fected Stock Award Agreement are incorporateeineoy reference to
Exhibit 10.27 of the Company's Annual Report onnrdi0-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissiofigoal 2006, SEC
File No. 00-04221.
10.31 Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynerhrdgonal Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Indestrinc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Compsufgrm -K filed on December 7, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.
10.3z Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmerichagne International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texasistrial Services, Inc.
is incorporated herein by reference to the Compafgim K filed July 7, 2007, SEC File No. 0-04221.
10.3:  Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, bettsimerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andusheast Texas
Industries, Inc
10.3¢  Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betvsdmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. anduBheast Texas
Industrial Services, In
13. The Company's Annual Report to Shareholders foafi2008.
21. List of Subsidiaries of the Compar
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securitieh&nge Act of 1934, as
amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 &aHmne-Oxley Act of 2002
31.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat Rule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securitieh&nge Act of 1934, as
amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 &aHmne-Oxley Act of 2002
32. Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section, 3 adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit 10.33

AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT

THIS AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT is made and erte into this 8" day of August, 2008, by and between Helmerich &fea
International Drilling Co., hereinafter referredas "H&P", and Southeast Texas Industries, Incgihafter referred to as "Fabricator” or "S1

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, H&P and STI entered into a FaliiicaContract dated theSl day of December, 2006, for certain services defiherein as
the "Work" (the "Contract");

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are mutuallyidels of amending the terms of the above-refei@@mntract as hereafter set forth; and
WHEREAS, the Contract has continued inflotte and effect to the present time.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of thentgyand obligations passing between the partiegpdities hereto do amend said Contract,
as follows, to-wit:

1. Section 1 of Annex 1 is hereby deleted and repladgédthe following:
"1. Quantity—STI will perform the Work for a totaf 50 rigs with the number and type of rigs asdot:

a. Flex3: 24 rigs (R376, R377, R378, R379, R380, R38BRR383, R384, R385, R386, R387, R388, R389, R390,
R391, R392, R393, R394, R395, R396, R397, R3989R39

b. Flex4S: 2 rigs (R343, R35(

C. Flex4S+: 4 rigs (R329, R330, R353, R354)

d. Flex4dMA:  2rigs (R351, R352)

e. Flex 4M:  9rigs (R336, R337, R338, R339, R340, R344,R®B46, R347
f. Flex5: 2 rigs (R348, R34¢

g. The remaining 7 rigs will be a combination of the¥ieus types listed above as determined by H&P."
Except as amended hereby, all other termdscanditions of the Contract shall remain in falice and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , H&P and STI have executed this Amendment to Gatas of the day and year first written above.
HELMERICH & PAYNE INTERNATIONAL DRILLING CO. INC.

By: /sl M. ALAN ORR

Executive Vice Preside
SOUTHEAST TEXAS INDUSTRIES, INC

By: /s/ PAUL SPENCE

Name Paul Spenc
Title:  President
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Exhibit 10.34

AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT

THIS AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT is made and erte into this 8" day of August, 2008, by and between Helmerich &fea
International Drilling Co., hereinafter referredas "H&P", and Southeast Texas Industrial Servibes, hereinafter referred to as "STIS".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, H&P and STIS entered into a Carttcated the 18 day of July, 2007, for certain services definestéin as the
"Work" (the "Contract");

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are mutuallyidels of amending the terms of the above-refei@@mntract as hereafter set forth; and
WHEREAS, the Contract has continued inflatte and effect to the present time.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of thehtgyand obligations passing between the partiegpdinties hereto do amend said Contract,
as follows, to-wit:

1. Beginning in line 11 of Annex 1, Sections (a) thybyf) immediately following "(the "Work")" are heby deleted and replaced with !
following:

"a. Flex3: 24 rigs (R376, R377, R378, R379, R380, R381, RB&B3, R384, R385, R386, R387, R388, R389, R3901RR992,
R393, R394, R395, R396, R397, R398, R399)

b. Flex4S: 2 rigs (R343, R350)

C. Flex4S+: 4 rigs (R329, R330, R353, R354)

d. Flex4dMA:  2rigs (R351, R35zZ

e. Flex 4M: 9 rigs (R336, R337, R338, R339, R340, R344,R®B46, R347

f. Flex5: 2 rigs (R348, R349)

g. The remaining 7 rigs will be a combination of the¥ieus types listed above as determined by H&P."
2. In Section 1 of Exhibit "A", "November 15, 2005"hereby replaced with "July 2, 200’

3. The table in Exhibit "A-1" is hereby amended by iaddan additional row at the bottom as follows:
J. Wilson 68.5¢ 95.4( 121.6(

Except as amended hereby, all other termdscanditions of the Contract shall remain in falice and effect.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , H&P and STIS have executed this Amendment to @ohas of the day and year first written above.

HELMERICH & PAYNE INTERNATIONAL DRILLING CO. INC.

By: /sl M. ALAN ORR

Executive Vice Preside
SOUTHEAST TEXAS INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, IN(

By: /s/ PAUL SPENCE

Name: Paul Spenc
Title: President
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Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Exhibit 13

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.is the holding Company for

Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., at@mational
drilling contractor with land and offshore operatsan the

United States, South America, and Africa. Holdiatso include
commercial real estate properties in the Tulsaalkina area, and
an energy-weighted portfolio of securities valued@proximately
$384 million as of September 30, 2008.

HELMERICH & PAYNE-TULSA, OKLA. &

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 3(C 2008 2007
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenue $2,036,54 $1,629,65
Net Income 461,73¢ 449,26
Diluted Earnings per Sha 4.34 4.2
Dividends Paid per Sha 0.185( .180(
Capital Expenditure 705,63! 894,21.

Total Assets 3,588,04! 2,885,36!

1

2006

$1,224,81
293,85¢
2.71

728
528,90!
2,134,71.




To the Cc-owners
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.:

The Company enjoyed another record ye2008, as we surpassed our high-water mark for ieven
and net income for the third consecutive year. fider saw energy prices skyrocket and then spiral
downward in the face of the recent economic meltdow

Today, we find the business in a suddendaathatic reversal of fortune as future exploratod
production spending plans are in the process afgoaggressively scaled back. At the time of thidimg,
natural gas prices are less than half, and oikprare slightly more than one-third of what theyenat
their highs during the summer. As late as Octolerwould have predicted a softer 2009 that woudely
unfold in a similar fashion to what we saw in 200¥%n, natural gas price concerns, combined with
worries of potential overbuilding, softened the kedrenough to see 400 U.S. rigs sidelined. Many
observers expect a similar number of rigs to beddh 2009. A more sobering comparison may be in
order, bringing to mind the correction the industrperienced in 2002, where nearly 50% of the itrgiis
U.S. rigs were idled.

This story continues to unfold as we speaki one obvious factor influencing the depth and
longevity of the correction is how cold the curremtter will be. While that speaks to the demarnt®sit
Is clear that E&P companies are not waiting fot thecome before they act. They are sidelining rigs
today, reflecting concerns of the sizeable prodmcgrowth experienced year over year. This is aemov
which will at some point impact the supply sidelod equation and stands in contrast to the general
approach taken in 2007 of "drilling through” thdtsmots. In the event that a more severe respolays
out, the result should have a purging effect tiotd an a self-correcting way to shorten the dowcley

While no one can predict how things willvdep for the land drillers, we believe the Comp@ny
uniquely positioned to weather the slowdown. Letquikly hit some highlights to make this point.

We have the newest and most capable fleet. Othentdions have seen us sustain higher utilization:
and daily margins than our peers. When the smada€land operators rationalize their rig rosters,
performance and efficiency will still win the daytheir choice of rigs to engage.

We have never had stronger contractual coverage:@&®ur 2009 fiscal year potential revenue (
are under term contracts, and 43% of our 2010 revelays are under term contracts.

2




Our customer roster distinguishes itself with al#Q% majors or super independents. The)
only have the best "staying power," but will likébok for opportunities to upgrade their rig
rosters.

With November's announcement of 13 additional neidlorders with long-term commitments, our
manufacturing visibility extends into the earlylfad 2009. That compares with November 2007,
when our order book only took us into the followiRgbruary.

The Company's international and offshore operatesesoperating at high utilization levels. Seven
new FlexRigs® will become fully operational durigg09 in Colombia and Argentina, and we have
high expectations for the potential of the FlexRignternational markets.

The strength of our balance sheet continues twal®to fund the largest single year of new build
orders, totaling 63, in the Company's history. Bhesw rigs, all at attractive dayrates, will acaas
important counterbalance to softening spot rat@sgoimrward.

It is important to remember that the sesd®covery lie in the fact of the rapid depletjamofile or a
"blow down" of over 30% for domestic natural gasdurction. When the cycle does improve, the most
promising shale and other unconventional playkrsijuire extensive drilling with increasing tecteli
challenges and today, over 70% of our FlexRigeeagaged with this type of play. We will continue to
focus on strong field performance, where our peapfethe confidence of the customer every day.

It is because of the efforts of our pedpkt we have achieved our brand leadership, asdattheir
credit that the Company reported record earnin@d08. Our 88 years in this business help prepsifen
the challenges and the opportunities that lie ahead

Sincerely,

thnbbocioriL

Hans Helmerich
Presiden
November 21, 200




Financial & Operating Review

Years Ended September 3( 200¢ 2007 200¢
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME*
Operating Revenue $ 2,036,54. 1,629,65! 1,224,81.
Operating Costs, excluding depreciat 1,086,66! 862,25¢ 661,56:
Depreciation** 210,76t 146,04: 101,58:
General and Administrative Exper 57,05¢ 47,40: 51,87:
Operating Income (los: 692,81t 632,31¢ 417,28t
Interest and Dividend Incon 5,03¢ 4,23¢ 9,834
Gain on Sale of Investment Securit 21,99« 65,45¢ 19,86¢
Interest Expens 18,68¢ 10,12¢ 6,64<
Net Income from Continuing Operatio 461,73t 449,26: 293,85¢
Net Income 461,73t 449,26 293,85!¢
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sha
Net Income from Continuing Operatio 4.34 4.27 2.71
Net Income 4.3¢4 4.27 2.71
*$000's omitted, except per share ¢
tAll data excludes discontinued operations excepinctome.
**2004 includes an asset impairment of $51,516 deypreciation of $94,425
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA*
Cash** $ 121,51 89,21¢ 33,85
Working Capital** 381,69( 272,35. 164,14:
Investment: 199,26t 223,36( 218,30¢
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Ne 2,682,25. 2,152,611 1,483,13
Total Assets 3,588,04! 2,885,36! 2,134,71.
Long-term Debit 475,00( 445,00( 175,00(
Shareholders' Equit 2,265,47. 1,815,511 1,381,89
Capital Expenditure 705,63! 894,21. 528,90!
*$000's omitted
**Excludes discontinued operations.
RIG FLEET SUMMARY
Drilling Rigs—
U. S. Land- FlexRigs 14€ 11¢€ 73
U. S. Land- Highly Mobile 12 12 12
U. S. Lanc- Conventiona 27 27 28
Offshore Platforn 9 9 9
International Lanc 30 27 27
Total Rig Flee: 224 19z 14¢
Rig Utilization Percentag—
U. S. Lanc- FlexRigs 10C 10C 10C
U. S. Land- Highly Mobile 83 93 10C
U. S. Lanc- Conventiona 80 87 95
U. S. Lanc- All Rigs 96 97 99
Offshore Platforn 75 65 69
International Lanc 82 9C 9C




2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$ 800,72t % 589,05t $ 504,22: $ 523,41t % 528,18° % 383,89 % 430,47 $ 476,75
484,23 417,71t 346,25¢ 362,13¢ 331,06: 249,31t 288,96 321,79t
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Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Cadlition and Results of
Operations

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

RISK FACTORS AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The following discussion should be read in conjuorctvith Part | of the
Company's Form 10-K as well as the Consolidatedraial Statements and
related notes thereto. The Company's future opgyatisults may be affected
various trends and factors, which are beyond thagamy's control. These
include, among other factors, fluctuations in oitlanatural gas prices,
unexpected expiration or termination of drillinght@cts, currency exchange
gains and losses, changes in general economictaorgjidisruptions to the
global credit markets, rapid or unexpected chamgéschnologies, risks of
foreign operations, uninsured risks, changes inaktim and foreign policies,
laws and regulations, and uncertain business daondithat affect the
Company's businesses. Accordingly, past resultdrands should not be used
by investors to anticipate future results or trends

With the exception of historical information, thatters discussed in
Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial @ibon and Results of
Operations include forward-looking statements. Ehlfesward-looking
statements are based on various assumptions. Tinedly cautions that, whi
it believes such assumptions to be reasonable akdsrthem in good faith,
assumed facts almost always vary from actual resiile differences between
assumed facts and actual results can be matehalCompany is including this
cautionary statement to take advantage of the tsafeor” provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 fy forward-looking
statements made by, or on behalf of, the Compalmg .factors identified in this
cautionary statement and those factors discussaer lRisk Factors beginning
on page 5 of the Company's Annual Report on ForsK #0e important factors
(but




not necessarily all important factors) that couddse actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-logkstatement made by, or
on behalf of, the Company. The Company undertakesduty to update or
revise its forward-looking statements based on gbsaf internal estimates or
expectations or otherwise.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is primarily a contractlidng company which owned
and operated a total of 224 drilling rigs at SepienB80, 2008. The Company's
contract drilling segments include the U.S. Langhsent in which the Compa
had 185 rigs, the Offshore segment in which the gamg had 9 offshore
platform rigs, and the International Land segmanwihich the Company he
30 rigs at September 30, 2008. As customers pumsue difficult wells
employing horizontal and directional drilling tolder better and more cost-
effective reservoir performance in shales and atineonventional plays, the
demand for the Company's FlexRig technology remstiregg. In 2008, the
Company reported a 25 percent annual increasedratpg revenue and a

10 percent annual increase in operating income.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

All per share amounts included in the Results of@pons discussion are
stated on a diluted basis. The Company's net indonZ008 was

$461.7 million ($4.34 per share), compared with@a34nillion ($4.27 per
share) for 2007 and $293.9 million ($2.77 per shime2006. Included in the
Company's net income were after-tax gains fronstie of investment
securities of $13.5 million ($0.13 per share) i®20$40.2 million ($0.38 per
share) in 2007, and $12.3 million ($0.12 per shex@006. Net income also
includes after-tax gains from the sale of asse®3d@ million ($0.08
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per share) in 2008, $26.5 million ($0.25 per shar®007 and $4.8 millio
($0.04 per share) in 2006. Included in net incom2008 and 2007 are aftix
gains of $6.5 million ($0.06 per share) and $10iian ($0.10 per share),
respectively, from involuntary conversion of longeld assets that sustained
significant damage as a result of Hurricane Katim2005. Also included in n
income is the Company's portion of income fronetsiity affiliate, Atwood
Oceanics, Inc. From the equity affiliate, the Compeecorded net income of
$0.16 per share in 2008, $0.09 per share in 2008ar07 per share in 2006.

Consolidated operating revenues were $2,036.5amilh 2008,

$1,629.7 million in 2007, and $1,224.8 million i@d56. Over the three-year
period, U.S. land revenues increased due to the@udf FlexRigs combine
with continued increases in dayrates since 2008.aMerage number of U.S.
land rigs available was 171 rigs in 2008, 134 nmg2007 and 96 rigs in 2006.
U.S. land rig utilization for the Company was 96gaat in 2008, 97 percent in
2007 and 99 percent in 2006. Revenue in the Oféskegment increased in
2008 after decreasing in 2007. The Company entatedhe international
offshore market with one rig in 2008. Rig utilizatifor offshore rigs increased
to 75 percent in 2008 compared to 65 percent iry 201 69 percent in 2006.
International rig revenues increased from 20060082 due to increases in
dayrates although rig utilizations declined in 20082 percent from 90 perce
in 2007 and 2006.

Gains from the sale of investment securities w&®Emillion in 2008,

$65.5 million in 2007, and $19.9 million in 2006térest and dividend income
increased to $5.0 million in 2008 from $4.2 million2007 after a decrease
from $9.8 million in 2006. In




2006 and through part of 2007, the Company's cashipn decreased as new
FlexRigs were constructed. During 2008, the Comjsaawailable cash
increased as overall rig utilization increased eauital expenditures decreased

Direct operating costs in 2008 were $1,086.7 millow 53 percent of operating
revenues, compared with $862.3 million or 53 peroéimperating revenues in
2007, and $661.6 million or 54 percent of operatigenues in 2006.

Depreciation expense was $210.8 million in 2008680 million in 2007 and
$101.6 million in 2006. Included in depreciatior abandonments of
equipment of $13.3 million in 2008, $4.1 million2007, and $1.7 million in
2006. Depreciation expense, exclusive of the abameats, increased over the
three-year period as the Company placed into se@&cnew rigs in 2008, 45 in
2007 and 21 in 2006. Depreciation expense in 20@Xpected to increase frc
2008 as the Company plans to place new FlexRigssitvice at a pace rangi
from two to four per month. (See Liquidity and GapResources.)

Each year, management performs an analysis ohthesiry market conditions
in each drilling segment. Based on this analysemagement determines if an
impairment is required. In 2008, 2007 and 2006im@airment was recorded.
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General and administrative expenses totaled $5illibmmin 2008,
$47.4 million in 2007, and $51.9 million in 2006.

2008 2007 2006
(in thousands
Other general and administrative exper $49,60: $40,39: $42,12:
Stoclk-based compensatic 7,45¢ 7,01( 6,941

Acceleration of share optiol — — 2,811

Total $57,05¢ $47,40: $51,87:
/]|

The increase in 2008 from 2007 is primarily a restiincreases in expenses
associated with employee labor and employee berhii to increases in the
number of employees. The decrease in 2007 from BO@ributable in part to
the Company accelerating the vesting of share optheld by a senior
executive who retired in fiscal 2006. The decraasdso due to pension
expense decreasing $5.6 million in 2007 from 200& Pension Plan was
frozen and benefit accruals were discontinued gifeSeptember 30, 2006,
thus reducing the service cost of the Plan. The& 2#erease was partially off
by increases in employee labor, benefits and ojpgrabsts associated with the
number of employees increasing.

Interest expense was $18.7 million in 2008, $10liam in 2007, and

$6.6 million in 2006. The interest expense is prilyattributable to the fixed-
rate intermediate debt outstanding in each yeaadndnces on the senior cre
facility in 2008 and 2007. Capitalized interest \#ds7 million, $9.4 million an
$6.1 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivaly.of the capitalized interest
is attributable to the rig build program. The highapitalized interest in 2007
due to a higher number of new rigs being constdudteing that year.
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The provision for income taxes totaled $255.6 willin 2008, $251.0 million
2007, and $154.4 million in 2006. Effective incotag rates were 37 percent in
2008, 36 percent in 2007, and 35 percent in 20@6efPed income taxes are
provided for the temporary differences betweerfitiencial reporting basis al
the tax basis of the Company's assets and ligsiliRecoverability of any tax
assets are evaluated and necessary allowancesoai@egol. The carrying value
of the net deferred tax assets assumes, basedimates and assumptions, that
the Company will be able to generate sufficientifettaxable income in certain
tax jurisdictions to realize the benefits of suskeds. If these estimates and
related assumptions change in the future, additiaadaation allowances will k
recorded against the deferred tax assets resintiagditional income tax
expense in the future. (See Note 3 of the CongelblBinancial Statements for
additional income tax disclosures.)

On May 21, 2008, the Company acquired a privatddinpartnership,
TerraVici Drilling Solutions (TerraVici) in a traastion accounted for under 1
purchase method of accounting. Under the purchatlkead of accounting, tt
assets and liabilities of TerraVici were recordeafithe acquisition date, at
their respective fair values, and consolidated whthCompany's financial
statements. The operations for TerraVici are inetudith all other non-
reportable business segments.

TerraVici is developing patented rotary steerabtdhology to enhance
horizontal and directional drilling operations. TGempany acquired TerraVici
to complement technology currently used with thexRlig. The process of
drilling has become increasingly challenging adeared well types deviate
from simple vertical drilling. By combining this wetechnology with the
Company's existing
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capabilities, the Company expects to improve dgllproductivity and reduce
total well cost to the customer.

The Company paid a total purchase price of $12lomj including acquisition
related fees of $1.2 million. In conjunction witketacquisition, the Company
recorded an in-process research and developmdR& DI charge of

$11.1 million in 2008. The IPR&D represents rotargerable system (RSS)
tools under development by TerraVici at the dataagjuisition that had not yet
achieved technological feasibility, and would haweefuture alternative use. T
$11.1 million estimated fair value of the IPR&D waerived using the multi-
period exces-earnings method. The terms of the transactionigeofor future
contingency payments up to $11 million based orifpecommerciality
milestones and certain earn-out provisions basddtare earnings being met.

During 2008, the Company incurred $1.8 million @éearch and development
expenses related to ongoing development of the R&&SCompany anticipates
research and development expenses to be approiirsat® million in each
guarter through June 30, 2009.

The following tables summarize operations by regdalg operating segment. In
an evaluation of its segment reporting, the Competgrmined that the total of
external revenues reported by the three reportgig#eating segments, U.S.
Land, Offshore and International Land, comprisedariban 75 percent of total
consolidated revenue. As a result, the Real Est&gment previously shown as
a reportable segment has been included with adiratbn-reportable business
segments. This change, along with a detailed desmmiof segment operating
income, is described more fully in Note 15 to then€blidated Financial
Statements.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007 % Change
U.S. LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $1,542,03 $1,174,95 31.2%
Direct operating expens 756,82¢ 587,82! 28.¢
General and administrative expet 17,59¢ 14,02« 25.k
Depreciatior 161,89: 106,10 52.€
Segment operating incon $ 605,71 $ 467,00 29.7

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 59,80« 47,33¢ 26.2%
Average rig revenue per d $ 2452 $ 23,57 4.C
Average rig expense per d $ 11,39 $ 11,17 2.C
Average rig margin per de¢ $ 13,12 $ 12,40 5.¢
Number of rigs at end of peric 18t 157 17.¢
Rig utilization 96% 97% (2.0

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemgkraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupatket" expenses of $75,519 and $59
for 2008 and 2007, respective
Rig utilization excludes one FlexRig completed agatly for delivery at September 30, 2(

The Company's U.S. Land segment operating incooreased to

$605.7 million in 2008 from $467.0 million in 200Mmprovement in revenue is
primarily the result of increased revenue daysiaoceased dayrates for ne
rigs placed in service during 2008. Rig utilizatidecreased to 96 percent in
2008 from 97 percent in 2007. At September 30, 20t Company had six
conventional rigs stacked. The stacked rigs taagiteper well market that
softened during the last half of fiscal 2007. Apt&enber 30, 2008, two
conventional rigs and one highly mobile rig weragcked. The total number of
rigs at September 30, 2008 was 185 compared taiddat September 30,
2007. The increase is due to 28 new FlexRigs havaamn completed and plas
into service. Depreciation includes abandoned eqeip of $13.2 million and
$2.3 million in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Exahgdthe abandonment
amounts, depreciation in 2008 increased 43.2 pefaan 2007 due to the
increase in available rigs.
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Although direct operating expenses increased 2&.8mt from 2007 to 2008,
the expense as a percentage of revenue remainsthobat 49 percent in 2008
and 50 percent in 2007.

Since March 2005, the Company has announced panslitd 127 new
FlexRigs for 25 exploration and production companiubsequent to
September 30, 2008, the Company announced thagragres had been reacl
with five of the 25 above mentioned exploration @anolduction companies to
operate an additional 13 new FlexRigs bringingtttal of the new rigs to 140.
Eight of these 140 new rigs were contracted forkwornternational Land
operations and the remaining 132 in U.S. Land dmera Each new rig will be
operated by the Company under a fixed term contiaat least three years. T
drilling services will be performed on a day wodntract basis. During 2008,
the U.S. Land segment had 29 new FlexRigs pladedservice, one of which
was completed at the end of fiscal 2007. Throughtetaber 30, 2008, 96 of tl
132 new FlexRigs with long-term commitments in th&. Land segment were
placed into service. The Company expects to dethveremaining 36 new rig
by the end of calendar 2009. As a result of the REaxRigs added in 2008 and
additional rigs scheduled for completion in 200 Company anticipates
depreciation expense to increase in fiscal 2009.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Comyga Rig 178 was lost when
the well it was drilling had a blowout. The rig wiasured at a value that
approximated replacement cost. During 2008, gnossrance proceeds of
approximately $8.7 million were received and a gdiapproximately

$5.0 million was recorded. The Company anticipatling the insurance
claim before the end of the first fiscal quarte26D9 and expects to receive
additional insurance proceeds of less than $0.Bomil
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007 % Change
OFFSHORE OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $154,45. $123,14i 25.%%
Direct operating expens 104,45: 85,55¢ 22.1
General and administrative expet 4,45; 4,82¢ (7.7)
Depreciatior 12,15 10,68’ 13.7
Segment operating incon $ 33,39 $ 22,08 51.z

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 2,44; 2,141 14.1%
Average rig revenue per d $ 47,74 $ 34,46 38.t
Average rig expense per d $ 29,65! $ 21,56 37.t
Average rig margin per de $ 18,08: $ 12,90! 40.z
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 —
Rig utilization 75% 65% 15.4

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses of $16,330 and $14,328
for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Also excludedtlageeffects of offshore platform management cotdraicd currency revaluation expen

Segment operating income in the Company's Offskegenent increased
51.2 percent in 2008 from 2007 due to higher agtiand a rig beginning work
in Trinidad during 2008.

Currently, the Company has eight of its nine plaifeigs working. The ninth
rig is currently under contract and in the yardengoing capital improvement;
it is expected to commence work in the third fispahrter of 20009.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Comya Rig 201 was damaged
by Hurricane Katrina. The rig was removed from garn the fourth fiscal
guarter of 2005 until the fourth fiscal quarter2007, when it returned to
service. The rig was insured at a value that apprated replacement cost.
Insurance proceeds received through fiscal 20@fetapproximately

$19.3 million resulting in a gain of approximat&@¥6.7 million. During 2008,
additional insurance proceeds of approximately §&ilkon were received and
recorded as
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a gain. Capital costs to rebuild the rig were @dizied and are being deprecie
in accordance with the accounting policy descriime@ritical Accounting
Policies and Estimates. The Company expects tie $bi$ claim early in fiscal
2009 and estimates additional proceeds will betles $0.1 million.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

200¢ 2007 % Change
INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $328,24. $320,28: 2.5%
Direct operating expens 224,68: 188,08t 19.5
General and administrative expet 3,97¢ 3,23¢ 22.¢
Depreciatior 29,61« 23,78: 24.t
Segment operating incon $ 69,97. $105,17! (33.5)

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 8,02¢ 8,88¢ (9.7%
Average rig revenue per d $ 37,60 $ 31,46! 19.5
Average rig expense per d $ 24,48 $ 16,701 46.€
Average rig margin per de $ 13,11! $ 14,75 (11.1)
Number of rigs at end of peric 30 27 11.1
Rig utilization 82% 90% (8.9%

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses of $26,431 and $40,113
for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Also excludedtiaeeeffects of currency revaluation expet
Rig utilization excludes four FlexRigs completed agady for delivery at September 30, 2C

Segment operating income for the Company's Intenmalt Land segment
decreased 33.5 percent from 2007 to 2008. Depira&tiahd operating income
for 2008 were negatively impacted by an adjustneéajpproximately

$5.9 million related to prior years' depreciatiB®ig utilization for international
land operations decreased to 82 percent in 2008 9@ percent in 2007. Direct
operating expenses increased in 2008 from 200eaimternational markets
experienced labor cost increases, oilfield cogatmmin pressures and idle rigs
continued to incur operating expenses. As the enaient changed in some of
the South American countries, the
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number of rigs working declined to 19 rigs durihg second fiscal quarter of
2008 before recovering to 26 rigs working at thd efthe fiscal year. The tot
number of rigs at September 30, 2008 was 30 cordgar27 rigs at
September 30, 2007. The increase is due to ond~fexRig being completed
and placed into service, four FlexRigs being cotgaend ready for delivery
and the sale of two rigs.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 200¢ % Change
U.S. LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $1,174,95 $829,06. 41.7%
Direct operating expens 587,82! 398,87 47 .4
General and administrative expel 14,024 12,80 9.t
Depreciatior 106,10 66,127 60.5
Segment operating incon $ 467,00 $351,25! 33.C

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 47,33¢ 34,41 37.%
Average rig revenue per d $ 23,57 $ 22,75 3.€
Average rig expense per d $ 11,17 $ 10,25 9.C
Average rig margin per de¢ $ 12,40 $ 12,50 (0.9
Number of rigs at end of peric 157 118 38.¢
Rig utilization 97% 99% (2.0)

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupatket" expenses of $59,035 and $46
for 2007 and 2006, respective

Rig utilization excludes one FlexRig completed seatly for delivery at September 30, 2007 and tfegRigs completed and ready
delivery at September 30, 2006.

The Company's U.S. Land segment operating incooreased to

$467.0 million in 2007 from $351.3 million in 200Baprovement in revenue is
primarily the result of increased revenue daysasricreasing dayrat:
experienced during 2006 declined or flattened du2007. Rig utilization
decreased to 97 percent in 2007 from 99 perce2®@@®®. The decrease in rig
utilization is primarily due to six conventionafys being stacked by
September 30, 2007. Average rig expense per dagased 9.0 percent as the
demand for
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rig personnel and services continued to createpressures. The total number
of rigs at September 30, 2007 was 157 compared3aifys at September 30,
2006. The increase is due to 45 new FlexRigs benmgpleted and placed into
service, one rig completed and ready for delivdrg,sale of one conventional
rig in June 2007 and the loss of one rig in a Wieivout fire in August 2007.
Depreciation in 2007 increased 60.5 percent frof62Mue to the increase in
available rigs.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 200¢ % Change

OFFSHORE OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $123,14: $154,54. (20.9%
Direct operating expens 85,55¢ 105,13: (18.€)
General and administrative expet 4,82¢ 6,144 (21.5)
Depreciatior 10,68’ 11,40: (6.9
Segment operating incon $ 22,08 $ 31,86! (30.7)

I ——
Operating Statistics
Revenue day 2,141 2,745 (21.9%
Average rig revenue per d $ 34,46 $ 38,72 (11.0
Average rig expense per d $ 21,56 $ 24,04 (10.9)
Average rig margin per de $ 12,90! $ 14,68 (12.1)
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9
Rig utilization 65% 69% (5.9

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofet" expenses of $14,328 and $18,924
for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Also excludedtlageeffects of offshore platform management cotdraicd currency revaluation expen

Segment operating income in the Company's Offskegment decreased
30.7 percent from 2006 to 2007. Operator decisiog® on standby caused
revenue and expenses to decline after the segmeatienced increased
activity in 2006 following the hurricanes in 2005.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 200¢ % Change
INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $320,28: $230,82! 38.8%
Direct operating expens 188,08t 155,76¢ 20.7
General and administrative expet 3,23¢ 3,27¢ (1.2
Depreciatior 23,78: 19,47 22.1
Segment operating incon $105,17! $ 52,31 101.(

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 8,88¢ 8,81z 0.6%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 31,46! $ 23,40 34.¢
Average rig expense per d $ 16,70 $ 14,801 12.¢
Average rig margin per de¢ $ 14,75 $ 8,59 71.€
Number of rigs at end of peric 27 27 —
Rig utilization 90% 90% —

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses of $40,113 and $23,992
for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Also excludedtlageeffects of currency revaluation expet

Segment operating income for the Company's Intenmalt Land segment
increased 101.0 percent from 2006 to 2007 dueytoata increases in several
foreign markets with the most significant increaseurring in Venezuela.
Segment operating income also benefited from aklewRig being added to
the international fleet at the end of fiscal 20R&y utilization for international
land operations averaged 90 percent in both 206872806. Direct operating
expenses increased in 2007 primarily due to imftery pressures in the oil
service sector and contractual cost increases uhdé&tompany's drilling
contracts with operators.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's capital spending was $705.6 millio2d08, $894.2 million in
2007, and $528.9 million in 2006. Net cash proviftedh operating activities

for those same periods was $610.8 million in 26®®%1.1 million in 2007 and
$296.4 million in 2006. The Company's 2009 ca@@nding estimate is
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approximately $900 million, an increase from th@&illion incurred during
2008. Included in the estimate is the construabibnew FlexRigs. Constructic
of the contracted new FlexRigs is expected to mepteted by the end of
calendar year 2009.

Historically, the Company has financed operatiomsarily through internally
generated cash flows. In periods when internallyegated cash flows are not
sufficient to meet liquidity needs, the Companyl wither borrow from an
available unsecured line of credit or, if markehditions are favorable, sell
portfolio securities. Likewise, if the Company iengrating excess cash flov
the Company may invest in short-term investmemt2006, the Company
purchased $8.6 million of portfolio securities &%B9.8 million of sho-term
investments.

The Company manages a portfolio of marketable gexsithat, at the close of
fiscal 2008, had a market value of $384.0 millibhe Company's investments
in Atwood Oceanics, Inc. ("Atwood") and Schlumbetddd. made up

95 percent of the portfolio's market value on Seaer 30, 2008. The value of
the portfolio is subject to fluctuation in the matland may vary considerably
over time. Excluding the Company's equity-methogsiment in Atwood and
investments in limited partnerships carried at cib& portfolio is recorded at
fair value on the Company's balance sheet. The Gagnpurrently owns
8,000,000 shares or approximately 12.5 percerntebttstanding shares of
Atwood.

The Company generated cash proceeds from the fsadettinlio securities of
$25.5 million in 2008, $73.4 million in 2007, and82 million in 2006.
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The following table reconciles cash proceeds froendale of portfolio
securities stated above to proceeds from saleveStments shown in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the Cogip&onsolidated
Financial Statements:

200¢ 2007 200¢€
(in thousands

Proceeds from the sale of portfolio securi $25,50° $ 73,40 $ 28,24!
Sales with a trade date in current fiscal yeardash

received in subsequent fiscal y — 6,09: (6,093

Proceeds from the sale of si-term investment — 48,32: 91,56
Proceeds from sale of investments per Consolic

Statements of Cash Flo $25,50° $127,81! $113,71!

In 2008, proceeds were from the sale of 170,006esha Schlumberger, Ltd.
and all other available-for-sale securities the @any owned. In 2007,
proceeds were primarily from the sale of 1,012,50éres o

Schlumberger, Ltd. Proceeds in both years wereaiiynused to fund capital
expenditures.

In 2006, proceeds were primarily from the sale38,200 shares of
Schlumberger, Ltd. Proceeds were primarily use@gpoirchase shares of
Company common stock and to fund capital expenestur

The Company has historically been a long-term habdiénvestment securities.
However, circumstances may arise, such as signtficapital spending
requirements or the opportunity to repurchase Coyppgammon stock, that
were not previously contemplated. During 2006 ad@d72 the Company
purchased 2,007,100 shares of Company common at@kaggregate cost
$46.0 million.

The Company's proceeds from asset sales totaleé §fition in 2008,
$51.6 million in 2007 and $11.8 million in 2006.2008, two international lar
rigs were sold generating $13.0 million in proceeds
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Income from asset sales in 2008 totaled $13.5anillin 2007, one U.S. land
rig and two offshore rigs were sold generating $386illion in proceeds.
Income from asset sales in 2007 totaled $41.7anillin 2006, one U.S. land
rig was sold generating $4.8 million in proceedsome from asset sales in
2006 totaled $7.5 million. The rigs sold in eachryeere idle at the time of the
sales and, with the Company's emphasis on Flex@lgblogy, the Company
took advantage of the opportunity to sell oldesrign each year the Company
also had sales of old or damaged rig equipmentatigbipe used in the
ordinary course of business.

In the fourth fiscal quarter of 2006, the Compasgeived approximately
$3.0 million in insurance proceeds from damagetagued to the Company's
offshore Rig 201 during Hurricane Katrina. In 2G081 2007, the Company
received additional insurance proceeds of appraeiyn&5.3 million and
$16.3 million, respectively. During the fourth gtearof fiscal 2007, the
Company's Rig 178 was lost when the well it waBingi had a blowout. Durin
2008, the Company received gross insurance procdeggproximately

$8.7 million in connection with the loss of Rig 178 conjunction with
removing the net book value of damaged equipmesttihoboth incidents, the
Company recorded a gain from involuntary conversibapproximately
$10.2 million in 2008 and $16.7 million in 2007.&8 phroceeds, shown in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows under imgpsittivities, were used to
rebuild Rig 201 and replace Rig 178. The costd@ih rigs were capitalized
with Rig 201 returning to work in the fourth fisagliarter of 2007 and the
replacement rig returning to work in 2008.

Between March 2005 and the end of fiscal 2008(bpany announced
contracts to build and operate 127 new FlexRigR¥%or
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exploration and production companies. SubsequeBeptember 30, 2008, the
Company announced that agreements had been reathdt/e exploration
and production companies to operate an additicdaif the 25 above
mentioned new FlexRigs, bringing the total of tlesvirigs to 140. Eight of
these 140 new rigs were contracted for work inrld@onal Land operations
and the remaining 132 in U.S. Land operations. EEggRement has a minimum
fixed contract term of at least three years. Thiérdy services are performed |
a day work contract basis. Through fiscal 2008, 4g2 were completed for
delivery, and 98 of the 102 rigs began field operest by September 30, 2008.
The remaining rigs are expected to be completeithdynd of the calendar ye
2009. The total estimated construction cost o140 rigs is currently

$2.2 billion, of which over 70 percent was spenthoy end of fiscal 2008.

The Company has $175 million of intermedistem unsecured debt obligatic
with staged maturities from August, 2009 to Aug@stl4. The annual average
interest rate through maturity will be 6.50 percdifite terms of the debt
obligations require the Company to maintain a mummratio of debt to total
capitalization.

The Company has an agreement with a multi-bankisgtedfor a five-year,
$400 million senior unsecured credit facility. T@empany has the option to
borrow at the prime rate for maturities of lesatBa days but anticipates the
majority of all of the borrowings over the life tife new facility will accrue
interest at a spread over the London Interbank E3fidred Rate (LIBOR). Th
Company pays a commitment fee based on the unzdadde of the facility.
The spread over LIBOR and the commitment fee areraened according to a
scale based on the ratio of the Company's totaltdabtal capitalization. The
LIBOR spread ranges from .30 percent to
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.45 percent depending on the ratio. Based on tiatthe close of the fiscal
year, the LIBOR spread on borrowings was .35 pdraed the commitment fee
was .075 percent per annum. Financial covenaritsifacility require the
Company to maintain a funded leverage ratio (asméddj of less than

50 percent and an interest coverage ratio (asetfiof not less than 3.00 to
1.00. The facility contains additional terms, cdiwgtis, and restrictions that the
Company believes are usual and customary in unseaceabt arrangements for
companies that are similar in size and credit ¢palihe advances bear interest
ranging from 2.84 percent to 4.06 percent. At Septr 30, 2008, the Compe
had three letters of credit totaling $25.9 millwmder the facility and had
borrowed $325 million against the facility with $49million remaining
available to borrow. Subsequent to September 318,20e Company reduced
the debt by $35 million and had $84.1 million ashle to borrow.

At September 30, 2008, the Company was in compiavith all debt
covenants.

The Company also has an agreement with a singlefoamn unsecured line of
credit for $5 million. Pricing on the amended lwfecredit is prime minus

1.75 percent. The covenants and other terms amditmors are similar to the
aforementioned senior credit facility except thegre is no commitment fee. At
September 30, 2008, the Company had no outstabadimgwings against this
line.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had an owlistg, secured note
payable to a bank in Argentina totaling $1.7 millenominated in a foreic
currency. The interest rate of the note was 16gmgnwith a one year maturity.
The note and interest were paid in full subseqte®eptember 30, 2008.
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At September 30, 2008, the Company had unsecuttedsl®f credit totaling
$6.3 million and a $0.7 million secured letter océdit, both of which were used
to obtain surety bonds for the international operet

The Company has initiated discussions with lenttesbtain an additional
credit facility. The Company anticipates the amaairthe facility to range fror
$100 million to $150 million and does not expegnsiicant difficulties in
obtaining additional financing. However, becauséhefcurrent conditions of
the credit markets there can be no assuranceriateav financing will be on
equal or better terms than those of the current agieement.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had 118 rigteied with contracts
under fixed term, including 102 covering the FlexRew-build projects. The
duration of the fixed term contracts are from tveehaonths to seven years, w
some expiring in fiscal 2009. The contracts provmetermination at the
election of the customer, with an early terminafayment to be paid to the
Company if a contract is terminated prior to thpieation of the fixed term.
The recent economic slowdown, including the de@ea®il prices and
deterioration in the credit markets is expectedawe an effect on customer
spending. While the Company's customers are priynauajor oil companies
and large independent oil companies, a risk eifistisa customer, especially a
smaller independent oil company, could become @ntbimeet its obligations
and may exercise its early termination election ramicbe able to pay the early
termination fee. Were this to happen, the Compdnitse revenue and
operating results would be negatively impactedihis time, the Company is
unable to predict if this will occur in 2009.
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The Company's operating cash requirements andastihcapital expenditures,
including rig construction, for fiscal 2009 will bended through current cash,
cash provided from operating activities, funds ke under the current credit
facilities, funds available under any new creddility and, possibly, sales of
available-for-sale securities.

Current ratios were 2.2 at both September 30, 20@82007. The long-term
debt to total capitalization ratio was 17 percaert a0 percent at September 30
2008 and 2007, respectively. The decrease is dequiby increasing, primarily
from earnings.

During 2008, the Company paid a dividend of $0.p8bshare, or a total of
$19.9 million, representing the 36th consecutivaryd dividend increases.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD BY THE COMPANY

September 30, 200! Number of Share: Cost Basit Market Value
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Atwood Oceanics, Inc 8,000,00i! $104,91( $291,20!

Schlumberger, Ltc 967,50( 7,68t 75,55

Other 12,36¢ 17,28¢

Total $124,96: $384,03!

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no off balance sheet arrangemt@stbhan operating leas
discussed below. The Company's contractual
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obligations as of September 30, 2008, are sumnuhnizthe table below:

Payments due by yea

Contractual

Obligations Total 200¢ 201C 2011 201z 201z After 2013
(in thousands

Long-term debt (a $ 500,00( $ 25,000 $ — % 325,000 $ 75,000 $ — % 75,00(
Operating leases (| 29,87t 5,83t 4,15¢ 2,59t 2,54: 2,52¢ 12,21¢
Purchast

obligations (b 270,712 270,71 — — — — —
Total Contractua

Obligations $ 800,58¢ $ 301,54¢ $ 4,15¢ $ 327,59 $ 7754: $ 2,52¢ $ 87,21¢

(a) See Note 2 "Notes Payable and Long-term Dielttie Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
(b) See Note 14 "Commitments and Contingencieiet@ompany's Consolidated Financial Statements.

The above table does not include obligations ferGlompany's pension plan
and amounts recorded for uncertain tax positions.

In 2008, the Company contributed $3.1 million te gension plan. Based on
current information available from plan actuarikg Company does not
anticipate contributions to the plan will be reguinn 2009. The Company does
expect to make discretionary contributions to fdigtributions of at least

$5.0 million in 2009. However, due to the declinghe fair value of pension
plan assets during 2008 and the current adverstaoors in the equity, del

and global markets, it is possible that contribngiavill be greater than
expected. Future contributions beyond 2009 arécdiffto estimate due to
multiple variables involved.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had $8.1 mitemorded for uncertain
tax positions and related interest and penaltiesvéver, the timing of such
payments to the respective taxing authorities ceba@stimated at this tim
Income taxes are more fully described in Note h&oConsolidated Financial
Statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statementsrgracted by the
accounting policies used and the estimates ancgdéEans made by
management during their preparation. On an on-goasis, the Company
evaluates the estimates, including those relatéohtyp-lived assets and accrued
insurance losses. The estimates are based oni¢as&xperience and on
various other assumptions that the Company beli®/bs reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities #ratnot readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from thestmates under different
assumptions or conditions. The following is a destan of the critical
accounting policies used in the Company's finarstetlements. Other
significant accounting policies are summarized ateNl to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and EquipmeProperty, plant and equipment, including
renewals and betterments, are stated at cost, mlailetenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. Interest costs applicalileetoonstruction of qualifying
assets are capitalized as a component of the £eath assets. The Company
accounts for the depreciation of property, plamt aquipment using the
straightline method over the estimated useful lives ofabgets. Depreciation
determined based on the estimated salvage valile @iroperty, plant and
equipment. Both the estimated useful lives andaggdwalues require the use o
management estimates. Certain events, such assgator changes in
operations, technology or market conditions, conéderially affect the
Company's estimates and assumptions related tecdapon. Management
believes that these estimates have been mateaiaiiyrate in the past. For the
years presented in this report, no significant geanvere made to the
determinations
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of useful lives or salvage values. Upon retirenwgrather disposal of fixed
assets, the cost and related accumulated deposca® removed from the
respective accounts and any gains or losses avedietin the results of
operations.

Impairment of Lon-lived Asset3he Company's management assesses the
potential impairment of its lor-lived assets whenever events or changes in
conditions indicate that the carrying value of ased may not be recoverable.
Changes that trigger such an assessment may inetiudement obsolescence,
changes in the market demand for a specific agsatds of relatively low rig
utilization, declining revenue per day, decliniraglh margin per day,
completion of specific contracts, and/or overatmpes in general market
conditions. If a review of the long-lived assetdiaates that the carrying value
of certain of these assets is more than the esitnatdiscounted future cash
flows, an impairment charge is made to adjust Hreymng value to the
estimated fair market value of the asset. Theviaue of drilling rigs is
determined based on quoted market prices, if aMail®therwise it is
determined based upon estimated discounted fuaste flows and rig
utilization. Cash flows are estimated by managerensidering factors such
prospective market demand, recent changes inaimtdogy and its effect c
each rig's marketability, any cash investment megliio make a rig marketable,
suitability of rig size and makeup to existing fdamns, and competitive
dynamics due to lower industry utilization. Useddferent assumptions could
result in an impairment charge different from thegdorted.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibl€soodwill represents the excess of
cost over the fair market value of net assets aedun business combinations.
Indefinite-lived intangibles are comprised of
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trademarks. At September 30, 2008, goodwill aneémitidefinite-lived
intangibles totaled $1.9 million, which arose frtme acquisition of TerraVici.
The Company reviews goodwill and other intangildekast annually for
impairment or more frequently if indicators of inpaent warrant additional
analysis. In order to test for impairment, goodadbuired is assigned to
reporting units that are expected to benefit fromdynergies of the related
business combination. The Company determines liegarhits pursuant to
FAS No. 142. Goodwill is evaluated for impairmentflsst comparing
management's estimate of the fair value of a reygptnit with its carrying
value, including goodwill. If the carrying value afreporting unit exceeds its
fair value, a computation of the implied fair valofiegoodwill is compared with
its related carrying value. If the carrying valdelee reporting unit's goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill,ispairment loss is
recognized. The Company's acquisition-related mitde assets are comprised
of non-compete agreements that are amortized @rayds ranging from three
to five years on a straight-line basis.

Self-Insurance AccrualBhe Company self-insures a significant portion of
expected losses relating to worker's compensagemeral liability, employer's
liability, and auto liabilities. Generally, deduais are $1 million or $2 million
per occurrence depending on whether a claim odaosige or outside of th
United States. For rig and equipment property Gbmpany self-insures

$1 million per occurrence, as well as 10 percerthefestimated replacement
cost on offshore rigs and 30 percent of the esgthagplacement cost of its |a
rigs and equipment. The Company purchased an aafgrémit of $100 millior
of "named wind storm" coverage and selures 10 percent of that limit as w
as a $3.5 million deductible. The Company maintagrsain other insurance
coverage with
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deductibles as high as $5 million. Excess insuraperchased over these
coverages to limit the Company's exposure to gafalsic claims, but there can
be no assurance that such coverage will respobd adequate in all
circumstances. Retained losses are estimated andeddbased upon the
Company's estimates of the aggregate liabilitycfarms incurred, and, using
adjuster's estimates, the Company's historicaldgpgrience or estimation
methods that are believed to be reliable. Nonesiselasurance estimates
include certain assumptions and management judgmegarding the
frequency and severity of claims, claim developmantl settlement practices.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may prodhaterially different
amounts of expense and related liabilities.

Pension Costs and ObligatioThe Company's pension benefit costs and
obligations are dependent on various actuarialgsans. The Company
makes assumptions relating to discount ratesofatempensation increase, ¢
expected return on plan assets. The Company'sutliscate is determined by
matching projected cash distributions with the appate corporate bond yiel
in a yield curve analysis. The discount rate wasechfrom 6.25 percent to
7.25 percent as of September 30, 2008 to refleanigds in the market
conditions for high-quality fixed-income investmgent he expected return on
plan assets is determined based on historicalghartiesults and futur
expectations of rates of return. Actual result$ dtiher from estimated
assumptions are accumulated and amortized ovesstiteated future working
life of the plan participants and could therefoifec the expense recognized
and obligations in future periods. As of Septeni&r2006, the Pension Plan
was frozen and benefit accruals were discontinAed result, the rate of
compensation increase assumption has been elirdinate
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from future periods. The Company anticipates panexpense in 2009 to
increase from 2008 by an estimated $1.3 million.

Stock-Based Compensatibinstorically, the Company has granted stock-base
awards to key employees and non-employee direatopart of their
compensation. The Company estimates the fair valadl stock option awards
as of the date of grant by applying the Black-Sekaption-pricing model. The
application of this valuation model involves asstions, some of which are
judgmental and highly sensitive. These assumpfimciade, among others, tl
expected stock price volatility, the expected &ifédhe stock options and risk-
free interest rate. Expected volatilities wereraated using the historical
volatility of the Company's stock, based upon theeeted term of the option.
The Company considers information in determinirgdhant date fair value tf
would have indicated that future volatility would bxpected to be significantly
different than historical volatility. The expecteam of the option was derived
from historical data and represents the periodhoéd that options are estimated
to be outstanding. The risk-free interest ratgpmods within the estimated life
of the option was based on the U.S. Treasury &itgin effect at the time of
the grant. The fair value of each award is amadtize a straight-line basis over
the vesting period for awards granted to employ8exkbased awards grant
to non-employee directors are expensed immediatay grant.

The fair value of restricted stock is based onclbsing price of the Company's
common stock on the date of grant. The Company @asrthe fair value of
restricted stock awards to compensation expensestraightine basis over tr
vesting period. At September 30, 2008, unrecognizedpensation cost related
to
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unvested restricted stock was $3.6 million. The expected to be recogni:
over a weighted-average period of 2.5 years.

Revenue RecognititRevenues and expenses for day work contracts are
recognized daily as the work progresses. For cec@antracts, payments are
received that are contractually designated fontbéilization of rigs and other
drilling equipment. Revenues earned, net of dicests incurred for the
mobilization, are deferred and recognized ovettéine of the related drilling
contract. Other lumgum payments received from customers relatingeciBp
contracts are deferred and amortized to incomemgss are performed. Costs
incurred to relocate rigs and other drilling equgmito areas in which a
contract has not been secured are expensed ageithcur

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standarisré ("FASB") issued
Interpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 ("FIN 48This interpretation
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureateiitutes for the financic
statement recognition and measurement of a taxiposaken or expected to
taken in a tax return, and provides guidance oaatgnition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim pijalisclosure, and transition.
This interpretation was adopted by the Company laatd, 2007. The net
impact to the Company of the cumulative effectad@ing FIN 48, as more
fully discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated FaianStatements, was a
decrease of approximately $5.0 million in retaieagnings.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value
Measurement. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establisheaméwork for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures dhoutalue measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginningggaNovember 15, 2007 and
will be adopted by the Company beginning in thstfijuarter of fiscal 2009.
Although the Company will continue to evaluate #ipplication of SFAS

No. 157, management does not currently believe temopiill have a materie
impact on the Company's financial condition or apieg results. In February
2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FASZ-2,Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 1(FSP 157-2). FSP 157-2 amends SFAS No. E&if,
Value Measurementdo delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for noaficial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except fomisethat are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statememisa recurring basis (that is, at
least annually) and will be adopted by the Comgdagwyinning in the first
guarter of fiscal 2010. In October 2008, the FAS&ied FSP No. 157-3,
Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Wilee Market for Tha
Asset is Not Activ(FSP 157-3), to clarify the application of SFAS 187
inactive markets for financial assets. FSP B33came effective upon issuar

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T%® Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabiliti— Including an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115FAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 establishes a fameval
option permitting entities to elect the option teasure eligible financial
instruments and certain other items at fair valuespecified election dates.
Unrealized gains and losses on items for whicHdhesalue option has been
elected will be reported in earnings. The fair eatyption may be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis and, with a few exioas, is
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irrevocable and is applied only to entire instrutseand not to portions of
instruments. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of thgirm@ng of the first fiscal
year beginning after November 15, 2007 and shootda applied
retrospectively to fiscal years beginning priothe effective date, except as
permitted for early adoption. At the effective daia entity may elect the fe
value option for eligible items existing at thateland the adjustment for the
initial remeasurement of those items to fair vadbeuld be reported as a
cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balarfaetained earnings. The
Company has elected not to adopt the elective gpiang of SFAS No. 159.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 14PB8&termining the Useful
Life of Intangible Assel(FSP SFAS 142-3). FSP SFAS 142-3 amends the
factors that should be considered in developingweth or extension
assumptions used to determine the useful liferetagnized intangible asset
under SFAS 142. This FSP is effective for fiscargebeginning after
December 15, 2008, and interim periods within thgesars. This FSP must be
applied prospectively to intangible assets acquaféer the effective date.
Accordingly, the Company will adopt FSP SFAS 14i-#scal year 2010.

In June 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position (FHFP} 03-6-1,Determining
Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payiiranisactions Are
Participating Securitie;, to clarify that all outstanding unvested sharselola
payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rightdividends or dividen
equivalents, whether paid or unpaid, are partioigatecurities. An entity must
include participating securities in its calculatiminbasic and diluted earnings
per share pursuant to the I-class method in SFAS No. 128, Earnings per
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Share. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for fiscal welaeginning after
December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evinlg&SP EITF 03-6-1 to
determine the impact, if any, on the Consolidatediicial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141BR3jness Combinations
and SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Codated Financial
Statements-an amendment of ARB Na.Bdth of these standards are effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal yeargitn@ing after December 15,
2008. SFAS No. 141(R) will be applied prospectivielypusiness combinations
occurring after the effective date. Earlier apglmais prohibited. The
Company is currently evaluating the potential impH@dopting SFAS No. 1¢
but does not expect its adoption to have a sigamfiampact on the Consolidal
Financial Statements.

In June 2007, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. @6Accounting for Income
Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based PaymeatdS{EITF 06-11).

EITF 06-11 requires that the income tax benefitgireed on dividends or
dividend equivalents paid to employees holding seciassified shares be
recorded as additional paid-in capital when thedéinds or dividend
equivalents are charged to retained earnings potrsoi&FAS No. 123(R). This
EITF is applied prospectively and is effective fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2007, and interim periods within thgessars. EITF 06-11 also
requires the disclosure of any change in accoumaligy for income tax
benefits of dividends or dividend equivalents oarsbased payment awards
a result of adoption. The Company will adopt EIT&=10 beginning in the first
guarter of fiscal 2009 and does not expect its adiopo have a significant
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate RThe Company has operations in several
South American countries and Africa. With the extmapof Argentina and
Venezuela, the Company's exposure to currency trafuksses is usually
immaterial due to the fact that virtually all ineei billings and receipts in other
countries are in U.S. dollars. In Argentina, thar(@any's exposure is limited
the fact that the exchange rate between the Ulardmd the Argentine peso
has stayed within a narrow range for the last sgeams.

On January 1, 2008, the Venezuelan government eldathg official
Venezuelan currency from the bolivar to the boliftaarte (Bsf) (2150 bolivars
equals 2.15 bolivar fuerte). The Company is expaseawsks of currency
devaluation in Venezuela primarily as a result sf ceivable balances and
Bsf cash balances. In Venezuela, approximatelye®Ogmt of the Company's
billings to the Venezuelan state oil company, PDY&¢e in U.S. dollars and
40 percent are in the local currency, the bolivarte. In January 2003, the
Venezuelan government put into effect exchangerolathat fixed the
exchange rate at 1,600 bolivares to one U.S. datidralso prohibited the
Company, as well as other companies, from conwgthie bolivar into

U.S. dollars. On October 1, 2003, in compliancénapplicable regulations, tl
Company submitted a request to the Venezuelan gowart seeking
permission to convert existing bolivar balances ldtS. dollars. In Janua
2004, the Venezuelan government approved the csiaveof bolivar cash
balances to U.S. dollars and the remittance of 88ll8&n U.S. dollars as
dividends by the Company's Venezuelan subsidiatlgddJ).S. based parent.
This was the first dividend remitted under the megulation. On January 16,
2006, a dividend
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of $6.5 million U.S. dollars was paid to the U.&sbd parent. On August 18,
2006, the Company applied for a $9.3 million divideThe Venezuelan
government subsequently approved $7.2 million &f dividend and on
March 6, 2007, the $7.2 million was paid to the Uh&sed parent. As a
consequence, the Company's exposure to currenauddn has been reduc
by these amounts.

On July 22, 2008, the Company submitted applicatieith the Venezuelan
government requesting the approval to convert boliverte cash balances to
U.S. dollars. When and if the Company receives amrfrom the Venezuelan
government, the Company's Venezuelan subsidiatyevilit approximately
$28.4 million as a dividend to its U.S. based pardns reducing the
Company's exposure to currency devaluation.

While the Company has been successful in obtaigowgrnment approval for
conversion of bolivars to U.S. dollars, there isguarantee that future
conversion to U.S. dollars will be permitted. le #vent that conversion to U
dollars would be prohibited, then bolivar fuertsltdalances would increase
and expose the Company to increased risk of detvafua

As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in
Venezuela primarily as a result of Bsf receivalrld aash balances. The
exchange rate per U.S. dollar increased to 2150dvek (2.15 Bsf) during 20!
from 1920 bolivares at September 30, 2004. As altre§the 12 percent
devaluation of the bolivar during fiscal 2005 (fr@eptember 2004 through
August 2005), the Company experienced total detialudosses of $0.6 millio
during that same period. Past devaluation lossgsnoiabe reflective of the
actual potential for future devaluation losses.rEve
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though Venezuela continues to operate under theaexye controls in place a
the Venezuelan Bsf exchange rate is fixed at 24f8dBone U.S. dollar, the
exact amount and timing of devaluation is uncertainSeptember 30, 2008, f
Company had a $43.4 million cash balance denondnatBsf included in the
balance sheet and exposed to the risk of curreecgldation. While the
Company is unable to predict future devaluation@mezuela, if fiscal 2009
balance sheet components are similar to fiscal 2008f a 10 percent to

30 percent devaluation were to occur, the Companjdceexperience potential
currency devaluation losses ranging from approxagak7.0 million to

$18.0 million.

The Company has an agreement with the Venezuaé ®troleum company
whereby a portion of the Company's dollar-basedices are paid in U.S.
dollars. There is no guarantee as to how longatrengement will continue.
Were this agreement to end, the Company would téveeceiving all
payments in Bsf and thus increase Bsf cash balarmbexposure t
devaluation.

The Venezuelan subsidiary has received notificdtiom PDVSA that
reimbursement of U.S. dollar invoices previouslydpa Bsf will be made only
when supporting documentation has been approvezsiipporting
documentation has been delivered to PDVSA and @&tag approval. The
approval and subsequent payment would result inaiad the foreign currency
exposure by approximately $46.3 million. The Comperunable to determine
the timing of when payment will be received.

Credit RiskThe Company derives its revenue in Venezuela fradd$A. At
September 30, 2008, the Company had a net receifraoh PDVSA of
$65.5 million of which $5.2 million was 90 days
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old or older. At November 1, 2008, such receivdd@dlance had decreased to
approximately $63.9 million, of which approximatél$3.5 million was 90 da
old or older. The Company continues to communivatlke PDVSA regarding
the settlement of the outstanding receivables. &\thié collection of the
receivables is difficult and time consuming du€’@VSA policies and
procedures, the Company, at this time, has no ne@asbelieve the amounts w
not be paid. Historically, PDVSA payments on acdeuaceivable have, by
traditional business measurements, been slowerttivese of other customers in
international countries in which the Company hakimty operations.

Commodity Price Riskhe demand for contract drilling services is a ltesiu
exploration and production companies spending momeyxplore and develop
drilling prospects in search of crude oil and naltg@as. Their appetite for such
spending is driven by their cash flow and finansiaéngth, which is very
dependent on, among other things, crude oil angraleas commaodity prices.
Crude oil prices are determined by a number obfaancluding supply and
demand, worldwide economic conditions, and geaopalifactors. Crude oil al
natural gas prices have been volatile and verycdiffto predict. While current
energy prices are important contributors to positash flow for customers,
expectations about future prices and price volatdre generally more
important for determining future spending levelgisTvolatility has led many
exploration and production companies to base tapital spending on much
more conservative estimates of commodity pricesa Assult, demand for
contract drilling services is not always purelyuadtion of the movement of
commodity prices.
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In addition, customers may finance their explomagativities through cash flc
from operations, the incurrence of debt or theasse of equity. The recent
deterioration in the credit and capital marketsl@onake it difficult for
customers to obtain funding for their capital ne&dseduction of cash flow
resulting from declines in commodity prices or duetion of available
financing may result in a reduction in customemsjdeg and the demand for
drilling services. This reduction in spending cohli’e a material adverse eft
on the Company's operations.

The prices for drilling rig components have expeced increases in the last
year. While these materials have generally beeiadla to the Company at
acceptable prices, there is no assurance the prittesot vary significantly in
the future. The Company attempts to secure favenatites through advanced
ordering and purchasing, but future fluctuationsigwrket conditions causing
increased prices in materials and supplies coupanfuture operating costs
adversely.

Interest Rate RisThe Company's interest rate risk exposure restilisapily
from short-term rates, mainly LIBOBRased, on borrowings from its commer
banks. The Company has reduced the impact of fitictos in interest rates by
maintaining a portion of its debt portfolio in fickgate debt. At September 30,
2008, the amount of the Company's fixed-rate delst approximately

35 percent of total debt.

The following tables provide information as of Sapber 30, 2008 and 2007
about the Company's interest rate risk sensitisguments:

INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 (dollass in thousands)

After Fair Value
200¢ 201C 2011 201z 201: 201: Total 9/30/0¢
Fixed Rate Dek $ 25,000 $ — $ — $ 75,00( — $ 75,000 $ 175,00 $ 198,00(
Average Interest Ra 5.5% — — 6.5% — 6.€% 6.5%
Variable Rate Dek $ — $ — $ 325,000 $ — — — % 325,000 $ 325,00(
Average Interest
Rate (a) — — — — — — (a

(&) Advances bear interest rates ranging from 2084 4.06%
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INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 (dollass in thousands)

Fair Value
After
200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 201z 201z Total 9/30/07

Fixed Rate Dek $ — $ 25,00C $ —$ — $ 75,000 $ 75,000 $ 175,000 $ 182,26!
Average Interest Ra — 5.9% — — 6.5% 6.€% 6.5%

Variable Rate Dek $ — $ — $ — % 270,00 $ — 3 — 3 270,000 $ 270,00(
Average Interest
Rate (a) — — — — — — (a)

(a) Advances bear interest rates ranging from %48 6.15%

Equity Price RislOn September 30, 2008, the Company had a portblio
securities with a total market value of $384.0 ol The total market value of
the portfolio of securities was $457.5 million a&pfember 30, 2007. The
Company's investments in Atwood Oceanics, Inc.&ectldumberger, Ltd. made
up 95 percent of the portfolio's market value git@8mber 30, 2008. Although
the Company sold portions of its positions in Soffderger in 2008, 2007 and
2006, the Company makes no specific plans to selirsties, but rather sells
securities based on market conditions and otheumistances. These securities
are subject to a wide variety and number of maré&kstted risks that could
substantially reduce or increase the market valtlieeoCompany's holdings.
Except for the Company's holdings in its equityliate, Atwood Oceanics, In
and investments in limited partnerships carriecost, the portfolio is recorded
at fair value on its balance sheet with changemmealized after-tax value
reflected in the equity section of its balance sh&eNovember 20, 2008, the
total market value of the portfolio of securitiedhdeclined to approximately
$175 million. Currently, the fair value exceeds tiost of the investments and,
as such, impairment of the investments is not egleduring the first fiscal
guarter of 2009. The Company continues to monfterfair market value of the
investments but is unable to predict future mavidtility and any potential
impact to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsimeets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. as of Septe3®e2008
and 2007, and the related consolidated stateméntsamne, shareholders' equity, and cash flows#mh of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2008. Timeseial statements are the responsibility of@menpany's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancet alftether the
financial statements are free of material misstaté@mAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statgsn An audit also includes assessing the acewuptinciples used
and significant estimates made by management, hasvevaluating the overall financial statememsgntation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable asmur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated
financial position of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. atp&amber 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidatedisesf its
operations and its cash flows for each of the tlygsers in the period ended September 30, 200&nfoomity with U.S
generally accepted accounting principles.

As explained in Note 1 to the consolidated finahsiatements, effective October 1, 2007, the Compaiopted FASB
Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertaimtylncome Taxes," an Interpretation of FASB Statenido. 109.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited
States), Helmerich & Payne Inc.'s internal contnadr financial reporting as of September 30, 2@@8ed on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framéwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatf the
Treadway Commission and our report dated Novembg2@08 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 25, 200
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended September 3(

OPERATING REVENUES
Drilling — U.S. Land
Drilling — Offshore
Drilling — International Lanc
Other

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Operating costs, excluding depreciat
Depreciatior
Research and developm:e
Acquired ir-process research and developn
General and administratiy
Gain from involuntary conversion of lo-lived asset:
Income from asset sal

Operating income

Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon
Interest expens
Gain on sale of investment securit
Other

Income before income taxes and equity in incomaffifate
Income tax provisiol
Equity in income of affiliate net of income tax

NET INCOME

Earnings per common sha
Basic
Diluted
Average common shares outstanding (in thousa
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.

200¢ 2007 200¢

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 1,542,03 $ 1,174,95 $ 829,06:
154,45; 123,14¢ 154,54:
328,24 320,28: 230,82

11,80¢ 11,27 10,37¢
2,036,54: 1,629,665 1,224,81;
1,086,661 862,25 661,56t
210,76t 146,04: 101,58:
1,83¢ — —
11,12¢ — —
57,05¢ 47,40 51,87
(10,23¢) (16,66.) —
(13,49() (41,69 (7,497)
1,343,72 997,33 807,52
692,81 632,31 417,28
5,03¢ 4,23¢ 9,83¢
(18,68¢) (10,126) (6,644)
21,99¢ 65,45¢ 19,86¢
(1,230 (1,537) 63¢
7,11¢ 58,03« 23,69
699,92 690,35: 440,98:
255,55 250,98 154,39:
17,36¢ 9,89: 7,26¢

$ 461,73¢ $ 449,26. $ 293,85

$ 44 % 438 % 2.81
$ 43. % 427 $ 2.71
104,28 103,33t 104,65t
106,42: 105,12¢ 106,09:
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
200¢ 2007
September 30
(in thousands

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 121,51 $ 89,21!
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $1,331 in 20@B%$2,957 in 200 462,83 339,81
Inventories 33,09¢ 29,14¢
Deferred income taxe 21,93¢ 11,55¢
Prepaid expenses and otl 51,26¢ 29,22t
Total current asse 690,64" 498,96
INVESTMENTS 199,26¢ 223,36(

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cos

Contract drilling equipmer 3,263,81! 2,651,68!
Construction in progres 279,42. 214,64.
Real estate propertit 60,81 59,467
Other 150,20( 131,48
3,754,25. 3,057,27.

Les«-Accumulated depreciatic 1,072,001 904,65!
Net property, plant and equipme 2,682,25 2,152,611
OTHER ASSETS 15,88: 10,42¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,588,04! $ 2,885,36!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.

45




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Notes payabli

Long-term debt due within one ye

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt
Deferred income taxe
Other

Total noncurrent liabilitie:

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, $.10 par value, 160,000,000 shartb®r@zed,
107,057,904 shares issued and outstar

Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shardéeedréd, no shares issu

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Less treasury stock, 1,835,483 shares in 2008 and
3,572,961 shares in 2007, at ¢

Total shareholders' equi

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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200¢ 2007

(in thousands, except share data

and per share amoun

$ 153,85: $ 124,55t
128,37 102,05¢
1,73¢ —
25,00( —
308,95 226,61.
475,00( 445,00(
479,96: 363,53«
58,65 34,70°
1,013,61 843,24
10,70¢ 10,70¢
169,49° 143,14¢
2,082,51 1,645,761
38,40" 75,88
2,301,12 1,875,50:
35,65¢ 59,981
2,265,47. 1,815,51
$ 3,588,04! $ 2,885,36!




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Balance, September 30,20

Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive
income:

Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale
securities, ne

Minimum pension
liability adjustment,
net

Total other comprehensive
gain

Total comprehensive incon

Reversal of unearned
compensation upon
adoption of SFAS123(F

Cash dividends ($.1725 per
share’

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based
awards, including excess
tax benefits of $10.2 millio

Repurchase of common sta

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, September30, 20
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Unrealized losses on
available-for-sale
securities, ne
Minimum pension
liability adjustment,
net

Total other comprehensive
gain

Total comprehensive incon

Cash dividends ($.18 per
per share

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based
awards, including excess
tax benefits of $1.5 millio

Repurchase of common sta

Stoclk-based compensatic

Balance, September 30, 2C
Adjustment to initially apply
FASB Interpretation No. 4
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive
loss:

Unrealized losses on
available-for-sale
securities, ne

Amortization of net
periodic benefit
costs — net of
actuarial
gain (net of
$4.1 million income
tax)

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Compensation

Accumulated

Treasury Stock

Shares

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Amount

Total

107,05¢ $

10,70¢ $

106,94« $

(66)

6,01¢

12,85!

9,752

(in thousands, except per share amot

939,38( $

293,85¢

(18,111

(134 $

134

47,54: 3,18¢ $

17,59:

4,51(

1C

(1,339

1,32¢

(25,20)

(68)

6,35:¢

(30,169

$ 1,079,23

293,85¢

17,59:

4,51(

22,10

315,95¢

(18,112)
12,37:

12,85:
(30,169
9,75:

107,05¢

10,70t

135,50(

(1,156)

1,792

7,01C

1,215,12°

449,26:

(18,629

69,64t 3,18¢

(2,930

9,17¢

(295

682

(49,086

4,95¢

(15,859

1,381,89:

449,26:

(2,930

9,17(C

6,24(

455,50:

(18,629
3,80:

1,79:
(15,859

b

107,05t

10,70t

143,14¢

1,645,761
(5,049

461,73t

75,88 3,57¢

(30,869

(6,619

(59,98)

1,815,51
(5,049

461,73t

(30,869

(6,619



Total other comprehensive
loss (37,47¢%)

Total comprehensive incon 424,26(

Capital adjustment of

equity investe 1,66¢ 1,66¢
Cash dividends ($.185 per

share’ (19,93% (19,93%)
Exercise of stock optior (9,740 (1,735 24,27 14,537

Tax benefit of stock-based
awards, including excess

tax benefits of $24.9 millio 27,02 27,02:
Treasury stock issued for

vested restricted sto: (56) 3) 56 —
Stocl-based compensatic 7,45¢€ 7,45¢
Balance, September30, 20 107,05¢ $ 10,70¢ $ 169,49° $ 2,082,51 $ — 3 38,407 183t $ (35,659 $ 2,265,47.

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30,

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating activit
Depreciatior
Provision for bad det
Equity in income of affiliate before income ta»
Stocl-based compensatic
Gain on sale of investment securit
Gain from involuntary conversion of lo-lived asset:
Income from asset sal
Acquired ir-process research and developn
Deferred income tax expen
Other
Change in assets and liabiliti¢
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income taxe
Other noncurrent liabilitie

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditure
Acquisition of business, net of cash acqui
Proceeds from asset sa
Insurance proceeds from involuntary conver:
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of investme

Net cash used in investing activiti

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of common sto
Increase (decrease) in notes payi
Decrease in lor-term debt
Proceeds from line of crec
Payments on line of crec
Increase (decrease) in bank overd
Dividends paic
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.
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200¢ 2007 200¢
(in thousands
461,73t $ 449,26 $ 293,85¢
210,76t 146,04: 101,58:
704 1,03( 25C
(28,009 (15,959 (11,729
7,45¢ 7,01( 9,752
(21,869 (65,32() (19,730)
(10,23¢) (16,667) —
(13,49() (41,697 (7,497)
11,12¢ — —
117,99¢ 82,29: 3,50¢
— 1,00¢ (987)
(127,99) (53,779 (120,740
(3,959) (2,980) (4,857)
(25,60z2) (18,60¢) 37z
(15,657) 73,78( (11,069
28,21« 5,29¢ 55,11:
11,59¢ 6,107 4,49(
8,02¢ 4,23t 4,057
610,82¢ 561,06 296,39(
(705,63 (894,21, (528,90
(12,047) — _
22,90¢ 51,56¢ 11,77¢
13,92¢ 16,257 2,97(
— — (148,441
25,507 127,81 113,71
(655,33 (698,57() (548,88
— (17,62:) (28,407)
1,73% (3,72)) 3,721
— (25,000 —
3,550,001 1,490,001 —
(3,495,001 (1,220,001 —
— (17,43() 17,43(
(19,33) (18,63¢) (17,717
14,53] 3,80: 12,37.
24,86¢ 1,47 10,18¢
76,80¢ 192,86! (2,407
32,29¢ 55,36: (254,89
89,21¢ 33,85: 288,75
121,51 $ 89,21¢ $ 33,85!¢




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the Compangyl &s wholly-owned subsidiaries. Fisc
years of the Company's foreign operations end aguau31 to facilitate reporting of consolidatedutess There were no significant interveni
events which materially affected the financial staénts.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidateghfiial statements for prior periods have beerassiled to conform to current year
presentation. Specifically, as more fully describellote 15, the Real Estate segment previouslyatseparately has been included with all
other non-reportable business segments.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company's functional currency for all its fgresubsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Nonmonetarg@sand liabilities are translated at histor
rates and monetary assets and liabilities areltgausat exchange rates in effect at the end opéned. Income statement accounts are
translated at average rates for the year. Gainsossds from remeasurement of foreign currencynfife statements into U.S. dollars are
included in direct operating costs. Gains and ®sesulting from foreign currency transactionsase included in current results of operatic
Aggregate foreign currency remeasurement and tetingagains included in direct operating costsleatgs1.0 million in 2007 and losses
included in direct operating costs totaled $1.8ioriland $0.3 million in 2008 and 2006, respectvel

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company's financial stateémignconformity with accounting principles genéyalccepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) requires management to make estisnatel assumptions that affect reported amountssetsiand liabilities and disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those esties.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Substantially all @ryp plant and equipment are depreciated
using the straight-line method based on the estidhaseful lives of the assets (contract drillingipment, 4-15 years; real estate buildings and
equipment, 10-50 years; and otheB3years). Depreciation in the Consolidated Statesnaf Income includes abandonments of $13.3 mil
$4.1 million and $1.7 million for 2008, 2007 anddB0 respectively. The Company charges the costaifitenance and repairs to direct
operating cost, while betterments and refurbishsarg capitalized.
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CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

The Company capitalizes interest on major projdating construction. Interest is capitalized basedhe average interest rate on related debt.
Capitalized interest for 2008, 2007, and 2006 whg #illion, $9.4 million, and $6.1 million, respaely.

VALUATION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates the carryingiealf long-lived assets to be held and used, inouthtangible assets, when events or
circumstances warrant such a review. Changes thdd ¢rigger such an assessment may include afisigni decline in revenue or cash margin
per day, extended periods of low rig utilizatiohanges in market demand for a specific asset, ebsahce, completion of specific contracts,
and/or overall general market conditions. If a eewbf the long-lived assets indicates that theyoagrvalue of certain of these assets is more
than the estimated undiscounted future cash flawsmpairment charge is made to adjust the carryabge to the estimated fair market value
of the asset.

ACQUISITIONS

The Company accounts for acquired businesses tlg#ngurchase method of accounting which requirasttie assets acquired and liabilities
assumed be recorded at the date of acquisitidreatrespective fair values. Any excess of the pase price over the estimated fair values of
the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwilbukts allocated to acquired in-process researcldanelopment are expensed at the date of
acquisition. The judgments made in determiningetbtémated fair value assigned to each class ofsaasquired and liabilities assumed, as
as asset lives, can materially impact results efaions. Accordingly, for significant items, asaige from third party valuation specialists is
typically obtained. The valuations are based oarinftion available near the acquisition date aedhased on expectations and assumptions
that have been deemed reasonable by management.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over therfarket value of net assets acquired in businesgbmations. Indefinite-lived intangibles are
comprised of trademarks. At September 30, 2008dgidband other indefinite-lived intangibles totdl§1.9 million, which arose from the
acquisition of TerraVici Drilling Solutions. The @gany reviews goodwill and other intangibles anlyyaluring the fourth fiscal quarter, for
impairment or more frequently if indicators of impaent warrant additional analysis. In order td fes impairment, goodwill acquired is
assigned to reporting units that are expected nefitsfrom the synergies of the related businesshination. The Company determines
reporting units pursuant to SFAS No. 142. Goodigitvaluated for impairment by first comparing mggraent's estimate of the fair value of a
reporting unit with its carrying value, includinggdwill. If the carrying value of a reporting ueixceeds its fair value, a computation of the
implied fair value of goodwill is compared with itslated carrying value. If the carrying value foé reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairmdoss is recognized. The Company's acquisition-eel@itangible assets are comprised of non-
compete agreements that are amortized over pa@odsng from three to five years on a straight-linaeis.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of investments in shontst@ighly liquid securities having original matiies of three months or less. The carrying
values of these assets approximate their fair ardees. The Company
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primarily utilizes a cash management system witkrées of separate accounts consisting of locklsogunts for receiving cash, concentration
accounts for moving funds into, and several "zeatashce" disbursement accounts for funding payrudl @accounts payable. As a result of the
Company's cash management system, checks issuathtipresented to the banks for payment, may emegative book cash balances.
Checks outstanding in excess of related book cakinbes are included in accounts payable wherécappg and included as a financing
activity in the Consolidated Statements of CastwElo

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company had restricted cash and cash equisad¢®t.3.3 million and $8.2 million at September 3008 and 2007, respectively.
Restricted cash is primarily for the purpose ofpdial insurance claims in the Company's wholly-edigaptive insurance company. Of the
total at September 30, 2008, $2.0 million is frdra initial capitalization of the captive and managet has elected to restrict an additional
$8.6 million. The remaining $2.7 million restrictedsh consists of $0.7 million for indemnification outstanding surety bonds and

$2.0 million held in escrow in conjunction with thequisition of TerraVici Drilling Solutions. Thestricted amounts are primarily invested in
short-term money market securities.

The restricted cash and cash equivalents are tefléc the balance sheet as follows (in thousands):

September 30 200¢ 2007
Other current asse $ 10,27¢ $ 6,20:
Other asset $ 3,01z $ 2,00(

INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies are primarily replacenpamts and supplies held for use in the Companijl;igroperations. Inventories and supplies
are valued at the lower of cost (moving averagactual) or market value.

DRILLING REVENUES

Contract drilling revenues are comprised of daywdriking contracts for which the related revenaesl expenses are recognized as services
are performed. For certain contracts, the Compeogives payments contractually designated for thieilimation of rigs and other drilling
equipment. Mobilization payments received, andalioests incurred for the mobilization, are deféraad recognized on a straight line basis
over the term of the related drilling contract. @dacurred to relocate rigs and other drilling ipguent to areas in which a contract has not
secured are expensed as incurred. Reimbursemesigae by the Company for out-of-pocket expensesetcorded as revenues and direct
costs.

RENT REVENUES

The Company enters into leases with tenants ireitsal properties consisting primarily of retaidamulti-tenant warehouse space. The lease
terms of tenants occupying space in the retailersrand warehouse buildings range from one to elggars. Minimum rents are recognizec
a straight-line basis over the term of the reldades. Overage and percentage rents are basedammst sales volume. Recoveries from
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tenants for property taxes and operating expernsaeaognized in other operating revenues in thesGlidated Statements of Income. The
Company's rent revenues are as follows:

Years Ended September 3( 200¢ 2007 200¢
(in thousands)

Minimum rents $ 9,46¢ $ 8,87: $ 8,53¢

Overage and percentage re $ 1,582 $ 1,47¢ $ 1,21¢

At September 30, 2008, minimum future rental incdmbe received on noncancelable operating leaassaw follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2009 $ 7,82¢
2010 7,00¢
2011 5,301
2012 3,56¢
2013 2,31¢
Thereaftel 9,54¢

Total $ 35,55¢

Leasehold improvement allowances are capitalizeldsamortized over the lease term.

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the cost and adateduwepreciation for real estate properties wasriollows (in thousands):

September 30 200¢ 2007
Real estate propertir $ 60,81: $ 59,46"
Accumulated depreciatic (36,15%) (33,88¢)
$ 24,65¢ $ 25,58:
I I
INVESTMENTS

The Company maintains investments in equity sdesraf unaffiliated companies. The cost of seasitised in determining realized gains and
losses is based on the average cost basis of¢hdtgesold.

The Company regularly reviews investment securfiesmpairment based on criteria that include ¢lkéent to which the investment's carrying
value exceeds its related market value, the duratidhe market decline and the financial streragiti specific prospects of the issuer of the
security. Unrealized losses that are other thapésary are recognized in earnings.

Investments in companies owned from 20 to 50 pémenaccounted for using the equity method with@ompany recognizing its
proportionate share of the income or loss of testee. The Company currently
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owns 8,000,000 shares of Atwood Oceanics, Inc. (dtly which represents approximately 12.5 percedttwbod. The Company continues to
account for Atwood on the equity method as the Camyrontinues to have significant influence throitghboard of director seats.

The quoted market value of the Company's investinefitwood was $291.2 million and $306.2 million@¢ptember 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Retained earnings at September 318 a8Ad 2007 includes approximately $60.5 milliod &41.5 million, respectively, of
undistributed earnings of Atwood.

Summarized financial information of Atwood is afidws:

September 30 200¢ 2007 200¢
(in thousands

Gross revenue $ 526,60 $ 403,03 $ 276,62!

Costs and expens 311,16¢ 264,01: 190,50¢

Net income $ 215,43¢ $ 139,02 $ 86,12:

| | |

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s equity in net income, ofet

income taxe $ 17,36¢ $ 9,89 $ 7,26¢
| | |
Current assel $ 308,26: $ 216,17¢ $ 147,67
Noncurrent asse 791,69: 501,54 446,15t
Current liabilities 60,21 57,63( 61,36¢
Noncurrent liabilities 196,05¢ 44,23¢ 73,57(
Shareholders' equil $ 843,69( $ 615,85! $ 458,89
| | |
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s investme $ 104,91( $ 74,21( $ 58,25¢
| | |

INCOME TAXES

Current income tax expense is the amount of inctaxes expected to be payable for the current Yferred income taxes are computed
using the liability method and are provided ontathporary differences between the financial basisthe tax basis of the Company's assets
and liabilities.

The Company provides for uncertain tax positiongmvbuch tax positions do not meet the recognitioesholds or measurement standards
prescribed by Financial Accounting Standards Bdaterpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of
FASB Statement No. 1(FIN 48), which was adopted by the Company effec@ctober 1, 2007, as more fully discussed in [o#mounts

for uncertain tax positions are adjusted in perietien new information becomes available or wheiitipos are effectively settled. The
Company recognizes accrued interest related taagrezed tax benefits in interest expense and pieaah other expense in the Consolidation
Statements of Income.

SELF INSURANCE ACCRUALS

The Company has accrued a liability for estimatedker's compensation claims incurred. The liabfiitiy other benefits to former or inactive
employees after employment but before retiremenbtanaterial.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighve@dge number of common shares outstanding dunmgériod. Diluted earnings per share
includes the dilutive effect of stock options aedtricted stock.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company records compensation expense assowiitestock options in accordance with SFAS No.(R)3"Share-Based Payment". The
Company adopted the modified prospective transitiethod provided under SFAS No. 123(R) effectivéoDer 1, 2005. Under this transition
method, compensation expense associated with sfans recognized in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 20@6intes: 1) expense related to the
remaining unvested portion of all stock option asgagranted prior to October 1, 2005, based on et glate fair value estimated in
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123; and 2) expense related to all stock optioarde/granted subsequent to October 1,
2005, based on the grant date fair value estimatadcordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 133Fmpensation expense related to the
Company's stock options is recorded as a comparigrg@neral and administrative expenses in the Qioleded Statements of Income.

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are accounted for undexodt method whereby the cost of the acquirek $soecorded as treasury stock. Gains
losses on the subsequent reissuance of shareseditd or charged to additional paid-in-capitahgshe average-cost method.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadsl&oard ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 154ir Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneiag fair value and expands disclosures abouvédue measurements. SFAS No. 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Novemb&r 2007 and will be adopted by the Company begénim the first quarter of fiscal 2009.
Although the Company will continue to evaluate #ipplication of SFAS No. 157, management does noently believe adoption will have a
material impact on the Company's financial conditio operating results. In February 2008, the FASSBed FASB Staff Position No.

FAS 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No. (B3P 157-2). FSP 157-2 amends SFAS No. E&if,Value Measurementgo delay the
effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assetd nonfinancial liabilities, except for items tlaae recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (ghatt least annually) and will be adopted by@enpany beginning in the first quarter of fis
2010. In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP No.3 &¥termining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset Whiee Market for That Asset is M
Active(FSP 157-3), to clarify the application of SFAS 1B Thactive markets for financial assets. FSP 3%&came effective upon issuance.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T3 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 establishes a fainevalption permitting entities to elect the option t
measure eligible financial instruments and certdiirer items at fair value on specified electioredatUnrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected vélréported in earnings. The fair value option maypplied on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and, with a few exceptions, is irrevocabl iarapplied only to entire
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instruments and not to portions of instruments. S. 159 is effective as of the beginning of tingt fiscal year beginning after

November 15, 2007 and should not be applied resicisgely to fiscal years beginning prior to theeetive date, except as permitted for ei
adoption. At the effective date, an entity may ethe fair value option for eligible items existiagythat date and the adjustment for the initial
remeasurement of those items to fair value shoeleported as a cumulative effect adjustment t@pening balance of retained earnings. The
Company, on October 1, 2008, does not plan to éhectair value option for any existing eligibl@dincial instruments or certain other items.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 14P8&termining the Useful Life of Intangible Ass@iSP SFAS 142-3). FSP SFAS 142-3
amends the factors that should be considered ieldewg renewal or extension assumptions usedtermae the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset under SFAS 142. This FSP is éfledor fiscal years beginning after December &, and interim periods within those
years. This FSP must be applied prospectivelytamigible assets acquired after the effective deteordingly, the Company will adopt F¢
SFAS 142-3 in fiscal year 2010.

In June 2008, FASB issued Staff Position (FSP) ED8F6-1,Determining Whether Instruments Granted in SharseBlaPayment Transactions
Are Participating Securitie, to clarify that all outstanding unvested sharseobpayment awards that contain nonforfeitabletsighdividends
or dividend equivalents, whether paid or unpaid,@articipating securities. An entity must inclygbeticipating securities in its calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share pursuanetbatb-class method pursuant to SFAS No. E28nings per ShareFSP EITF 03-6-1 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb®&r 2008 and is to be applied retrospectively. Thenpany is currently evaluating FSP
EITF 03-6-1 to determine the impact, if any, on @@nsolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R3jness Combinatiorsd SFAS No. 16(\oncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statemen-an amendment of ARB No. 5Both of these standards are effective for finahsfatements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. SFAS No. 14W({ipe applied prospectively to business combimagti occurring after the effective date.
Earlier application is prohibited. The Companyusrently evaluating the potential impact of adogt®FAS No. 160 but does not expect its
adoption to have a significant impact on the Codatéd Financial Statements.

In June 2007, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. @6Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of DividendsSbare-Based Payment Awards
(EITF 06-11). EITF 06-11 requires that the incomwe benefits received on dividends or dividend eglgints paid to employees holding equity-
classified shares be recorded as additional patdyiital when the dividends or dividend equivalemtscharged to retained earnings pursuant
to SFAS No. 123(R). This EITF is applied prospeatvand is effective for fiscal years beginningeafbecember 15, 2007, and interim periods
within those years. EITF 06-11 also requires tlseldsure of any change in accounting policy foome tax benefits of dividends or dividend
equivalents on share-based payment awards aslagkadoption. The Company will adopt EITF 06-1dginning in the first quarter of fiscal
2009 and does not expect its adoption to haverdfisignt impact on the Consolidated Financial Stegats.
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NOTE 2 NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG -TERM DEBT

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company ha8l fdilion and $445 million, respectively, in unseed long-term debt outstanding at
rates and maturities shown in the following talitetiiousands):

September 30
Maturity Date Interest Rate 200¢ 2007
Fixec-rate debt

August 15, 200! 5.91% $ 25,00( $ 25,00(
August 15, 201. 6.46% 75,00( 75,00(
August 15, 201« 6.56% 75,00( 75,00(

Senior credit facility
December 18, 201 2.84%-4.06% 325,00( 270,00(
500,00( 445,00(
Less lon+term debt due within one ye 25,00( —
Long-term debt $ 475,00( $ 445,00(
I |

The terms of the fixed-rate debt obligations regjtiire Company to maintain a minimum ratio of dekibtal capitalization. The debt is held by
various entities, including $8 million held by angpany affiliated with one of the Company's Boardwbers.

The Company has an agreement with a multi-bankisgtelfor a $400 million senior unsecured crediflfg. While the Company has the
option to borrow at the prime rate for maturitiédess than 30 days, the Company anticipates higatrtajority of all the borrowings over the

life of the facility will accrue interest at a spover the London Interbank Bank Offered Rate @R. The Company pays a commitment fee
based on the unused balance of the facility. Theaspover LIBOR as well as the commitment fee termmeined according to a scale based on a
ratio of the Company's total debt to total capiiation. The LIBOR spread ranges from .30 percemtimercent depending on the ratio. At
September 30, 2008, the LIBOR spread on borrowivess.35 percent and the commitment fee was .0%epeper annum.

Financial covenants in the facility require the Qxamy to maintain a funded leverage ratio (as ddjioéless than 50 percent and an interest
coverage ratio (as defined) of not less than 20DA0. The facility contains additional terms, dibions, and restrictions that the Company
believes are usual and customary in unsecuredagieiigements for companies that are similar inaimkecredit quality. At September 30,
2008, the Company had three letters of credititwe$25.9 million under the facility and had borethv$325 million against the facility with
$49.1 million left available to borrow. The advasdeear interest ranging from 2.84 percent to 4é¥8gnt. Subsequent to September 30, 2008,
the outstanding balance was reduced by $35 milAorseptember 30, 2008, the Company was in comgdiavith all debt covenants.

The Company also has an agreement with a singlefoamn unsecured line of credit for $5 milliorridhg on the line of credit is prime min
1.75 percent. The covenants and other terms arditzn s are similar to the aforementioned seniedirfacility except that there is no
commitment fee. At September 30, 2008, the Compaayno outstanding borrowings against this line.
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At September 30, 2008, the Company had unsecuttedsl®f credit totaling $6.3 million and a $0.7lian secured letter of credit both of
which were used to obtain surety bonds for thermational operations.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had an oulisig. secured note payable to a bank totaling 8illibn denominated in a foreign
currency. The interest rate of the note was 16gmnwith a one year maturity. The note and intenese paid in full subsequent to
September 30, 2008.

The Company has initiated discussions with lentieabtain an additional credit facility. The Comgaanticipates the amount of the facility to
range from $100 million to $150 million and doeg erpect significant difficulties in obtaining atidnal financing. However, because of the
current conditions of the credit markets there lsamo assurance that any new financing will bedurakor better terms than those of the
current debt agreement.

NOTE 3 INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxesaarfollows:

Years Ended September 3( 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 97,87 $ 125,16 $ 136,37(
Foreign 28,87¢ 31,55: 4,30¢
State 10,81 11,96¢ 10,21
137,55¢ 168,69( 150,88"
Deferred:
Federal 110,07 74,38¢ 10,25:
Foreign (1,467) 1,52¢ (7,77¢)
State 9,38¢ 6,371 1,02¢
117,99¢ 82,29¢ 3,50«
Total provision $ 255,55 $ 250,98 $ 154,39:

The amounts of domestic and foreign income befocerne taxes and equity in income of affiliate ardadlows:

Years Ended September 3( 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)
Domestic $ 627,34« $ 579,58¢ $ 389,59!
Foreign 72,58¢ 110,76 51,38¢
$ 699,92¢ $ 690,35! $ 440,98:
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Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempatdferences between the financial reporting basid the tax basis of the Company's as
and liabilities. Recoverability of any tax asseats evaluated and necessary allowances are provithedcarrying value of the net deferred tax
assets assumes, based on estimates and assuntpétise Company will be able to generate sufficfature taxable income in certain tax
jurisdictions to realize the benefits of such asséthese estimates and related assumptions eharibe future, additional valuatic
allowances will be recorded against the deferrgdtsets resulting in additional income tax expémsiee future.

The components of the Company's net deferred abities are as follows:

September 30 2008 2007

(in thousands
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $ 440,08: $ 303,91!
Available-for-sale securitie 26,02¢ 46,50:
Equity investment 37,07¢ 25,411
Other 557 1,41¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 503,74t 377,24
Deferred tax asset
Pension reserve 4,187 1,68¢
Selfinsurance reserve 4,50¢ 2,88¢
Net operating loss and foreign tax credit carryfemis 43,49¢ 26,92¢
Financial accrual 32,90: 21,99¢
Other 4,124 6
Total deferred tax asse 89,21¢ 53,50(
Valuation allowanct 43,49¢ 28,23:
Net deferred tax asse 45,72 25,26¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 458,02! $ 351,97!

Reclassifications have been made to the fiscal ®@&hces for certain components of deferred tagtasand liabilities in order to conform to
the current year's presentation.

The change in the Company's net deferred tax agsdtiabilities is impacted by foreign currencyneasurement.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had fore@jroperating loss carryforwards for income tax psgs of $2.1 million, and foreign tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $42.9 milliaich will expire in years 2010 through 2018. Maduation allowance is primarily
attributable to foreign net operating loss carmfards and foreign tax credit carryforwards for vhicis more likely than not that these will |
be utilized.
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Effective income tax rates as compared to the @@eFal income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended September 3( 2008 2007 2006
U.S. Federal income tax re 35% 35% 35%
Effect of foreign taxe — D D
State income taxe 2 2 1
Effective income tax rat 37% 36% 35%

In July 2006, the FASB Issued FIN 48, which clasfthe accounting for uncertainty in income taxoggized in an entity's financial statements
in accordance with FASB statement No. 1A8¢ounting for Income Taxesnd prescribes a recognition threshold and measamt attributes

for financial statement disclosure of tax posititeleen or expected to be taken on a tax returnetREN 48, the impact of an uncertain inco
tax position must be recognized in the financiatesnents at the largest amount that is more littedn not to be sustained upon audit by the
relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income pesition will not be recognized if it has less treaB0 percent likelihood of being sustained.
Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecadigmi, classification, interest and penalties, actimg in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. The Company adopted the provisionslIif48 effective October 1, 2007. The cumulativeseffof adopting FIN 48 resulted in a
decrease of approximately $5.0 million in retaieadnings.

The Company recognizes accrued interest relatadrecognized tax benefits in interest expense pandlties in other expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. As of Septerd®e2008 and October 1, 2007, the Company had eddnterest and penalties of
$2.5 million and $2.0 million, respectively.

A reconciliation of the change in the Company'ssgronrecognized tax benefits for the fiscal yeaedrSeptember 30, 2008, is as follows (in
thousands):

Unrecognized tax benefits at October 1, 2 $ 4,62¢
Gross increas—current period effect of tax positio 1,06¢
Unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, : $ 5,692

I

As of September 30, 2008 and October 1, 2007, tregany's liability for unrecognized tax benefitssvib.7 million and $4.6 million,
respectively, which if recognized would affect #féective tax rate. The increase in unrecogniz&dtmnefits was mainly due to the current
period impact of tax positions taken in prior pdgoThe liabilities for unrecognized tax benefitsl @aelated interest and penalties are included
in other noncurrent liabilities in the Company'snSolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company files a consolidated U.S. federal inedax return, as well as income tax returns inotaristates and foreign jurisdictions. The
tax years that remain open to examination by le8efal and state jurisdictions include fiscal ye&£84 through 2007. Audits in foreign
jurisdictions are generally complete through fisgeér 2001
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It is reasonably possible that the amount of threcwgnized tax benefit with respect to certain cogaized tax positions will increase or
decrease during the next 12 months. However, tepaay does not expect the change to have a magéfeat on results of operations or
financial position.

NOTE 4 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On September 30, 2008, the Company had 105,222481anding common stock purchase rights ("Righgatyuant to the terms of the Rig
Agreement dated January 8, 1996, as amended by dxmeant No. 1 dated December 8, 2005. As adjustethéotwo-for-one stock splits in
fiscals 1998 and 2006, and as long as the Rigbta@trseparately transferable, one-half Right héado each share of the Company’'s common
stock. Under the terms of the Rights Agreement &ight entitles the holder thereof to purchase ftbenCompany one full unit consisting of
one one-thousandth of a share of Series A JunigicRating Preferred Stock ("Preferred Stock")theiut par value, at a price of $250 per unit.
The exercise price and the number of units of PrefleStock issuable on exercise of the Rights alogest to adjustment in certain cases to
prevent dilution. The Rights will be attached te tommon stock certificates and are not exercisatiensferable apart from the common
stock, until ten business days after a person eegdb percent or more of the outstanding commmeksir ten business days following the
commencement of a tender offer or exchange offarwiould result in a person owning 15 percent orenad the outstanding common stock
the event the Company is acquired in a merger maiceother business combination transactions (iiaog one in which the Company is the
surviving corporation), or more than 50 percenthef Company's assets or earning power is soldosferred, each holder of a Right shall
the right to receive, upon exercise of the Rightmmon stock of the acquiring company having a valygal to two times the exercise price of
the Right. The Rights are redeemable under cetctednmstances at $0.01 per Right and will expirdess earlier redeemed, on January 31,
2016.

NOTE 5 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has one plan providing for common-staded awards to employees and to non-employeetbise The plan permits the
granting of various types of awards including stopkions and restricted stock awards. Restricteckstnay be granted for no consideration
other than prior and future services. The purclpgi®e per share for stock options may not be lleas tnarket price of the underlying stock on
the date of grant. Stock options expire ten yeties the grant date. The Company has the righatisfy option exercises from treasury shares
and from authorized but unissued shares.

A summary of compensation cost for stock-based payrarrangements recognized in general and adngitive expense and cash received
from the exercise of stock options in fiscal 20B@807 and 2006 is as follows (in thousands, excepspare amounts):

September 30 2008 2007 2006
Compensation expen
Stock options $ 6,21( $ 5,64 $ 8,71«
Restricted stoc 1,24¢ 1,36 1,03¢
$ 7,45¢ $ 7,01( $ 9,752
| | |




Benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognzatpensation cost of $24.9 million, $1.5 milliordeB0.2 million are reported as a financ
cash flow in the Consolidated Statements of Caetv Fbr fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively.

In December 2005, the Company accelerated thengesfishare options held by a senior executive weiced. As a result of that modificatic
the Company recognized additional compensationresgoef $2.8 million for the fiscal year ended Segier 30, 2006 that is included in the
table above.

STOCK OPTIONS

Vesting requirements for stock options are deteeahiny the Human Resources Committee of the Comp&ward of Directors. Options
currently outstanding began vesting one year #feegrant date with 25 percent of the options westbr four consecutive years.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes formula to estirthe fair value of stock options granted to exygés. The fair value of the options is
amortized to compensation expense on a stréiightdasis over the requisite service periods efdfock awards, which are generally the ves
periods. The following summarizes the weighted-agerassumptions in the model.

2008 2007 2006
Risk-free interest rat 3.3% 4.6% 4.5%
Expected stock volatilit 31.1% 35.9% 36.%
Dividend yield .5% 1% 5%
Expected term (in year 4.8 5.5 5.2

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.8a3ury securities for the expected term of theoopti

Expected Volatility Rate Expected volatilities are based on the daibsicig price of the Company's stock based uponritsicexperience
over a period which approximates the expected tdrthe option.

Expected Dividend Yieli The dividend yield is based on the Company‘secii dividend yield.

Expected Ternm The expected term of the options granted reptsshe period of time that they are expectecetodistanding. The Compa
estimates the expected term of options granteddoasdistorical experience with grants and exescise
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The following summary reflects the stock optioniatt for the Company's common stock and relatddrimation for 2008, 2007, and 2006
(shares in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at October 6,03 $15.80 5,61¢ $14.24 6,48¢ $12.29
Granted 74z 35.11 731 26.90 64C 29.68
Exercisec (1,84%) 11.87 (29¢) 12.77 (1,487) 12.25
Forfeited/Expirec (110 27.31 (20) 28.57 (26) 18.56
Outstanding on September : 4,81¢ $20.02 6,032 $15.80 5,61¢ $14.24
Exercisable on September : 3,20¢ $15.07 4,33t $12.70 3,84 $11.74
Shares available to gra 2,54¢ 3,221 4,00(

The following table summarizes information abowtc&toptions at September 30, 2008 (shares in timois$a

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options
Range of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$6.3975 to $9.417 257 1.2 $ 9.39 257 $ 9.39
$11.3318 to $16.01C 2,68¢ 4.4 $13.42 2,52( $13.25
$26.8950 to $35.10F 1,874 8.3 $30.94 42¢ $29.19
$6.3975 to $35.105 4,81¢ 5.7 $20.02 3,20¢ $15.07

At September 30, 2008, the weighted-average rengiife of exercisable stock options was 4.5 yeend the aggregate intrinsic value was
$90.2 million with a weighted-average exercise @t $15.07 per share.

The number of options vested or expected to veSeptember 30, 2008 was 4,800,379 with an aggrégsitesic value of $111.5 million and a
weighted-average exercise price of $19.97 per share

As of September 30, 2008, the unrecognized compienszost related to the stock options was $11lliani That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2g6sye

The weighted-average fair value of options gramiiedng 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $10.81, $10.36 aad19, respectively. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during 2008, 2007 ar@b2@as $21.9 million, $5.8, and $34.9 million, resively.

The grant date fair value of shares vested dur@@322007 and 2006 was $5.8 million, $5.4 milliowd 9.1 million, respectively.
RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted stock awards consist of the Companytsoon stock and are time vested over three to feagy, The Company recognizes
compensation expense on a straight-line basistheeresting period. The
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fair value of restricted stock awards is determibadged on the closing price of the Company's sharéke grant date. As of September 30,
2008, there was $3.6 million of total unrecognizedthpensation cost related to unvested restrictezk siptions. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2g6sye

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), unearned cemsption related to restricted stock awards wasifiad as a separate component of
shareholders' equity. In accordance with the prongsof SFAS 123(R), on October 1, 2005, the baananearned compensation was
reclassified to additional paid-in capital on treddmce sheet.

A summary of the status of the Company's restristedk awards as of September 30, 2008, and ofgelsain restricted stock outstanding
during the fiscal years ended September 30, 20087 2nd 2006 is as follows (share amounts in thaisa

2008 2007 2006
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair

Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share
Outstanding at October 24C $29.27 21z $29.57 10 $16.01
Granted 22 35.11 27 26.90 203 30.24
Vested (©)] 16.01 — — — —
Forfeited/Expirec (16) 30.24 — — — —
Outstanding on
September 3( 24¢ $29.92 24C $29.27 213 $29.57

NOTE 6 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation of basic earnings per share ischasehe weighted average number of common shatstaading during the period. The
computation of diluted earnings per share refldespotential dilution that would occur if stocktioms were exercised and the dilution from
the issuance of restricted shares, computed usentreéasury stock method.

A reconciliation of the weighted-average commorreb@utstanding on a basic and diluted basis fisllasvs:

2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)

Basic weighte-average share 104,28- 103,33t 104,65¢
Effect of dilutive shares

Stock options and restricted stc 2,14( 1,79( 1,43:
Diluted weighte-average share 106,42: 105,12¢ 106,09:

At September 30, 2008, all options were includetheéxcomputation of diluted earnings per share.
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At September 30, 2007, options to purchase 593%8&60es of common stock at a weighted-average ofi$80.2375 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutednéags per share. Inclusion of these shares woulhtidilutive.

At September 30, 2006, options to purchase 80%#&60es of common stock at a weighted-average ofi$80.2375 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutednéags per share. Inclusion of these shares woulhtidilutive.

NOTE 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company had $175 million of fixed-rate longatedtebt outstanding at September 30, 2008, whichahagktimated fair value of

$198 million. The debt was valued based on thespraf similar securities with similar terms andditreatings. The Company used the
expertise of an outside investment banking firmgsist with the estimate of the fair value of threg-term debt. The Company's line of credit
bears interest at market rates and the cost obWwargs, if any, would approximate fair value. Tigimated fair value of the Company's
available-for-sale securities is primarily basedwarket quotes.

The following is a summary of available-for-salewgties, which excludes those accounted for utiskelequity method of accounting (see
Note 1), investments in limited partnerships carae cost and assets held in a -qualified Supplemental Savings Plan:

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)
Equity Securities
September 30, 20( $ 7,68! $ 67,867 $— $ 75,552
September 30, 20( $11,32¢ $117,64¢€ $— $128,975

On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates thkatsdnle equity securities to determine if a declimfir market is other-than-temporary. If
a decline in fair market value is determined tmtieer-than-temporary, an impairment charge is @@iand a new cost basis established. In
determining if an unrealized loss is other thangerary, the Company considers how long the mar&ktevof the investment has been below
cost, how significant the decline in value is geeecentage of the original cost and the marketimegal and analyst recommendations.

During the years ended September 30, 2008, 20@72@06, marketable equity available-for-sale séiesriwith a fair value at the date of sale
of $25.5 million, $73.4 million, and $28.2 milliorespectively, were sold. For the same years, thesgealized gains on such sales of
available-for-sale securities totaled $22.0 milli#65.5 million, and $19.8 million, respectively.

The investments in the limited partnerships caratdost were approximately $12.4 million at Segien80, 2008 and 2007. The estimated
value of the limited partnerships was $17.3 milleord $22.3 million at September 30, 2008 and 2f#xpectively. The estimated fair value
exceeded the cost of investments at Septembel088,@d 2007 and, as such, the investments weiiepatred.
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The assets held in a Non-qualified SupplementaingavPlan are carried at fair market value whidhlea $6.4 million and $7.8 million at
September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The majority of cash equivalents are investedxaltée and non-taxable money-market mutual funds. Garrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value due to thetghaturity of those investments.

During fiscal 2007, the Company liquidated its fiosi in auction rate securities with no realizeéthgar losses. The proceeds of $48.3 million
were included in the sale of investments understing activities on the Consolidated StatementSas¥h Flows. There were no purchases or
sales of auction rate securities during fiscal 2008

The carrying value of other assets, accrued lt&sliand other liabilities approximated fair vahteSeptember 30, 2008 and 2007.
NOTE 8 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS )

The components of other comprehensive income yéars ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 20@6awdollows (in thousands):

Years Ended September 3( 200¢ 2007 200¢
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on secwitiet
of tax of $(10,558), $23,076 and $18,: $ (17,227 $ 37,65¢ $ 29,90¢
Reclassification of realized gains in net incomeafe
tax of $8,358, $24,874 and $7.t (13,63¢) (40,589 (12,319
Minimum pension liability adjustments net
tax of $5,621 and $2,7¢ — 9,17( 4,51(
Amortization of net periodic benefit co— net of actuaria
gain, net of tax of $(4,05¢ (6,61F) — —
$ (37,479 $ 6,24( $ 22,10:
I |

The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie (loss) at September 30, 2008 and 2007, regipiicable tax effects, were as
follows (in thousands):

September 30 200¢ 2007
Unrealized appreciation on securit $ 42,07¢ $ 72,94:
Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) and prior sergast (3,677 2,94¢
$ 38,40" $ 75,88t
I I
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NOTE 9 ACQUISITION OF TERRAVICI DRILLING SOLUTIONS

On May 21, 2008, the Company acquired a privatééidnpartnership, TerraVici Drilling Solutions (TaWici) in a transaction accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting. Undepiihehase method of accounting, the assets accaimédabilities assumed of TerraVici are
recorded as of the acquisition date, at their retppeefair values, and consolidated with thosehef Company. TerraVici's results of operations
are included in the Company's consolidated findrst&ements from the date of acquisition. Terraléiéncluded with all other non-reportable
business segments.

The Company paid $12.2 million to acquire Terra\aod it is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Gamny. The total purchase price
included acquisition-related costs of $1.2 millidie terms of the transaction provide for futuratowency payments up to $11 million based
on specific commerciality milestones and certaimezaut provisions based on future earnings being me

TerraVici is developing patented rotary steerabtdhhology to enhance horizontal and directiondlinigi operations. The Company acquired
TerraVici to complement technology currently usdthwhe FlexRig. By combining this new technologithwthe Company's existing
capabilities, the Company expects to improve ddgllproductivity and reduce total well cost to thistomer.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purehasthod of accounting and the purchase priceatltmtresulted in the following amounts
being allocated to the assets acquired and lidsilassumed at the acquisition date based uparréspiective fair values.

May 21, 200t

Amounts in thousani

Current assef $ 371
Fixed asset 4,257
Trademark 91¢
In-process research and developn 11,12¢
Other noncurrent asse 28C
Assets acquire 16,95¢
Liabilities assume: (5,477)
Net assets acquire 11,47¢
Goodwill 70z
Acquisition cos! $ 12,18:

The fair value of the acquired intangible assetssists primarily of indefinite-lived trademarks®3.9 million and non-compete agreements of
$0.3 million. The weighted average amortizationgeéfor the non-compete agreements is 4.0 years.

In-process research and development, or IPR&D egsmits rotary steerable system (RSS) tools undefajement by TerraVici at the date of
acquisition that had not yet achieved technolodeasibility, and would have no future alternativee. Accordingly, the purchase price
allocated to IPR&D was expensed

66




immediately subsequent to the acquisition. Thisghavill be amortized over 15 years for tax purpodthe $11.1 million estimated fair value
of IPR&D was derived using the multi-period excessnings method.

Pro forma summary financial results for the fisgshr ended September 30, 2008 are not presentaddeethe consolidated results of
operations, assuming the acquisition of TerraVad bccurred at the beginning of the reporting kri® not materially different from the
Consolidated Statement of Income as reported.

The excess of purchase price over the fair valagasd to the assets acquired and liabilities asgdumpresents the goodwill resulting from the
acquisition. The amount allocated to goodwill islpminary and subject to change, depending onéhkelis of the final purchase price
allocation. The Company does not expect any podfdhis goodwill to be deductible for tax purposébe goodwill attributable to the
Company's acquisition of TerraVici has been rectr@®a noncurrent asset in the Company's Septe88b2008 Consolidated Balance Sheet
and will not be amortized.

The allocation of the purchase price is subjedirtalization of the Company's management analykthefair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed of TerraVici as of the acquisitdate. The final allocation of the purchase @ritay result in additional adjustments to the

recorded amounts of asset and liabilities and neyr@sult in adjustments to depreciation, amatitimeand acquired in-process research and
development. The final allocation is expected tetmpleted as soon as practicable but no latertBanonths after the acquisition date.

NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a noncontributory defineceliepension plan covering certain U.S. employels weet certain age and service
requirements. In July 2003, the Company revisedHilenerich & Payne, Inc. Employee Retirement Pl&e(sion Plan®) to close the Pension
Plan to new participants effective October 1, 2G0R] reduce benefit accruals for current partidipéirough September 30, 2006, at which
time benefit accruals were discontinued and thesidarPlan was frozen.

On September 30, 2007, the Company adopted théspos of SFAS No. 158Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod Other
Postretirement Plans("SFAS 158"). This statement requires employers)teecognize the funded status of a benefit platerchined as the
difference between the fair value of plan assetstha benefit obligation, as an asset or liabilityhe statement of financial position,

b) recognize as a component of other comprehemnsieene, net of tax, the gains or losses and peorise costs or credits that arise during the
period but are not recognized as components gier@dic benefit cost, c) measure the defined beplkin assets and obligations as of the |

of the employer's fiscal year-end, which the Conyplaes used historically, and d) include additiattiatlosures in the notes to the financial
statements about effects on net periodic benedit tbat arise from delayed recognition of the gainksses, prior service costs or credits, and
transition assets or obligations.
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétbhanges in the pension benefit obligations aindiédue of assets over the two-year period
ended September 30, 2008 and a statement of tdedwstatus as of September 30, 2008 and 2007dirsamds):

200¢ 2007

Accumulated Benefit Obligation ("ABQO") $ 69,47¢ $ 78,24’

Changes in Projected Benefit Obligations ("PBO")

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 78,247 $ 87,66¢
Service cos — —
Interest cos 4,91¢ 4,86¢
Actuarial gain (8,975) (9,980
Benefits paic (4,71¢) (4,307)

Projected benefit obligation at end of y: $ 69,47¢ $ 78,24"

Change in plan asset

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 74,87 $ 66,75
Actual return on plan asse (13,66:) 9,78
Employer contributiot 3,10¢ 2,65(
Benefits paic (4,716 (4,307)

Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 59,60: $ 74,87

I I

Funded status of the plan at end of yes $ (9,870) $ (3,370)

I I

September 30 200¢ 2007

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shsdin thousands):

Current pension liabilit $ (43 $ (35)
Noncurrent pension liabilit (9,827) (3,33¢
Net amount recognize $ (9,870 $ (3,370

I I

The Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Congamsive Income at September 30,

2008 and 2007, and not yet reflected in net pecibenefit cost, are as follows (in thousar

Net actuarial gain (los: $ (5,919 $ 4,74¢

Prior service cos (D) (D)

Total $ (5,920 $ 4,74¢

The amount recognized in accumulated other compsifie income and not yet reflected in periodic lfiegest expected to be amortized in
next year's periodic benefit cost is a net actugaa of $201.

The weighted average assumptions used for theqrenaiculations were as follows:

Years Ended September 3(C 200¢ 2007 200¢
Discount rate for net periodic benefit ca 6.259 5.759 5.759
Discount rate for ye-end obligation: 7.259 6.259 5.759
Expected return on plan ass 8.009 8.009 8.009
Rate of compensation incree —% —% 5.00%

The Company does not anticipate that funding thesi®a Plan in fiscal 2009 will be required. Howewbe Company can choose to make
discretionary contributions to fund distributiomslieu of liquidating pension
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assets. During 2008, the Company elected to funtl ®8lion. The Company estimates contributingeatst $5.0 million in fiscal 2009.
However, due to the decline in the fair value afigien plan assets during 2008 and the current adwemditions in the equity, debt and global
markets, it is possible that contributions will greater than expected.

Components of the net periodic benefit expensedfit¢mvere as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended September 3( 200¢ 2007 200¢
Service cos $ — $ — $ 4,71:
Interest cos 4,91¢ 4,86¢ 4,841
Expected return on plan ass (5,990 (5,129 (4,93¢€)
Amortization of prior service co: — — (0]
Recognized net actuarial lo 9 13¢ 87¢€
Net pension expense (bene $ (1,062) $ (119 $ 5,49¢

I I I

The Pension Plan was frozen and benefit accruails discontinued effective September 30, 2006, tadacing the service cost of the Plan.

The following table reflects the expected bendéitbe paid from the Pension Plan in each of the fiex fiscal years, and in the aggregate for
the five years thereafter (in thousands).

Years Ended September 3(

200¢ 201C 2011 201z 201: 2014-201¢ Total

$  3,48¢ $ 3,63t $  3,81¢ $ 4,20 $ 4,48¢ $24,25. $ 43,88:
Included in the Pension Plan is an unfunded supghtah executive retirement plan.
INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND ASSET ALLOCATION

The Company's investment policy and strategiegsti@blished with a long-term view in mind. The istveent strategy is intended to help pay
the cost of the Plan while providing adequate ggcto meet the benefits promised under the Pldre Company maintains a diversified asset
mix to minimize the risk of a material loss to tartfolio value that might occur from devaluatiohamy one investment. In determining the
appropriate asset mix, the Company's financiahgtieand ability to fund potential shortfalls amnsidered.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan adsdiased on historical and projected rates afmdbr current and planned asset classes in
the Plans' investment portfolio after analyzingdrisal experience and future expectations of #tern and volatility of various asset classes.
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The target allocation for 2009 and the asset dilogdor the domestic Pension Plan at the endsafali2008 and 2007, by asset category,
follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets

Target Allocation At September 30,
Asset Category 2009 2008 2007
U.S. equities 56% 58% 61%
International equitie 14 15 18
Fixed income 25 24 20
Real estate and oth 5 3 1
Total 10C% 10C% 10C%

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Substantially all employees on the United Statgsgeof the Company may elect to participate ie thompany sponsored 401(k)/Thrift Plan
by contributing a portion of their earnings. Then@many contributes amounts equal to 100 perceriteofitst five percent of the participant's
compensation subject to certain limitations. ExpenSompany contributions were $15.0 million, $1®i8ion, and $8.4 million in 2008, 200
and 2006, respectively.

FOREIGN PLAN

The Company maintains an unfunded pension plaménad the international subsidiaries. Pension espavas approximately $0.4 million,
$0.3 million and $0.4 million in 2008, 2007 and BO@espectively. The pension liability at Septem®@r2008 and 2007 was $5.0 million and
$4.1 million, respectively.

NOTE 11 SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION
The following reflects the activity in the Compasyeserve for bad debt for 2008, 2007 and 2006:

September 30 200¢ 2007 200¢

(in thousands)

Reserve for bad dek

Balance at October $ 2,957 $ 2,007 $ 1,791
Provision for bad det 704 1,03( 25C
Write-off of bad deb (2,330 (80) (34)
Balance at September & $ 1,331 $ 2,957 $ 2,007

—— ——
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Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, and actialglities at September 30 consist of the follogin

September 30 200¢ 2007

(in thousands)
Accounts receivable, net of reser

Trade receivable $ 446,84t $ 337,82¢
Income tax 15,98: —
Insurance receivab — 1,99(

$ 462,83: $ 339,81¢

Prepaid expenses and otf

Prepaid value added t: $ 6,14¢ $ 4,91¢
Restricted cas 10,27¢ 6,20:
Prepaid insuranc 9,951 4,68¢
Deferred mobilizatior 13,85: 6,20:
Other 11,03¢ 6,87(

$ 51,26« $ 28,87

Accrued liabilities:

Taxes payable, other than income $ 42,88¢ $ 31,61(
Accrued income taxe — 10,03
Selfinsurance liabilities 3,69¢ 2,40¢
Payroll and employee benef 44 52¢ 36,01(
Accrued operating cos 16,50( 5,18¢
Other 20,76¢ 16,81:
$ 128,37: $ 102,05t
| |
NOTE 12 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Years Ended September 3( 200¢ 2007 200¢
(in thousands)
Cash paymentt
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $ 18,59¢ $ 9,71z $ 6,644
Income taxes pai $ 133,19« $ 181,59: $ 109,85

Capital expenditures on the Consolidated Statenwr@ash Flows for the years ended September 31B,ZD07 and 2006, does not include
additions which have been incurred but not paica®of the end of the

71




year. The following table reconciles total cap&apenditures incurred to total capital expenditumethe Consolidated Statements of C
Flows:

September 30 200¢ 2007 200¢
(in thousands
Capital expenditures incurre $ 745,53t $ 825,44¢ $ 614,27-
Additions incurred prior year but paid for in cunt:
year 26,95¢ 95,72( 10,35
Additions incurred but not paid for as of the effic
the yea (66,857 (26,959 (95,72()
Capital expenditures per Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flow: $ 705,63! $ 894,21 $ 528,90!
I I I

NOTE 13 RISK FACTORS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consishprily of temporary cash investments,
short-term investments and trade receivables. Tdmpany places temporary cash investments in thewit§ established financial institutions
and invests in a diversified portfolio of highlyted, short-term money market instruments. In Veakzuhe Company had $43.4 million in
cash at September 30, 2008, as discussed beloweimational Drilling Operations. The Company'sl&@eceivables, primarily with
established companies in the oil and gas industay, impact credit risk as customers may be sinyilaffected by prolonged changes in
economic and industry conditions. Internationaésallso present various risks including governmexatévities that may limit or disrupt
markets and restrict the movement of funds. MoshefCompany's international sales, however, alar¢@ international or governmeoivnec
national oil companies. The Company performs orgoiedit evaluations of customers and does not#lyirequire collateral in support for
trade receivables. The Company provides an alloeémcdoubtful accounts, when necessary, to costtmated credit losses. Such an
allowance is based on management's knowledge troes accounts. No significant credit losses haaenkexperienced by the Company in
recent history.

VOLATILITY OF MARKET

The Company's operations can be materially affeloyedil and gas prices. Recently, oil and natueas grices have been volatile and have
declined substantially. While current energy priaesimportant contributors to positive cash flaw dustomers, expectations about future
prices and price volatility are generally more inmtpat for determining future spending levels. TVogatility, along with the difficulty in
predicting future prices can lead many exploratiod production companies to base their capitaldipgron much more conservative estim
of commodity prices. As a result, demand for caottdhilling services is not always purely a funatiof the movement of commodity prices.

In addition, customers may finance their explomratativities through cash flow from operations, itheurrence of debt or the issuance of
equity. The recent deterioration in the credit aapital markets could make it difficult for custorméo obtain funding for their capital needs. A
reduction of cash flow resulting from declines enumodity prices or a reduction of available finargcimay result in a reduction in customer
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spending and the demand for drilling services. Taikiction in spending could have a material agveffect on the Company's operations.
SELF-INSURANCE

The Company selifasures a significant portion of expected lossé&tirgy to worker's compensation, general, and aatola liability. Insuranc
coverage has been purchased for individual claimasexceed $1 million or $2 million, depending olnether a claim occurs inside or outside
of the United States. The Company maintains cedtiar insurance coverage with deductibles as &ggh5 million. Insurance is purchased
over deductibles to reduce the Company's exposuwatastrophic events. The Company records estiniaténcurred outstanding liabilities 1
worker's compensation, general liability claims &mdclaims that are incurred but not reportediriates are based on historic experience and
statistical methods that the Company believesaighle. Nonetheless, insurance estimates incledaio assumptions and management
judgments regarding the frequency and severityafs, claim development, and settlement practidesnticipated changes in these fac
may produce materially different amounts of expehs¢ would be reported under these programs.

The Company has a wholly-owned captive insuranoepamy, White Eagle Assurance Company (White Eagg)rovide a portion of the
Company's property damage insurance for companyedwlnlling rigs and to reinsure international cudeductibles. Rig property
insurance coverage for "named wind storm" perisiteen limited for the past few years. The Comgamghased an aggregate limit of

$100 million of "named wind storm" coverage and-gedures 10 percent of that limit as well as &3$8illion deductible. For other insured
perils, the Company insures rigs and related egeiipirat values that approximate the current replac¢icost on the inception date of the
policy. The Company self-insures 10 percent ofvifleie for offshore rig property and 30 percenthef value for land rig property. The
Company also selfisures a $1.0 million per occurrence deductibleidéurance is carried against loss of earnindsiemess interruption. T
Company is unable to obtain significant amountssfirance to cover risks of underground resernaimalge; however, the Company is
generally entitled to indemnification under itsliéhg contracts from this risk. Premiums paid to ¥éEagle by the drilling segments have been
included in the drilling segment expenses but elated, along with the premium earned income, indbesolidated Statements of Income.

INTERNATIONAL DRILLING OPERATIONS

International drilling operations are a significaontributor to the Company's revenues and netatipgrincome. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to successfully cahdwch operations, and a failure to do so may havadverse effect on the Company's
financial position, results of operations, and ceivs. Also, the success of the Company's intéonat operations will be subject to numerous
contingencies, some of which are beyond managesnemitrol. These contingencies include generalragittnal economic conditions,
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, changéegénnational regulatory requirements and intéomatl employment issues, and the burde
complying with foreign laws.

On January 1, 2008, the Venezuelan government elgathg official currency from the bolivar to thdilar fuerte (Bsf) (2150 bolivar equals
2.15 bolivar fuerte). The Company derives its rexeim Venezuela from Petroleos de Venezuela, $BVSA), the Venezuelan state-owned
petroleum company. The Company is
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exposed to risks of currency devaluation in Venkzpemarily as a result of Bsf receivable balanaed Bsf cash balances. In Venezuela,
approximately 60 percent of the Company's billitthe Venezuelan oil company, PDVSA, are in U@lads and 40 percent are in the local
currency, the bolivar fuerte. In January 2003,\fe@ezuelan government put into effect exchangerotsnthat fixed the exchange rate at
1600 bolivares to one U.S. dollar and also proaibthe Company, as well as other companies, fromaexting the bolivar into U.S. dollars. (
October 1, 2003, in compliance with applicable tafjans, the Company submitted a request to thee¥eslan government seeking permis:
to convert existing bolivar balances into U.S. ddl In January 2004, the Venezuelan governmembaeg the conversion of bolivar cash
balances to U.S. dollars and the remittance ofethh$. dollars as dividends by the Company's Veglanusubsidiary to the U.S. based parent.
The Company was able to remit $8.8 million of sdehdends in January 2004. This was the first divid remitted under the new regulation.
On January 16, 2006, a dividend of $6.5 million wagl to the U.S. based parent. On August 18, 20@6Company applied for a $9.3 million
dividend. The Venezuelan government subsequenflyoapd $7.2 million of this dividend and on March2607, the $7.2 million was paid to
the U.S. based parent. These dividends reduceddh®pany's exposure to currency devaluation in Vieslez

On July 22, 2008, the Company submitted applicatisith the Venezuelan government requesting theoappto convert bolivar fuerte cash
balances to U.S. dollars. When and if the Compangives approval from the Venezuelan governmeatCitmpany's Venezuelan subsidiary
will remit approximately $28.4 million as a dividegto its U.S. based parent, thus reducing the Cagip@xposure to currency devaluation.

While the Company has been successful in obtaigovgrnment approval for conversion of bolivare®t8. dollars, there is no guarantee that
future conversion to U.S. dollars will be permittédthe event that conversion to U.S. dollars wideg prohibited, then bolivar fuerte cash
balances would increase and expose the Compangreeised risk of devaluation.

As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in Venezuela primarily assult of Bsf receivable and cash balan
The exchange rate per U.S. dollar increased to BbbGares (2.15 Bsf) during 2005 from 1920 bolemat September 30, 2004. As a result of
the 12 percent devaluation of the bolivar durirsgdi 2005 (from September 2004 through August 2a88)Company experienced total
devaluation losses of $0.6 million during that sgreeod. Even though Venezuela continues to openader the exchange controls in place
the Venezuelan Bsf exchange rate is fixed at 24f8@Bone U.S. dollar, the exact amount and tinihdevaluation is uncertain. At

September 30, 2008, the Company had a $43.4 mish balance denominated in Bsf included in thensa sheet and exposed to the risk of
currency devaluation. While the Company is unablpredict future devaluation in Venezuela, if fis2809 balance sheet components are
similar to fiscal 2008 and if a 10 percent to 3@cpat devaluation would occur, the Company coulgeeience potential currency devaluation
losses ranging from approximately $7.0 million &8%® million.

The Company has an agreement with the Venezuedsa gttroleum company whereby a portion of the Gomis dollar-based invoices are
paid in U.S. dollars. Were this agreement to elmel Gompany would revert to receiving these paymienBsf and thus increase Bsf cash
balances and exposure to devaluation.
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The Venezuelan subsidiary has received notificdtiom PDVSA that reimbursement of U.S. dollar irses previously paid in Bsf will be
made only when supporting documentation has beproaged. The supporting documentation has beeneatelivto PDVSA and is awaiting
approval. The approval and subsequent payment wesldt in reducing the foreign currency exposwr@pproximately $46.3 million. The
Company is unable to determine the timing of whaynpent will be received.

Venezuela continues to experience significant jgaliteconomic and social instability. In the evthat extended labor strikes occur or turmoil
increases, the Company could experience shortagabaor and/or material and supplies necessarpéoate some or all of its Venezuelan
drilling rigs, thereby causing an adverse effecttnCompany. The Company derives its revenue ime¥eela from PDVSA. At September
2008, the Company had a net receivable from PDVS®66.5 million of which $5.2 million was 90 dayklmr older. At November 1, 2008,
such receivable balance had decreased to appreetin$3.9 million, of which approximately $13.5 tigh was 90 days old or older. The
Company continues to communicate with PDVSA regeydihe settlement of the outstanding receivabldsléthe collection of the
receivables is difficult and time consuming dud’@VSA policies and procedures, the Company, attitimis, has no reason to believe the
amounts will not be paid. Historically, PDVSA paymt® on accounts receivable have, by traditionain®ss measurements, been slower than
that of other customers in international countimeghich the Company has drilling operations.

NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
COMMITMENTS

Since March 2005, the Company has entered intaakpdrilling contracts with 25 exploration and gwetion customers to build and operate a
total of 127 new FlexRigs. Subsequent to Septer@@e2008, the Company announced that agreementsdesdreached with five of the 25
above mentioned exploration and production comai®perate an additional 13 new FlexRigs, briggire total of the new rigs to 140.

Eight of these 140 new rigs were contracted forkwrinternational Land operations and the remgrii82 in U.S. Land operations. The
construction of the 140 rigs is estimated to c@s2 $illion, of which over 70 percent was spentiy end of fiscal 2008. During construction,
rig construction cost is recorded in constructiopiiogress and then transferred to contract dyidiquipment when the rig is placed in the field
for service. Equipment, parts and supplies areredtisn advance to promote efficient constructioogpess. At September 30, 2008, the
Company had commitments outstanding of approxima&270.7 million for the purchase of drilling egmipnt.
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LEASES

In May 2003, the Company signed a six-year leasagproximately 114,000 square feet of office spzea downtown Tulsa, Oklahoma. In
May 2008, the Company extended the lease for aitiawial ten years and added approximately 21,00@usxfeet of office space. Leasehold
improvements made at the inception of the origiease were capitalized and are being amortizedtbeenitial lease term. Leasehold
improvements for the additional square footagebaieg capitalized and will amortize over the exeshtease term.

Amount

Fiscal Year (in thousands)
2009 $ 5,835
2010 4,158
2011 2,595
2012 2,543
Thereaftel 14,744

Total $29,875

Total rent expense was $4.2 million, $3.7 milliovd&3.1 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respetyive
CONTINGENCIES

In August 2007, the Company experienced a fire @& Uand Rig 178, a 1,500 horsepower FlexRig2, wherwell it was drilling had a

blowout. There were no serious personal injuridsoaigh the drilling rig was lost. The rig was instdifat a value that approximated replacement
cost. At September 30, 2007, the net book valubefig was removed from property, plant and eq@phand a receivable from insurance
recorded, net of a $1.0 million insurance deduetéipensed. During fiscal 2008, gross insurancegeds of approximately $8.7 million were
received and a gain of approximately $5.0 milliosswecorded. The Company anticipates settlingntherance claim before the end of the first
quarter of fiscal 2009 and expects to receive addit insurance proceeds of less than $0.3 million.

In August 2005, the Company's Rig 201, which oaraih an operator's tension-leg platform in thef GiuMexico, lost its entire derrick and
suffered significant damage as a result of Hurécatrina. The rig was insured at a value that axprated replacement cost. Capital costs
incurred in conjunction with rebuilding the rig veetapitalized in fiscal 2007 and are being deptedidnsurance proceeds received through
fiscal 2007 totaled approximately $19.3 million kvépproximately $16.7 recorded as a gain from imvizlry conversion of long-lived assets.
During fiscal 2008, proceeds of approximately $%iion were received and recorded as a gain frowoluntary conversion. Any future
proceeds will be recorded as gain from involuntagversion of long-lived assets when received. Company expects to settle this claim
early in fiscal 2009 and estimates additional peadlseof less than $0.3 million.

Various legal actions, the majority of which arisehe ordinary course of business, are pending. Gbmpany maintains insurance against
certain business risks subject to certain dedwagiiNone of these legal actions are expected te dawaterial adverse effect on the Company's
financial condition, cash flows or results of ofinas.
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The Company is contingently liable to suretiesaspect of bonds issued by the sureties in conmewtdiith certain commitments entered into by
the Company in the normal course of business. Tdragainy has agreed to indemnify the sureties forpayynents made by them in respect of
such bonds.

NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates principally in the contraitiinty industry. The Company's contract drillingdiness includes the following reportable
operating segments: U.S. Land, Offshore, and Iatenal Land. The contract drilling operations dshmainly of contracting Comparywnec
drilling equipment primarily to major oil and gaspdoration companies. The Company's primary intéonal areas of operation include
Venezuela, Colombia, Ecuador and other South Araeriountries. The International Land operationstamilar services, have similar types
of customers, operate in a consistent manner avel dimilar economic and regulatory characterisfi¢gerefore, the Company has aggregated
its international operations into one reportablgnsent. Each reportable segment is a strategic eéssimnit which is managed separately. Other
includes non-reportable operating segments. Categelil revenues and expenses reflect the eliminafiath material intercompany
transactions.

The Company evaluates segment performance basedane or loss from operations (segment operatingme) before income taxes which
includes:

revenues from external and internal custor
direct operating cos

depreciation an

allocated general and administrative cc

but excludes corporate costs for other depreciatimome from asset sales and other corporate ia@md expense.

General and administrative costs are allocatebleé@égments based primarily on specific identificeand, to the extent that such identifica
is not practical, on other methods which the Comgzalieves to be a reasonable reflection of thiezation of services provided.

Segment operating income for all segments is a@AAP financial measure of the Company's performaaset excludes general and
administrative expenses, corporate depreciatia@onre from asset sales and other corporate incothexpense. The Company considers
segment operating income to be an important supgriéghmeasure of operating performance for presgitends in the Company's core
businesses. This measure is used by the Compdagilitate period-to-period comparisons in opergtrerformance of the Company's
reportable segments in the aggregate by eliminamgs that affect comparability between periodse CTompany believes that segment
operating income is useful to investors becaupeoitides a means to evaluate the operating perfacenaf the segments and the Company on
an ongoing basis using criteria that are used Ibyrmernal decision makers. Additionally, it higiiits operating trends and aids analytical
comparisons. However, segment operating incomdirhéations and should not be used as an

77




alternative to operating income or loss, a perferceameasure determined in accordance with GAAR,eaxludes certain costs that may af
the Company's operating performance in future pesrio

Due to the continued growth of the drilling segnsemter the past few years, the Company reevalisteeportable segments. With the growth
of the drilling segments, the Real Estate segmasfdecome a smaller percentage of total segmerdatogeincome. In the evaluation of
segment reporting, the Company determined thatotlaé of external revenues reported by the thrpentable operating segments, U.S. Land,
Offshore and International Land, comprised mora fha percent of total consolidated revenue. Assaltethe Real Estate segment previously
shown as a reportable segment has been includbdlviither non-reportable business segments. Regeincluded in all other consist
primarily of rental income. Financial informatioarffiscal 2007 and 2006 has been restated to teflecchange.
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Summarized financial information of the Compangisartable segments for each of the years ende@@bpt 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 is
shown in the following table:

Segment Additions
External Inter- Total Operating Total to Long-Lived
(in thousands) Sales Segment Sales Income Depreciation Assets Assets
2008
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 1,542,03i $ — % 1,542,03! $ 605,71¢ $ 161,89 $ 2,660,23. $ 682,31(
Offshore 154,45; — 154,45: 33,39 12,15: 152,49° 14,61«
International
Land 328,24 — 328,24 69,97 29,61« 368,65¢ 41,69¢
2,024,73. — 2,024,73. 709,08! 203,65¢ 3,181,38: 738,62(
Other 11,80¢ 87¢ 12,68: (7,99¢) 7,107 406,65 6,91¢
2,036,54. 87¢ 2,037,42. 701,08¢ 210,76t 3,588,04! 745,53¢
Eliminations — (87¢) (87¢) — — — —
Total $ 2,036,54: $ — % 2,036,54. $ 701,08¢ $ 210,76t $ 3,688,04! $ 745,53t
I EEEE—————————————————————————————————————————————————————
2007
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 1,174,950 $ — $ 1,174,95 $ 467,000 $ 106,10° $ 2,073,01' $ 762,50:
Offshore 123,14¢ — 123,14¢ 22,08 10,687 124,01 25,41¢
International
Land 320,28¢ — 320,28 105,17¢ 23,78 314,62! 22,72¢
1,618,38 — 1,618,38 594,26( 140,57t 2,511,65 810,64!
Other 11,27 82¢ 12,09¢ 5,007 5,46¢ 373,71t 14,80:
1,629,65! 82¢ 1,630,48 599,26 146,04: 2,885,36! 825,44
Eliminations — (828) (828) — — — —
Total $ 1,629,65: $ — 3 1,629,65! $ 599,26° $ 146,04 $ 2,885,36' $ 825,44
2006
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 829,06: $ — $ 829,06: $ 351,25! $ 66,127 $ 1,356,81" $ 560,66+
Offshore 154,54 — 154,54 31,86¢ 11,40: 110,96: 18,75¢
International
Land 230,82¢ — 230,82¢ 52,31¢ 19,47 310,83¢ 31,24
1,214,43 — 1,214,43. 435,43t 96,99¢ 1,778,61. 610,66!
Other 10,37¢ 78< 11,16 4,411 4,58¢ 356,09¢ 3,60¢
1,224,811 78< 1,225,59i 439,84¢ 101,58 2,134,71. 614,27-
Eliminations — (78%) (78%) — — — —
Total $ 1,224,81: $ — % 1,224,81: $ 439,84¢ $ 101,58 $ 2,134,71. $ 614,27-
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The following table reconciles segment operatirgpine to income before taxes and equity in incomegffdfate as reported on the
Consolidated Statements of Income (in thousands).

Years Ended September 3( 2008 2007 2006
Segment operating incon $ 701,08¢ $ 599,26° $ 439,84
Income from asset sal 13,49( 41,69’ 7,49
Gain from involuntary conversion of lo-lived asset: 10,23¢ 16,66 —
Corporate general and administrative costs

corporate depreciatic (31,999 (25,30¢) (30,05%

Operating incomi 692,81¢ 632,31¢ 417,28t
Other income (expens

Interest and dividend incon 5,03¢ 4,23¢ 9,83¢

Interest expens (18,689 (10,12¢) (6,644

Gain on sale of investment securit 21,99¢ 65,45¢ 19,86¢

Other (1,230 (1,537) 63¢

Total unallocated amoun 7,11z 58,03« 23,69¢

Income before income taxes and equity in incomaffifate $ 699,92¢ $ 690,35! $ 440,98:

The following table presents revenues from extecoatomers and long-lived assets by country basdtelocation of service provided (in
thousands).

Years Ended September 3( 2008 2007 2006
Revenue:
United State: $ 1,687,07' $ 1,292,631 $ 972,02:
Venezuele 167,17: 127,27¢ 84,59:
Ecuadot 55,10( 93,90: 88,70¢
Colombia 42,43¢ 26,84¢ 17,74¢
Other Foreigr 84,757 88,99: 61,74
Total $ 2,036,54. $ 1,629,651 $ 1,224,81.

._______________________________________________________________________________|
Long-Lived Assets

United State! $ 2,461,720 $ 1,951,900 $ 1,284,23!
Venezuele 76,867 83,80+ 83,16(
Ecuadotl 25,56( 45,12( 42,85¢
Colombia 41,88¢ 10,06: 9,79:
Other Foreigr 76,20¢ 61,72« 63,08"

Total $ 2,682,25 $ 2,152.61 $ 1,483,13.

Long-lived assets are comprised of property, panat equipment.

Revenues from one company doing business withgh&act drilling segment accounted for approximatel.3 percent, 5.5 percent, and
4.2 percent of the total operating revenues dutiegyears ended September 30, 2008, 2007, and 8@ ctively. Revenues from another
company doing business with the contract drilliegraent accounted for approximately 8.5 perceng fircent, and 11.2 percent of total
operating revenues during the years ended Septe30b@008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Collectivel

80




the receivables from these customers were approgiyn®59.4 million and $49.0 million at Septemb@r 3008 and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 16 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

4 th
2008 1St Quarter 214 Quarter 3 Quarter Quarter
Operating revenue $ 456,66 $ 473,64: $ 522,517 $ 583,71
Operating incomi 168,63: 155,67( 177,80° 190,70t
Net income 107,83( 102,05 125,36¢ 126,48!
Basic net income per common sh 1.04 .98 1.2C 1.2C
Diluted net income per common shi 1.0z .9€ 1.1¢ 1.1¢

4 th
2007 1St Quarter 2nd Quarter 31 Quarter Quarter
Operating revenue $ 386,39¢ $ 372,53t $ 421,27: $  449,44¢
Operating incomi 146,65¢ 164,28: 154,67. 166,70¢
Net income 110,78¢ 106,86: 115,20 116,41(
Basic net income per common sh 1.07 1.04 1.11 il,dlE
Diluted net income per common shi 1.0€ 1.0z 1.0¢ 1.1C

The sum of earnings per share for the four quanteng not equal the total earnings per share foy#ae due to changes in the average number
of common shares outstanding.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2008, net incomelires an after-tax gain from the involuntary cosuan of long-lived assets of $3.1 million,
$0.03 per share on a diluted basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2008, net inconctuites an after-tax gain on the sale of availabteséle securities of $3.3 million, $0.03 per
share on a diluted basis and an after-tax gain ff@sale of assets of $1.2 million, $0.01 peresloara diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, net incomelules an after-tax gain on the sale of availabtestde securities of $10.0 million, $0.09 per
share on a diluted basis, an after-tax gain froerstile of assets of $1.0 million, $0.01 per shara diluted basis, and an aftex gain from th
involuntary conversion of long-lived assets of $&lion, $0.03 per share on a diluted basis. Ideldiin net income for the third quarter of
fiscal 2008 is an after-tax charge of $6.9 milli$0,07 per share on a diluted basis, from in-precesearch and development.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, net incomelildes an after-tax gain from the sale of asse®6d@ million, $0.05 per share on a diluted
basis. Included in net income for the fourth quaofefiscal 2008 is after-tax equipment abandonmefit$7.3 million, $0.07 per share on a
diluted basis.
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In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, net incomelirtes an after-tax gain on the sale of availablestde securities of $16.2 million, $0.15 per
share on a diluted basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2007, net inconctuthes an after-tax gain from the sale of asse®20f5 million, $0.20 per share on a diluted
basis and an after-tax gain from the involuntamvession of long-lived assets of $3.3 million, & er share on a diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2007, net incomeluies an after-tax gain on the sale of availabtestde securities of $15.5 million, $0.15 per
share on a diluted basis, an after-tax gain froenstile of assets of $3.9 million, $0.03 per shara diluted basis, and an aftex gain from th
involuntary conversion of long-lived assets of $iiflion, $0.03 per share on a diluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, net incomelilies an after-tax gain on the sale of availabteshle securities of $8.4 million, $0.08 per
share on a diluted basis, an after-tax gain froerstile of assets of $1.9 million, $0.01 per shara diluted basis, and an aftex gain from th
involuntary conversion of long-lived assets of $iflion, $0.04 per share on a diluted basis.
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Stockholders' Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on
March 4, 2009. A formal notice of the meeting, tihge
with a proxy statement and form of proxy will beiled to
shareholders on or about January 26, 2009.

Stock Exchange Listing

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Common Stock is tradedtan t
New York Stock Exchange with the ticker symbol "H
The newspaper abbreviation most commonly used for
financial reporting is "HelmP." Options on the Caamp's
stock are also traded on the New York Stock Exchang

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

As of November 20, 2008, there were 675 recordersid
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. common stock as listgdhe
transfer agent's records.

Our Transfer Agent is responsible for our shareéold
records, issuance of stock certificates, and Bistion of
our dividends and the IRS Form 1099. Your requests,
shareholders, concerning these matters are maseaffy
answered by corresponding directly with The Transfe
Agent at the following address:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Investor Services
P.O. Box 43078
Providence, Rl 02940-3078
Telephone: (800) 884-4225

(781) 575-4706

Available Information

Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, earnings releases,
financial statements are made available in thedtore
Relations section of the Company's website. Alsatied
on the Company's website in the Corporate Govemanc
section are certain corporate governance documents,
including the following: the charters of the comt@dts of
the Board of Directors; the Company's Corporate
Governance Guidelines and Code of Business Corzachat
Ethics; the Code of Ethics for Principal Execut®icer
and Senior Financial Officers; the Related Person
Transaction Policy; the Foreign Corrupt Practices A
Compliance Policy; certain Audit Committee Praciesd
a description of the means by which employees énef o
interested persons may communicate certain con¢erns
the Company's Board of Directors, including the
communication of such concerns confidentially and
anonymously via the Company's ethics hotline adQ-8
205-4913. Quarterly reports, earnings releaseanfiial
statements and the various corporate governance
documents are also available free of charge updtewr
request

Annual CEO Certification

The annual CEO Certification required by SectioB802
(a) of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company
Manual was provided to the New York Stock Exchaoge
or about March 14, 2008.

Direct Inquiries To:

Investor Relations
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
1437 South Boulder Avenue
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119
Telephone: (918) 742-5531

Internet Address: http://www.hpinc.cc
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Helmerich & Payne, Inc

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne, Ir
White Eagle Assurance Company (Incorporated in \oety
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. (Ingarated in Delaware

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne International Inig Co.
Helmerich & Payne (Africa) Drilling Co. (Incorpoed in Cayman Islands, British West Indi
Helmerich & Payne (Colombia) Drilling Co. (Incor@bed in Oklahoma
Helmerich & Payne (Gabon) Drilling Co. (Incorpordie Cayman Islands, British West Indi
Helmerich & Payne (Argentina) Drilling Co. (Incomated in Oklahoma
Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. (Incorpéed in Oklahoma

Subsidiary of Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drillirigp.
Helmerich and Payne Mexico Drilling, S. De R.L.@¢/. (Incorporated in Mexicc
Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. Limitadhifnited Liability Compan—Incorporated in Chile

Helmerich & Payne (Australia) Drilling Co. (Incomated in Oklahoma
Helmerich & Payne del Ecuador, Inc. (Incorporate@®@klahoma
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A. (Incorporatedenezuela
Helmerich & Payne Rasco, Inc. (Incorporated in @klaa)

H&P Finco (Incorporated in Cayman Islands, Britistest Indies’

H&P Invest Ltd. (Incorporated in Cayman IslandstiBn West Indies
TerraVici Drilling Solutions, Inc. (Incorporated Delaware]

The Space Center, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahc
Helmerich & Payne Properties, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma,
Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc. (Incorporate@kfahoma)

Subsidiaries of Utica Square Shopping Center,
Fishercorp, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahon
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthis Annual Report (Form 10-K) of HelmerichReayne, Inc. of our report dated
November 25, 2008, with respect to the consolidfitethcial statements of Helmerich & Payne, Inaclided in the 2008 Annual Report
Shareholders of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe following Registration Statements:

(D) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3493%gpeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stoakentive Plan,
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-63124ap@ng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stoegentive Plan, and

3) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-137144) pertaining to the Helmerich & Payne, IM@02 Lon¢-Term Incentive Plar

of our report dated November 25, 2008, with respetiie consolidated financial statements of Helohme& Payne, Inc. incorporated herein by
reference and our report dated November 25, 2008, respect to the effectiveness of internal cdraxeer financial reporting of Helmerich &
Payne, Inc., included herein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 25, 200
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Hans Helmerich, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Klefmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company");
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the Company as of, andlfierperiods presented in this report;

4, The Company's other certifying officer and | argp@nsible for establishing and maintaining disalestontrols and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company hade:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingeared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disiceocontrols and procedures and presented ineghist our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Comgaimgernal control over financial reporting thatomed during the Company's
most recent fiscal quarter (the Company's fougbdi quarter in the case of an annual report)itaatmaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparigternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | haigtbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over financial
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the AGdinmittee of the Company's Board of Directors (@nspns performing the
equivalent functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2008

/s/ Hans Helmeric

Hans Helmerich
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Douglas E. Fears, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Klefmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company");
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the Company as of, andlfierperiods presented in this report;

4, The Company's other certifying officer and | argp@nsible for establishing and maintaining disalestontrols and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company hade:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingeared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disiceocontrols and procedures and presented ineghist our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Comgaimgernal control over financial reporting thatomed during the Company's
most recent fiscal quarter (the Company's fougbdi quarter in the case of an annual report)itaatmaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparigternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | haigtbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over financial
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the AGdinmittee of the Company's Board of Directors (@nspns performing the
equivalent functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2008

/s/ Douglas E. Fea

Douglas E. Fears
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Off
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Exhibit 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of kefich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company") on FormHK®er the period ended September 30, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisseiothe date hereof (the "Report"), Hans HelmerdshPresident and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and Douglas E. Fears, axHhtive Vice President and Chief Financial Offioéthe Company, each hereby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipntdo Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22@o the best of his knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theyugrements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
78m or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timafcial condition and result of operations
of the Company.

/sl Hans Helmericl /s/ Douglas E. Fea

Hans Helmerich Douglas E. Fears
President and Chief Executive Offic Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Ofi

Date: November 26, 20( Date: November 26, 20(
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